=
EVERETT

WASHINGTON
Everett City Council Preliminary Agenda
6:30 p.m., Wednesday, January 31, 2024

City Council Chambers
Roll Call

Pledge Of Allegiance

Land Acknowledgment

Approval Of Minutes: January 24, 2024

Mayor’s Comments: Introduction Of Everett Police Officers: Rogelio Guizar, Rudy Gilgallon
Public Comment

Council Comments/Liaison Reports

Administration Update

City Attorney

CONSENT ITEMS:

(1) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount Of
$1,259,643.90 For The Period Ending January 13, 2024 Through January 19, 2023.

Documents:
RES CLAIMS PAYABLE JAN 13, 2024 - JAN 19, 2024.PDF

(2) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Payroll Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount
Of $5,427,284.13 For The Period Ending January 13, 2024.

Documents:
2024 RESOLUTION FOR PAYROLL PAY PERIOD 02.PDF

(3) Award And Authorize The Mayor To Sign A Professional Services Agreement For
Request For Qualifications #2023-093 Everett Station HYAC Controls Replacement And
Maintenance With Hultz BHU Engineers In The Amount Not To Exceed $194,090.

Documents:
EVERETT STATION HVAC DESIGN.PDF

(4) Award And Authorize 2024 Vehicle And Equipment Replacement Purchases From The
Lowest-Priced, Best Available Source Through Competitively Bid, Cooperative Contracts.

Documents:



2024 AWARD AND AUTHORIZE VEHICLES.PDF

(5) Authorize The Mayor To Sign The Professional Services Agreement With PACE
Engineers, Inc. ($250,000 Total) For 2024-2028 On-Call Stormwater Plan Review Support.

Documents:
PACE ENGINEERS-ON CALL STORMWATER PLAN REVIEW.PDF

(6) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Watermain Replacement Change Order No.1.

Documents:
QUILCEDA EXCAVATION-WATERMAIN W-CO NO. 1.PDF

(7) Award The Contract For The Port Gardner Storage Facility - Demolition Project To
Lincoln Construction, Inc. In The Amount Of $3,041,841.87.

Documents:

LINCOLN CONSTRUCTION-PORT GARDNER STORAGE FACILITY-BID
AWARD.PDF

ACTION ITEM:

(8) Authorize The Mayor To Sign The Everett Link Extension Project Administration
Agreement.

Documents:
EVERETT LINK EXTENSION PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT.PDF

COUNCIL BRIEFING AGENDA: (These Items Come Before The City Council Serving As A
Council Committee Of The Whole And Are Likely To Be Scheduled At A Future Meeting.)

BRIEFING:
(9) Transit Consolidation Briefing.

Documents:

TRANSIT CONSOLIDATION BRIEFING.PDF
MORE TRANSIT TOGETHER - EVERETT TRANSIT CONSOLIDATION
STUDY.PDF

Executive Session
Adjourn

PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE COUNCIL MEETINGS

o Callinto listen to the Council meetings: 425.616.3920, conference ID: 724 887 726#

o Participate remotely via Zoom by registering to speak at everettwa.gov/speakerform. You
must register no later than 30 minutes prior to the meeting. Or contact Angela Ely at
425.257.8703 or aely@everettwa.gov and identify the topic you wish to address.

o Provide written public comments by email to Council@everettwa.gov or mail to 2930


http://everettwa.gov/speakerform
mailto:aely@everettwa.gov

Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9A, Everett, WA 98201. Emailing comments 24 hours prior to the
meeting will ensure your comment is distributed to councilmembers and appropriate
staff.

o Persons seeking to comment on non-agenda items may be asked to submit the
comments in writing if the comment does not address an issue of broad public interest.

AGENDAS, BROADCAST AND RECORDINGS

o The Council agendas and meeting recordings can be found, in their entirety, at
everettwa.gov/citycouncil.

o The Council meetings are broadcast on government-access cable Comcast Channel 21
and Frontier Channel 29. They are rebroadcast on Monday and Tuesday at noon;
Thursday at 2 p.m. and 7 p.m.; Friday and Sunday at 7 p.m.; Saturday at 10 a.m.

o Watch live meetings and recordings at YouTube.com/EverettCity.

CONTACT THE COUNCIL

If you do not wish to participate in the meeting, we provide these other methods of contacting your
elected officials: Email the Council at Council@everettwa.gov.

o Call the Council offices at 425.257.8703
o You may call in just to listen to the meeting: 425.616.3920, conference ID 724 887 726#

The City of Everett does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or
treatment in, its programs or activities. Requests for assistance or accommodations can be arranged
by contacting the Everett City Council Office at 425.257.8703. For additional information, please visit
our website at https://www.everettwa.gov/3129/American-Disabilities-Act-ADA-and Title-.


http://everettwa.gov/citycouncil
http://youtube.com/everettcity
mailto:Council@everettwa.gov
https://www.everettwa.gov/20e57505-53f4-42ef-92cc-b6a1758219b0

RESOLUTION NO.

Be it Resolved by the City Council of the City of Everett:

=

EVERETT

WASHINGTON

Whereas the claims payable by check against the City of Everett for the period January 13, 2024 through January 19,
2024, having been audited and approved by the proper officers, have been paid and the disbursements made by the

same, against the proper funds in payment thereof, as follows:

Fund

001
002
003
005
007
009
010
018
021
024
026
030
031
032
038

Department

City Council

General Government

Legal

Municipal Court

Human Resources

Misc Financial Funds
Finance

Communications, Mktg & Engag
Planning & Community Dev
Public Works-Engineering
Animal Shelter

Emergency Management
Police

Fire

Facilities/Maintenance

TOTAL GENERAL FUND S

Amount

3,996.00

(8,154.51)

8,523.70
9,279.59
17.50
91,034.15
94.24
1,641.35
52.65
2,199.11
227.54
84.33
26,801.41
22,283.07
456.00

158,536.13

Councilperson introducing Resolution

Passed and approved this

day of

Council President

Fund

101
110
112
114
119
120
130
146
152
153
155
156
162
198
303
336
342
354
401
402
425
440
450
501
503
505
508
661
670

, 2024

Department

Parks & Recreation

Library

Community Theater
Conference Center

Public Works-Street Improv
Public Works-Streets
Develop & Const Permit Fee
Property Management
Cum Reserve-Library
Emergency Medical Service:
Capital Reserve Fund
Criminal Justice

Capital Projects Reserve
Community Dev Block Gran
PW Improvement Projects
Water & Sewer Sys Improv |
City Facilities Construction
Parks Capital Construction
Public Works-Utilities

Solid Waste Utility

Public Works-Transit

Golf

Snoh River Regional Water
MVD-Transportation Service
Self-Insurance

Computer Reserve

Health Benefits Reserve
Claims

Custodial Funds

TOTAL CLAIMS

Amount

8,923.10
5,651.25
1,850.00
1,200.00
3,657.50
2,224.33
1,152.52
1,575.63
1,631.83
47,879.33
143,251.24
34,611.40
29,249.08
39,485.33
136,844.23
60,990.23
4,704.00
258.27
404,898.71
3,789.27
3,552.07
9,315.10
300.00
19,220.71
14,557.70
49,239.95
3,796.00
62,982.99
4,316.00

1,259,643.90



=

EVERETT

WASHINGTON

RESOLUTION NO.

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Everett:

That the payroll of the employees of the City of Everett as of January 13, and checks issued

January 19, 2024, having been audited, be and the same is hereby approved and the proper officers
are hereby authorized and directed to charge checks on the Payroll Fund in payment thereof:

Fund Department

001 Legislative

003 Legal

004 Administration

005 Municipal Court

007 Personnel

010 Finance

015 Information Technology
018 Communications and Marketing
021 Planning & Community Dev
024 Public Works

026 Animal Shelter

030 Emergency Management
031 Police

032 Fire

038 Facilities/Maintenance

101 Parks & Recreation

110 Library

112 Community Theatre

120 Street

153 Emergency Medical Services
197 CHIP

198 Community Dev Block

401 Utilities

425 Transit

440 Golf

501 Equip Rental

Passed and approved this

Gross
Payroll

12,844.44
86,965.97
52,102.11
71,371.12
58,666.58
98,067.60
121,695.90
20,986.33
125,381.98
208,103.32
56,360.36
10,764.80
1,311,023.64
794,354.39
107,376.29

144,791.87
119,956.96

8,654.24
75,527.66
432,208.10
11,771.46
3,839.53
869,433.87
516,139.05
23,710.36
85,186.20

Employer
Contributions

6,248.25
26,065.82
11,459.96
24,974.45
17,780.26
31,642.57
39,244.25

6,924.58
36,042.14
67,940.86
23,542.83

3,502.94

305,996.40
189,905.38
40,481.44

58,187.55
40,591.99

2,140.56
28,928.55
95,251.03

3,474.89

1,272.49

331,111.01
192,667.59
10,315.37
32,016.51

$5,427,284.13

$1,627,709.67

Councilperson Introducing Resolution

day of

, 2024,

Council President


https://www.everettconnect.org/DocumentCenter/View/19667/Everett-WA-navy-JPG

EEVERETT

Project title:

Council Bill #

Agenda dates requested:
January 31, 2024

Briefing
Proposed action
Consent X
Action
Ordinance
Public hearing
Yes X No

Budget amendment:
Yes X No

PowerPoint presentation:

Yes X No

Attachments:
Contract

Department(s) involved:
Procurement and Transit

Contact person:
Theresa Bauccio-Teschlog

Phone number:
(425) 257-8901

Email:
tbauccio@everettwa.gov

Initialed by:

sh

Department head
Administration

Council President

City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet

Award and Authorize the Mayor to Sign Professional Services Agreement for Request for Qualifications
#2023-093 Everett Station HVAC Controls Replacement and Maintenance with Hultz BHU Engineers

Project: Everett Station HVAC Controls Replacement and Maintenance
Partner/Supplier: Hultz BHU Engineers

Location: Everett Station
Preceding action:
Fund: 425 Transportation Services

Fiscal summary statement:

Everett Transit has been awarded a Federal Transit Administration grant in the amount of
$1,195,009 with a twenty percent (20%) $298,753 cash match for a total of $1,493,762.

PSA Hultz BHU Engineers Design $194,090
Construction $1,299,672
Total Budget $1,493,762

Project summary statement:

Qualifications were requested from design firms to design, engineer, permit, and provide
construction documents and construction management to replace the existing Alerton DDC
systems serving Everett Station to reduce system energy use, increase system reliability,
improve occupant health and comfort, and replace equipment with connected wireless
thermostats and controls.

The design will include a review of current maintenance records and a plan to address any
deferred maintenance, repair, and replacement of bathroom exhausts throughout the
building, installation of destratification fans in the Great Hall, design of a new stand-alone
HVAC system for the server/computer room, and a complete balancing and recommissioning
of all systems. Everett Transit will use the construction documents to bid the HVAC control
replacement.

The Request for Qualifications was released on September 28, 2023. Companies from both
the Municipal Research Services Center (MRSC) roster and the Office of Minority and
Women's Business Enterprises (OMWBE) directory were directly notified about the
opportunity. On October 26, 2023, five responses were received. Staff is requesting an
award to Hultz BHU Engineers, who were determined to be the most qualified to complete
the design documents.

Supplier Name Score out of 100 Points
Hultz BHU 96
P2S Engineering 81
BCE Engineers 69
Hargis Consulting Engineering 94
Design West Engineering 53

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):

Award and authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement for Request for
Qualifications #2023-093 Everett Station HVAC Controls Replacement and Maintenance with
Hultz BHU Engineers in the amount not to exceed $194,090.



]
L
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT EVERETT

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is effective as of the date of the
Mayor’s signature below and is between the City of Everett, a Washington municipal corporation
(the “City”), and the person identified as Service Provider in the Basic Provisions below (“Service
Provider’). This Agreement is for the purpose of the Service Provider providing the services as
set forth in this Agreement. This Agreement includes and incorporates the Basic Provisions, the
attached General Provisions, and the documents listed as Exhibits in the Basic Provisions.

BASIC PROVISIONS

Hultz BHU Engineers, Inc

1111 Fawcett Avenue, Suite 100
Service Provider
Tacoma, Washington 98402

rickh@hultzbhu.com

James Sauls

City of Everett -- Transit

City Project 3201 Smith Avenue
Manager

Everett, WA 98201

jsauls@everettwa.gov

Brief Summary of | Design services for Everett Station HVAC controls replacement and
Scope of Work maintenance

Completion Date | December 31, 2024

Extension

Provision N/A




BASIC PROVISIONS

Maximum
Compensation $194,090.00
Amount
Exhibit A: Negotiated Scope - Everett HVAC Projects — Everett Station
Exhibits Exhibit B: Hultz BHU Engineers Inc Response dated October 24, 2023

Exhibit C: Request for Qualifications #2023-093

Exhibit D: N/A

Allison Barga

Service Provider
Insurance Contact | 360-626-2007
Information

allison.barga@assuredpartners.com

Additional

Provision(s) N/A




State Retirement
Systems (must
answer both
guestions)

Does Service Provider have 25 or more employees?
Answer: No

If Service Provider has less than 25 employees, did any Service Provider
Personnel who will work under this Professional Services Agreement retire
under a DRS retirement system?

Answer: No

“DRS retirement system” refers to any of the following Public Employers’
Retirement System (PERS), School Employees’ Retirement System (SERS),
Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS), and Law Enforcement Officers and
Fire Fighters plan (LEOFF).

“Service Provider Personnel” includes Service Provider employees and
owners (such as shareholders, partners or members). If Service Provider is
a sole proprietor, then “Service Provider Personnel” refers to the sole
proprietor.

END OF BASIC PROVISIONS




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Service Provider have executed this Agreement,
which includes and incorporates the above Basic Provisions, the attached General Provisions,
and the documents listed as Exhibits in the Basic Provisions.

CITY OF EVERETT HULTZ BHU ENGINEERS INC
WASHINGTON

Signature:

Cassie Franklin, Mayor
Name of Signer: Rick Hultz

Signer’s Email Address: rickh@hultzbhu.com
Title of Signer: President

Date

ATTEST

Office of the City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
EVERETT JULY 28, 2023

B STANDARD DOCUMENT
[




1.

3.

4.

ATTACHMENT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
(GENERAL PROVISIONS v.071423.P1)

Engagement of Service Provider. The City hereby agrees to engage Service Provider, and Service

Provider hereby agrees, to perform the work in a competent and professional manner and provide

the services described in the exhibit(s) to this Agreement. The work so described is hereafter

referred to as “Work”.

A.  Without a written directive of an authorized representative of the City, Service Provider shall
not perform any services that are in addition to, or beyond the scope of, the Work. If, and to
the extent, the Work includes the design of a public work or improvement, in whole or in
part, Service Provider’s design shall be reasonably accurate, adequate and suitable for its
intended purpose.

B. If Service Provider’s proposal or other document generated by Service Provider is
incorporated or attached as an exhibit or part of any exhibit to this Agreement, then such
proposal or document is part of this Agreement solely to the extent that it describes the
Work, the Work schedule, and the amounts or rates to be paid for such Work. Service
Provider expressly agrees that no terms or conditions from such proposal or document are
incorporated or included into this Agreement, unless the to-be-included term or condition is
specifically referenced in the “Additional Provision(s)” portion of the Basic Provisions.

C. Work or requirements described in a scope of work document attached as an exhibit to this
Agreement in aspirational or preferential terms (such as “it is desired that Supplier will,” “it
is preferred that Supplier will” or similar language) is deemed to be mandatory, unless
otherwise provided in the “Additional Provision(s)” portion of the Basic Provisions.

D. Inthe event of difference or conflict between parts of this Agreement, Service Provider shall
be bound by whichever is more stringent on Service Provider, except that the following
provisions in the Basic Provisions shall always govern: the Completion Date, the Maximum
Compensation Amount, the Extension Provision, and the Additional Provisions.

Intellectual Property Rights. Reports, drawings, plans, specifications and any other intangible

property created in furtherance of the Work are property of the City for all purposes, whether the

project for which they are made is executed or not, and may be used by the City for any purpose.

Unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing, all intellectual property rights in such documents or

intangible property created pursuant to this Agreement, or for the City of Everett, belong to the

City of Everett. Service Provider retains any intellectual property rights in documents and

intangible property created by Service Provider prior to engagement, or not created by Service

Provider for its performance of this Agreement.

Time of Beginning and Completion of Performance. This Agreement shall commence as of the

date of mutual execution of this Agreement and shall be completed by Completion Date stated in

the Basic Provisions. This Agreement may be extended as set forth in the Basic Provisions.

Compensation.

A. The City shall pay Service Provider only for completed Work and for services actually
rendered which are described herein. Such payment shall be full compensation for Work
performed or services rendered, including, but not limited to, all labor, materials, supplies,
equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the Work.

B. Service Provider shall be paid such amounts and in such manner as described in the exhibit(s)
to this Agreement.

General Provisions - 1



C. Service Provider may receive payment as reimbursement for Eligible Expenses actually
incurred. “Eligible Expenses” means those expenses as set forth in an exhibit to this
Agreement or such expenses as are approved for reimbursement by the City in writing prior
to the expense being incurred. An expense shall not be reimbursed if: (1) the expense is not
identified as an Eligible Expense; (2) the expense exceeds the per item or cumulative limits
for such expense if it is identified as an Eligible Expense; or (3) the expense was not approved
in writing by an authorized City representative prior to Service Provider incurring the
expense. If, and to the extent, overnight lodging in western Washington is authorized,
Service Provider is strongly encouraged to lodge within the corporate limits of City. When
authorized, Service Provider will be reimbursed 100% of lodging expense, if lodged within
the corporate limits of the City, but Service Provider will be reimbursed 50% of lodging
expense when lodged outside the corporate limits of the City. If authorized, the City may (at
its sole option) obtain or arrange air travel for Service Provider.

D. Total compensation, including all services and expenses, shall not exceed the Maximum
Compensation Amount in the Basic Provisions.

E. If Service Provider fails or refuses to correct its work when so directed by the City, the City
may withhold from any payment otherwise due an amount that the City in good faith
believes is equal to the cost to the City of correcting, re-procuring, or remedying any damage
caused by Service Provider’s conduct.

Method of Payment.

A. To obtain payment, Service Provider shall (a) file its request for payment, accompanied by
evidence satisfactory to the City justifying the request for payment; (b) submit a report of
Work accomplished and hours of all tasks completed; (c) to the extent reimbursement of
Eligible Expenses is sought, submit itemization of such expenses and, if requested by the
City, copies of receipts and invoices; and (d) comply with all applicable provisions of this
Agreement. Service Provider shall be paid no more often than once every thirty days.

B. All requests for payment should be sent to the City Project Manager Address in the Basic
Provisions.

Submission of Reports and Other Documents. Service Provider shall submit all reports and other

documents as and when specified in the Scope of Work. This information shall be subject to

review by the City, and if found to be unacceptable, Service Provider shall correct and deliver to
the City any deficient Work at Service Provider’s expense with all practical dispatch. Service

Provider shall abide by the City’s determinations concerning acceptability of Work.

Termination of Contract. City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time by

sending written notice of termination to Service Provider (“Notice”). The Notice shall specify a

termination date (“Termination Date”) at least fourteen (14) days after the date the Notice is

issued. The Notice shall be effective (“Notice Date”) upon the earlier of either actual receipt by

Service Provider (whether by email, mail, delivery or other method reasonably calculated to be

received by Service Provider in a reasonably prompt manner) or three calendar days after issuance

of the Notice. Upon the Notice Date, Service Provider shall immediately commence to end the

Work in a reasonable and orderly manner. Unless terminated for Service Provider’s material

breach, Service Provider shall be paid or reimbursed for: (a) all hours worked and Eligible Expenses

incurred up to the Notice Date, less all payments previously made; and (b) those hours worked
and Eligible Expenses incurred after the Notice Date, but prior to the Termination Date, that were
reasonably necessary to terminate the Work in an orderly manner. Notices under this Section
shall be sent by the United States Mail to Service Provider’s address provided herein, postage
prepaid, or by delivery. In addition, Notices may also be sent by any other method reasonably
believed to provide Service Provider actual notice in a timely manner, such as email. The City does

General Provisions - 2



10.

11.

not by this Section waive, release or forego any legal remedy for any violation, breach or non-
performance of any of the provision of this Agreement. At its sole option, and without limitation
of or prejudice to any other available remedy or recourse, the City may deduct from the final
payment due Service Provider (a) any damages, expenses or costs arising out of any such
violations, breaches, or non-performance and (b) any other backcharges or credits.

Changes. The City may, from time to time, unilaterally change the scope of the services of Service
Provider to be performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the
scope of work (and resulting increase or decrease in compensation), shall: (a) be made only in
writing and signed by an authorized City representative, (b) be explicitly identified as an
amendment to this Agreement and (c) become a part of this Agreement.

Subletting/Assignment of Contracts. Service Provider shall not sublet or assign any of the Work
without the express, prior written consent of the City.

Indemnification. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, Service Provider hereby agrees to
defend and indemnify and save harmless the City from any and all Claims arising out of, in
connection with, or incident to any negligent or intentional acts, errors, omissions, or conduct by
Service Provider (or its employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors/subconsultants)
relating to this Agreement, whether such Claims sound in contract, tort, or any other legal theory.
Service Provider is obligated to defend and indemnify and save harmless the City pursuant to this
Section whether a Claim is asserted directly against the City, or whether it is asserted indirectly
against the City, e.g., a Claim is asserted against someone else who then seeks contribution or
indemnity from the City. Service Provider’s duty to defend and indemnify and save harmless
pursuant to this Section is not in any way limited to, or by the extent of, insurance obtained by,
obtainable by, or required of Service Provider. Service Provider’s obligations under this Section
shall not apply to Claims caused by the sole negligence of the City. If (1) RCW 4.24.115 applies to
a particular Claim, and (2) such Claim is caused by or results from the concurrent negligence of
(a) Service Provider, its employees, subcontractors/subconsultants or agents and (b) the City,
then Service Provider’s liability under this Section shall be only to the extent of Service Provider’s
negligence. Solely and expressly for the purpose of its duties to indemnify and defend and save
harmless the City, Service Provider specifically waives any immunity it may have under the State
Industrial Insurance Law, Title 51 RCW. Service Provider recognizes that this waiver of immunity
under Title 51 RCW was specifically entered into pursuant to the provisions of RCW 4.24.115 and
was the subject of mutual negotiation. As used in this Section: (1) “City” includes the City, the
City’s officers, employees, agents, and representatives and (2) “Claims” include, but is not limited
to, any and all losses, penalties, fines, claims, demands, expenses (including, but not limited to,
attorney’s fees and litigation expenses), suits, judgments, or damages, irrespective of the type of
relief sought or demanded, such as money or injunctive relief, and irrespective of whether the
damage alleged is bodily injury, damage to property, economic loss, general damages, special
damages, or punitive damages or infringement or misappropriation of any patent, copyright,
trade secret, or other proprietary right. If, and to the extent, Service Provider employs or engages
subconsultants or subcontractors, then Service Provider shall ensure that each such
subconsultant and subcontractor (and subsequent tiers of subconsultants and subcontractors)
shall expressly agree to defend and indemnify and save harmless the City to the extent and on the
same terms and conditions as Service Provider pursuant to this Section. The provisions of this
Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

Insurance.

General Provisions - 3



Service Provider shall comply with the following conditions and procure and keep in force
during the term of this Agreement, at Service Provider’s own cost and expense, the policies
of insurance as set forth in this Section with companies authorized to do business in the State
of Washington, which are rated at least “A-" or better and with a numerical rating of no less
than seven (7), by A.M. Best Company and which are acceptable to the City.

1. Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required by Washington law and Employer’s
Liability Insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If the City
authorizes sublet work, Service Provider shall require each subcontractor to provide
Workers’ Compensation Insurance for its employees, unless Service Provider covers
such employees.

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance on an occurrence basis in an amount not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and at least $2,000,000 in the annual
aggregate, including but not limited to: premises/operations (including off-site
operations), blanket contractual liability and broad form property damage.

3. Business Automobile Liability Insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, extending to any automobile. A statement certifying that no vehicle
will be used in accomplishing this Agreement may be substituted for this insurance
requirement.

4, Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance in an amount not less than $2,000,000
per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the annual aggregate. Such coverage may be
written on a claims made basis.

The above liability policies shall be primary as to the City and shall contain a provision that
the policy shall not be canceled or materially changed without 30 days prior written notice to
the City. No cancellation provision in any insurance policy shall be construed in derogation
of the continuous duty of Service Provider to furnish the required insurance during the term
of this Agreement.

Upon written request by the City, the insurer or its agent will furnish, prior to or during any
Work being performed, a copy of any policy cited above, certified to be a true and complete
copy of the original.

The Description of Operations on the Certificate of Insurance must substantially read as
follows: "The above commercial general and auto liability policies are primary as to the City
of Everett; have the City of Everett, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as
additional insureds; and contain a provision that the policy shall not be canceled or
materially changed without 30 days prior written notice to the City of Everett."

Prior to Service Provider performing any Work, Service Provider shall provide the City or the
City’s designee with a Certificate of Insurance acceptable to the City Attorney evidencing the
required insurance. Service Provider shall provide the City or the City’s designee with either
(1) a true copy of an endorsement naming the City of Everett, its officers, employees, agents
and volunteers as Additional Insureds on the Commercial General Liability Insurance policy
and the Business Automobile Liability Insurance policy with respect to the operations
performed and services provided under this Agreement and that such insurance shall apply
as primary insurance on behalf of such Additional Insureds or (2) a true copy of the blanket
additional insured clause from the policies. Receipt by the City or the City’s designee of any
certificate showing less coverage than required is not a waiver of Service Provider’s
obligations to fulfill the requirements.

If the policy listed above, Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance, is on a claims made
policy form, the retroactive date on the policy shall be the effective date of this Agreement
or prior. The retroactive date of any subsequent renewal of such policy shall be the same as

General Provisions - 4



the original policy provided. The extended reporting or discovery period on a claims made
policy form shall not be less than 36 months following expiration of the policy.

Service Provider certifies that it is aware of the provisions of Title 51 of the Revised Code of
Washington that requires every employer to be insured against liability of Workers’
Compensation, or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Title.
Service Provider shall comply with the provisions of Title 51 of the Revised Code of
Washington before commencing the performance of the Work. Service Provider shall provide
the City with evidence of Workers’ Compensation Insurance (or evidence of qualified self-
insurance) before any Work is commenced.

In case of the breach of any provision of this Section, the City may, at its option and with no
obligation to do so, provide and maintain at the expense of Service Provider, such types of
insurance in the name of Service Provider, and with such insurers, as the City may deem
proper, and may deduct the cost of providing and maintaining such insurance from any sums
which may be found or become due to Service Provider under this Agreement or may demand
Service Provider to promptly reimburse the City for such cost.

12. Risk of Loss. Service Provider shall be solely responsible for the safety of its employees, agents
and subcontractors in the performance of the work hereunder and shall take all protections
reasonably necessary for that purpose. All work shall be done at Service Provider’s own risk, and
Service Provider shall be solely responsible for any loss of or damage to Service Provider’s
materials, tools, or other articles used or held for use in connection with the work.

13. Independent Contractor.

A.

This Agreement neither constitutes nor creates an employer-employee relationship. Service
Provider must provide services under this Agreement as an independent contractor. Service
Provider must comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to
independent contractors including, but not limited to, the requirements listed in this Section.
Service Provider agrees to indemnify and defend the City from and against any claims, valid
or otherwise, made against the City because of these obligations.

In addition to the other requirements of this Section, if Service Provider is a sole proprietor,
Service Provider agrees that Service Provider is not an employee or worker of the City under
Chapter 51 of the Revised Code of Washington, Industrial Insurance for the service
performed in accordance with this Agreement, by certifying to the following:

(2) Service Provider is free from control or direction over the performance of the
service; and
(2) The service performed is outside the usual course of business for the City, or will

not be performed at any place of business of the City, or Service Provider is
responsible for the costs of the principal place of business from which the service
is performed; and

(3) Service Provider is customarily engaged in an independently established business
of the same nature as the service performed, or has a principal place of business
for the service performed that is eligible for a business deduction for federal
income tax purposes; and

(4) On the effective date of this Agreement, Service Provider is responsible for filing
a schedule of expenses, for the next applicable filing period, with the internal
revenue service for the type of service performed; and

(5) By the effective date of this Agreement or within a reasonable time thereafter,
Service Provider has established an account with the department of revenue and
other state agencies, where required, for the service performed for the payment
of all state taxes normally paid by employers and businesses and has registered

General Provisions - 5



for and received a unified business identifier number from the state of
Washington; and

(6) By the effective date of this Agreement, Service Provider is maintaining a separate
set of records that reflect all items of income and expenses of the services
performed.

C. Any and all employees of Service Provider, while engaged in the performance of any Work,
shall be considered employees of only Service Provider and not employees of the City.
Service Provider shall be solely liable for any and all claims that may or might arise under the
Worker's Compensation Act on behalf of such employees or Service Provider, while so
engaged and for any and all claims made by a third party as a consequence of any negligent
act or omission on the part of Service Provider's employees, while so engaged on any of the
Work.

D. Service Provider shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act
and other legislation affecting its employees and the rules and regulations issued thereunder
insofar as applicable to its employees and shall at all times save the City free, clear and
harmless from all actions, claims, demands and expenses arising out of such act, and rules
and regulations that are or may be promulgated in connection therewith.

E. Service Provider assumes full responsibility for the payment of all payroll taxes, use, sales,
income, or other form of taxes (such as state and, city business and occupation taxes), fees,
licenses, excises or payments required by any city, federal or state legislation which are now
or may during the term of the Agreement be enacted as to all persons employed by Service
Provider and as to all duties, activities and requirements by Service Provider in performance
of the Work and Service Provider shall assume exclusive liability therefor, and meet all
requirements thereunder pursuant to any rules or regulations that are now or may be
promulgated in connection therewith.

14. Employment/Conflict of Interest. Service Provider warrants that it has not employed or retained

15.

16.

any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Service Provider, to
solicit or secure this Agreement and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person,
other than a bona fide employee working solely for Service Provider, any fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from
the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the City shall
have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the
Agreement price or consideration or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee. Further, it is recognized that Service Provider
may or will be performing professional services during the term of this Agreement for other
parties; however, such performance of other services shall not conflict with or interfere with
Service Provider's ability to perform the Work. Service Provider agrees to resolve any such
conflicts of interest in favor of the City.

Audits and Inspections. At any time during normal business hours and as often as the City may
deem necessary, Service Provider shall make available to the City for the City’s examination all of
Service Provider’s records and documents with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement
and, furthermore, Service Provider will permit the City to audit, examine and make copies,
excerpts or transcripts from such records, and to make audits of all contracts, invoices, materials,
payrolls, records of personnel, conditions of employment and other data relating to all matters
covered by this Agreement.

City of Everett Business License. Service Provider agrees to obtain a City of Everett business
license prior to performing any work pursuant to this Agreement.

General Provisions - 6



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

State of Washington Requirements. Service Provider agrees to register and obtain any State of
Washington business licenses, Department of Revenue account and/or unified business identifier
number as required by RCW 50.04.140 and 51.08.195 prior to performing any work pursuant to
this Agreement.

Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. Service Provider shall comply with and obey all
federal, state and local laws, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the operation of its
business and to its performance of work hereunder.

Compliance with the Washington State Public Records Act. Service Provider acknowledges that
the City is subject to the Public Records Act, chapter 42.56 RCW (the “Act”). All records owned,
used or retained by the City are public records subject to disclosure unless exempt under the Act,
whether or not such records are in the possession or control of the City or Service Provider.
Service Provider shall cooperate with the City so that the City may comply with all of its obligations
under the Act. Within ten (10) days after receipt of notice from the City, Service Provider shall
deliver to the City copies of all records relating to this Agreement or relating to the Work that the
City determines qualify as the City’s public records under the Act. If the City receives a public
records request relating to this Agreement or relating to the Work, the City shall seek to provide
notice to Service Provider at least ten (10) days before the City releases records pursuant to such
public records request, but in no event will the City have any liability to Service Provider for any
failure of the City to provide such notice. In addition to its other indemnification and defense
obligations under this Agreement, Service Provider shall indemnify and defend the City from and
against any and all losses, penalties, fines, claims, demands, expenses (including, but not limited
to, attorney’s fees and litigation expenses), suits, judgments, or damage arising from or relating
to any failure of Service Provider to comply with this Section.

Compliance with Grant/Loan Terms and Conditions. Service Provider shall comply with any and
all terms, conditions, terms and requirements of any federal, state or other agency grant or loan
that wholly or partially funds Service Provider’s work hereunder. If the grant or loan requires that
the agency be a third party beneficiary to this Agreement, then the agency is a third party
beneficiary to this Agreement.

Equal Employment Opportunity. Service Provider shall not discriminate against any employee,
applicant for employment, or other person on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age,
disability, marital state, or national origin or other circumstance prohibited by applicable
federal, state, or local law or ordinance. Service Provider shall comply with and shall not violate
any applicable provisions of Chapter 49.60 RCW, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and all
applicable federal, state, or local law or ordinance regarding non-discrimination.

Waiver. Any waiver by Service Provider or the City or the breach of any provision of this
Agreement by the other party will not operate, or be construed, as a waiver of any subsequent
breach by either party or prevent either party from thereafter enforcing any such provisions.
Complete Agreement. This Agreement contains the complete and integrated understanding and
agreement between the parties and supersedes any understanding, agreement or negotiation
whether oral or written not set forth herein.

Modification of Agreement. This Agreement may only be modified as provided in Section 8, or
by a writing explicitly identified as a modification of this Agreement that is signed by authorized
representatives of the City and Service Provider.

Severability. If any part of this Agreement is found to be in conflict with applicable laws, such
part shall be inoperative, null and void, insofar as it is in conflict with said laws, and the remainder
of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Notices.

A. Notices to the shall be sent to the City Project Manager address in the Basic Provisions.

General Provisions - 7



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

B. Notices to Service Provider shall be sent to its address in the Basic Provisions.

Venue. Venue for any lawsuit arising out of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of
Snohomish County, Washington.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of Washington, without giving effect to principles of conflict
of laws, govern all matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement.

City Marks. Service Provider will not use any trade name, trademark, service mark, or logo of the
City (or any name, mark, or logo confusingly similar thereto) in any advertising, promotions, or
otherwise, without the City's express prior written consent.

No Personal Liability. No officer, agent or employee of the City shall be personally responsible
for any liability arising under this Agreement, whether expressed or implied, nor for any
statement or representation made or in any connection with this Agreement.
Signature/Counterparts. This Agreement and any amendment thereto may be signed in
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which, taken together, shall be
deemed one and the same document. AdobeSign signatures are fully binding. Any ink, electronic,
faxed, scanned, photocopied, or similarly reproduced signature on this Agreement or any
amendment hereto will be deemed an original signature and will be fully enforceable as an original
signature.

Standard Document. This General Provisions document is a standard City form document. No
changes by Service Provider are authorized to the General Provisions. Notwithstanding

anything to the contrary in this Agreement, in the event that Service Provider makes

unauthorized changes to the General Provisions, such changes are deemed to have never

been made and the contract between the City and Service Provider is deemed to be the
unchanged standard City form General Provisions in version stated below, regardless of

whether the City signs this Agreement in a form that may contain the unauthorized changes.

END OF GENERAL PROVISIONS
(v.071423.P1)

B STANDARD DOCUMENT
B APPROVED AS TO FORM
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
EVERETT jyLy 31,2023

General Provisions - 8



EXHIBIT A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
(ATTACHED)

Exhibit A



Huirz X BI—IU

engineers in

January 4, 2024

City of Everett

Facilities and Property Management

802 E. Mukilteo Blvd

Everett, WA 98203

Attention: Josh O’Neil

Subject: Everett HVAC Projects — Everett Station
Engineering Services Proposal

Dear Josh:

Thank you for this opportunity to work with you on this project.

Project Description

Work is as described in City of Everett Request for Qualifications, RFQ No0.2023-093.
This proposal addresses one of the three City of Everett facilities in the RFQ:

e Everett Station Controls Replacement and Maintenance: replace the existing controls at the
Everett Station located at 3201 Smith Ave, Everett, WA 98201. The scope includes design,
engineering, permitting, construction documents, and construction management for the
replacement of direct digital (DDC) control system along with VAV controllers. The design
and construction for this portion is funded by a Federal Transit Administration grant and has
associated non-negotiable clauses that must be agreed to. This facility will be bid separately
from the other two facilities in the RFP.

Scope of Services

Design Phase: Provide engineering, plans, and specifications to allow for project permitting, bidding
and construction. Documents will be submitted for your review at the following phases: schematic
design, design development, permit, and construction document phases. Construction cost
estimates are included, as are project schedules. Our work includes submitting plans for permitting
and coordinating the work with you and City of Everett staff. We assume that the City will provide
the Division 00 specification documents (i.e. contract, general conditions, bid form, etc.) and portions
of Division 01, which we will incorporate into the bid package. One site meeting is included, and
other design meetings are anticipated to be virtual. A review of compliance with the State Building
Performance Standard Compliance would be provided.

Bid Phase: Services include a review of substitution requests, attendance at the pre-bid meeting,
issuing any required addenda, and a review of bids.

Construction Phase: Services include attendance at the pre-construction meeting, review of
submittals, site visits (and meetings) during construction, general coordination, responding to
contractor requests for information (RFI’s), punchlist review, final back check review, and a review of
closeout documents. 10 site visits are included for construction support.

1111 Fawcett Avenue, Suite 100 ¢ Tacoma, Washington 98402
T 253.383.3257 e« F 253.383.3283 e general@hultzbhu.com



January 4, 2024

City of Everett, Facilities and Property Management
Everett HVAC Projects — Everett Station
Engineering Services Proposal

Page 2

Proposed Fee

Basic Services: We propose to provide our basic design, bid and construction services on a lump sum
fee basis, with our fee based off a percentage of the construction cost (from the State Public Works
fee schedule) as applied to the project MACC (values from the RFQ. We propose to use schedule B
from the fee schedule with a 3% add as a remodel project.

Facility MACC Fee Basis Fee
Everett Station $1,498,762 9.95% + 3% $ 194,090
Total $ 194,090

Extra Services not included within the Basic Services Fee include the following:

e |nitial State Clean Building Performance Standard Compliance Review: We would perform
the analysis to provide a weather normalized EUI for each building, and compare to the
adjusted EUI target for each building. This would identify whether additional energy savings
measures would be required for compliance. Proposed fee: $4,200.

e Total:$ 4,200

Reimbursable items (to be billed at cost plus 10%):
e Travel Mileage: We assume a budget of $1,600, and will invoice from the IRS mileage rates
® Printing (Review/Permit Sets): We assume a budget of $ 1,000
e Total $2,600

Possible Added Services

Possible Added Services that the City may choose to include:

1. Added Site Visits: Depending on the qualifications of the Contractor performing the work of
this project, as well as the complexity of the building systems, more site visits may be
necessary to allow adequate review of the work being performed than is included in the
Basic Services. The number of site visits in our basic proposal has been quantified to match
the fee provided (which is based on State fee guidelines). We would propose an added fee
of $ 600 per additional site visit.

See the attached for our 2024 hourly rates for any hourly work that may be added to the project
scope. We assume that for work occurring past June 2024 an adjustment will be considered due to
cost escalation.

Assigned Staff

Hultz| BHU key staff: Principal Rick Hultz, PE
Senior Engineer/PM Michael Tagles, PE
Senior Electrical Engineer Tom Urquhart, PE



January 4, 2024

City of Everett, Facilities and Property Management
Everett HVAC Projects — Everett Station
Engineering Services Proposal

Page 3

Assumptions/Qualifiers

1.

wnN

Nouhk

10.
11.
12.
13.
14,
15.

16.
17.

We assume that as-builts of the building and the mechanical and electrical systems are available,
and are reasonably accurate. We have included time for field reviews of the buildings but not
time to create as-builts of the existing systems.

Any past hazardous material surveys will be provided by the City.

Fire sprinkler and Fire alarm system work will be covered by a performance specification with
design by the installing contractor.

No utility locates are included in our scope.

Our work is limited to systems inside the building footprint.

We assume that the existing electrical service is adequate to support to project work.

No unusual or detrimental conditions exist at the area of work requiring any analysis or design
consideration by us (e.g. existing code violations, power quality issues, existing failed
components, etc.).

Permit fees are not included. Note that the efforts to respond to resolve permit comments are
included in this proposal.

Commissioning specifications are for code required commissioning (done by a firm independent
of the installing HVAC/Controls contractor). Additional levels of project commissioning may be
provided at the City’s request.

We will provide you AutoCAD as-builts (based on contractor mark-ups) at the completion of the
project.

If there are city facility design standards we are to adhere to, we will be provided those in writing
prior to us starting our design.

We assume that you will review our progress submittals and final design documents to confirm
their design intent is being met.

No construction will begin or ordering of materials will begin until all permits have been obtained
and permit comments resolved.

Project will not be bid until all permit comments have been resolved.

Support of a formal Value Engineering process is not included.

LEED and related processes are not included.

A calculation to evaluate compliance with the State Clean Building Performance Standard (CBPS)
is included in the basic services. However, if a building does not comply with the CBPS, the
efforts to identify and design these additional measures needed to comply are not included.
These efforts, including Energy Modelling for the CBPS, are not included but can be provided if
needed as an added service.

We appreciate this opportunity to work with you; Let us know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,
Hultz| BHU Engineers Inc.

e

Michael Tagles, PE
Associate Principal

Attachments:  Hourly Rates, 1 page



Huirz X BHU

engineers in

2024 HOURLY BILLING RATES

Principal $225.00
Associate Principal $185.00
Senior Engineer $ 160.00
Senior Project Manager $ 155.00
Project Engineer $ 150.00
Project Manager $135.00
Senior Designer $120.00
Project Designer $110.00
CAD Technician S 100.00
Clerical $ 70.00

1111 Fawcett Avenue, Suite 100 « Tacoma, Washington 98401
T 253.383.3257 o F 253.383.3283 « general@hultzbhu.com



EXHIBIT B
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
(ATTACHED)

Exhibit D



Huirz T BHU

engineers inc

ENGINEERING TEAM

RFQ No. 2023-093

Statement of Qualifications

CONTACT INFORMATION

Rick Hultz, President
rickh@hultzbhu.com | 253.383.3257



SECTION 1 | QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

Hultz|BHU Engineers is a mechanical/electrical engineering consulting firm,
located in Tacoma, Washington. Established in 1990, Hultz|BHU Engineers has
been providing innovative, sustainable, and quality engineering for decades.
Hultz|BHU Engineers is especially experienced in handling unique projects
involving phased construction, alterations to existing facilities, and work in
occupied buildings.

We specialize primarily in municipal facilities, where we are working with long
term facilities, and often those with limited budgets; requiring careful planning
and efficient solutions. We understand that the choices we make, and the
designs we create, will be with Owners long into the future. So we evaluate
carefully our decisions and work closely with Owners and their staff.

Our work includes all types of building mechanical and electrical systems, life
cycle cost analysis, building assessments, cost estimating, and commissioning
work for all types of public facilities. Our projects have included pre-design
studies, remodels, additions, miscellaneous mechanical and electrical repairs, as
well as new facilities.

We have a high degree of proficiency in evaluating field conditions and designing
project remodels and specific system replacements. Our designs are innovative,
but also practical, and are created to suit each client’s unique situation and
budget.

Mechanical systems we have designed include HVAC systems, boiler systems,

chiller systems, steam piping, plumbing systems, specialized exhaust systems, fueling systems, shop piping systems, fire
protection systems, energy management systems, as well as other specialized mechanical systems.

SERVICES PERFORMED

CONSULTING MECHANICAL

 Sustainable Design » Heating, Ventilation, and Air

Conditioning Systems (HVAC)

« Fire Sprinkler & Suppression
Systems

« Commissioning
» Value Analysis

» Value Engineering
- . - Controls
 Constructability Review i .
) ) « Boiler & Chiller Plant Systems
« Energy Audits & Modeling )
) ) » Hydronic
« Life Cycle Cost Analysis ) )
. o * Plumbing System Design
» Phasing Coordination o
i  Specialized Exhaust Systems
* Infrastructure Planning

« LEED® Coordination
 Feasibility Studies

» Heat Recovery
« Indoor Air Quality

. » Shop Piping Systems
» Energy Code Compliance o
)  Fuel Piping
» Project Management o
o » Steam Piping
» Cost Estimating ) )
« Domestic Water Service &

» Construction Administration Distribution

 Existing Conditions Assessment « Energy Management Control

 Bid Phase Services Systems

» Schematic Design - Utility Rebate Coordination

» Code Review & Analysis

ELECTRICAL

Electrical Power Distribution
Systems

Generator Systems
Photovoltaic Systems

Site Power & Signal Utilities
Interior/Exterior Lighting Design

Interior/Exterior Lighting
Analysis

Communication Systems:
Voice/Data Signaling
(Telephone, Fiber Optics,
Ethernet, LAN Systems)

Fire Alarm System Planning &
Design

Lighting Controls

Security & Access Control
Systems

Closed Circuit Television
Systems

Intercom & Clock Program
Systems

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 2



SECTION 1 | QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

CITY OF EVERETT

|
Huirz T BHU

engineers inc

Rick Hultz, PE
Project Manager & Principal-in-Charge

MECHANICAL ELECTRICAL
Michael Tagles, PE, Tom Urquhart, PE
LEED AP BD+C Electrical Principal
Associate Mechanical Principal
Tiffany Roberts Neil Morse
Senior Mechanical Engineer Electrical Engineer

ARCHITECTURAL

CORNERSTONE

ARCHITECTURAL GROUP

Steve Barnes, AlA
Project Architect

STRUCTURAL

PCS STRUCTURAL

SOLUTIONS
Luke Heath, SE
Structural Principal

Hultz|BHU Engineers will be acting as the Prime Consultant for the three HVAC projects for the City of Everett. Over
the years, we have been involved in the mechanical and electrical remodels, replacements, repairs, and upgrades to
numerous municipal and government facilities. Our previous work has provided us with exposure to all types of project
requirements and procedures, providing consistent and strong mechanical systems that fit your city’s needs.

As the Project Manager and Principal-in-Charge, Rick Hultz will oversee and manage all personnel throughout the project.
Having over forty years of experience in project management and the design of mechanical systems, Rick is a critical
asset to our team.

Our proposed Mechanical team includes Michael Tagles and Tiffany Roberts. They will be responsible for the specific
design of this project’'s HVAC system, working closely with the City of Everett staff. Both team members have extensive
experience with the facilities proposed, and understand the unique needs that these library and public safety facilities
require. Our team also includes, Tom Urquhart as the Electrical Principal who will oversee all electrical work, as well as
Neil Morse, Electrical Engineer, who will be responsible for the necessary electrical system upgrades for these HVAC
replacements. We have also included a Project Architect and Structural Engineer to support our efforts in successfully
completing these projects. All of our team members have completed numerous projects like this in the past.

By organizing our team in this manner, we are able to provide the City of Everett with the experience required for these
types of project. With our MEP team “In-House”, we can establish constant communication within our firm, and are able to
successfully complete these projects in a timely manner. Our team provides the knowledge, skill, and capacity to complete
these HVAC projects for your city. Years of experience, an extensive number of successful similar projects, as well as the
knowledge of these types of system replacements is what we will bring to this project.

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 3



YEARS WITH HULTZ|BHU
32 Years

EDUCATION/REGISTRATION

B.S., Mechanical Engineering,
University of Washington, 1981

Professional Mechanical Engineer:
Washington 1985, Oregon 1988,
Colorado 1999, lllinois 2000,
California 2005, Florida 2017,
Hawaii 2017, Texas 2018, Arizona
2019, Idaho 2020, New Mexico
2021, Nevada 2021

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

Member, National Society of
Professional Engineers (NSPE)

Member, American Society of
Mechanical Engineers (ASME)

Member, American Society of
Heating, Refrigeration, and Air
Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE)

Member, Society of Fire Protection
Engineers (SFPE)

SECTION 1 | QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

Rick Hultz, PE
Project Manager & Principal-in-Charge

Rick Hultz has been active in the design of building mechanical systems for
more than forty years, working as principal engineer for Hultz & Associates
and Hultz|BHU Engineers for the last thirty-two years, and prior to that as lead
mechanical engineer for another local architectural/engineering firm.

Rick’s experience includes the design of building HVAC systems, exhaust
systems, boiler/chiller plants, plumbing systems, fire protection systems,

and controls. In addition, he provides energy studies, cost estimating, and
construction reviews. His projects have ranged from as large as 500,000 square
feet, involving multiple buildings with phased construction, as well as numerous
remodels and additions.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

* Kitsap County Jail | HYAC Replacement
Role: Project Manager & Principal-in-Charge

* Pierce County | Remann Hall | HYAC Replacement
Role: Project Manager & Principal-in-Charge

* City of Tacoma | Police Fleet Warehouse Facility | HVYAC Replacement
Role: Principal-in-Charge

* Tacoma Public Library | HVYAC Replacement at 3 Libraries
Role: Principal-in-Charge

e WMD | Camp Murray | Emergency Operations Center | HVAC Improvements
Role: Project Manager & Principal-in-Charge

* Lakehaven | Lakota Maintenance Building | HVAC Replacement & Re-Roof
Role: Principal-in-Charge

* City of Forks | Correctional Center | HYAC Replacement
Role: Project Manager & Principal-in-Charge

* Tacoma Dome & Exhibition Center | Mechanical Renovation
Role: Project Manager & Principal-in-Charge

* Pierce County | Spanaway Sheriff Precinct | Improvements
Role: Principal-in-Charge

* Northshore Parks & Rec | Northshore Senior Center | HVYAC Replacement
Role: Principal-in-Charge

* Everett Community College | Olympus Hall | HVAC Replacement
Role: Principal-in-Charge

* SPS | Lafayette Elementary School | Seismic & HVAC Upgrades
Role: Principal-in-Charge

* Pierce County | 950 Fawcett Building | HVAC Improvements
Role: Project Manager & Principal-in-Charge

* Longview SD | Mark Morris High School | HVAC Replacement
Role: Principal-in-Charge

DSHS | Rainier School | Central Kitchen | HYAC Replacement
Role: Project Manager & Principal-in-Charge

City of Yakima | Municipal Building | HVAC Improvements
Role: Project Manager & Principal-in-Charge

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 4



YEARS WITH HULTZ|BHU
28 Years

EDUCATION/REGISTRATION

B.S., Mechanical Engineering,
University of Washington, 1994

Professional Mechanical Engineer:
Washington 2011, Georgia 2021,
Oregon 2023

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

Member, National Fire Protection
Agency (NFPA)

Member, American Society of
Mechanical Engineers (ASME)

Member, American Society of
Heating, Refrigeration, and Air
Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE)

LEED® Accredited Design
Professional, BD+C

SECTION 1 | QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

Michael Tagles, PE, LEED AP BD+C
Associate Mechanical Principal

Michael Tagles has worked on the design of a variety of building mechanical
systems for twenty-nine years, working with Hultz|BHU Engineers for the

past twenty-eight of those. His designs have included heating, ventilation, air
conditioning, plumbing, specialized exhaust systems, and associated engineering
analyses. Michael is a LEED® Accredited Professional, and has worked on a
number of projects that have received high LEED® certification status.

Michael has experience that includes working directly for a Contractor as the
on-site engineer to ensure project compliance with project documents, and also
as part of the Owner’'s A/E Team in preparing complete plans and specifications
for bidding. He routinely works with the appropriate utility providers in order to
improve the energy efficiency of each project.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

* Tacoma Public Library | Main Branch | Mechanical Renovation

* DSHS | Fircrest School | HVAC Upgrades at 7 Cottages

* Centralia College | Library/WAH Building | Mechanical Upgrades

* Tacoma Public Library | HVAC Replacement at 3 Libraries

* Everett Community College | Olympus Hall | HVAC Replacement

* Pierce County Jail | 4th Floor | HVAC Replacement

* DSHS | Echo Glen Children’s Center | Cottage HVAC Upgrades

* Capitol Campus | Office Building 2 | Controls Upgrades

* Everett Community College | Nippon Business Institute | HVAC Replacement
* City of Tacoma | Fire Station #11 | HVAC Replacement

* Shoreline Community College | Buildings 2000/4000 | HVAC Upgrades

* DSHS | Echo Glen Children’s Center | Cottage HVAC Control Upgrades
* Pierce County Parks & Recreation | Sprinker Recreation Center | HVAC Upgrades
* Tacoma Community College | Buildings 7, 8, & 18 | HVAC Replacement
* Allenmore Hospital | Emergency Department | Mechanical Improvements
* City of Tacoma | Fire Station #13 | HVAC Replacement

* Pierce County | County/City Building | Mechanical Renovation

* DNR | Forks Administration Building | Mechanical System Improvements
* University of Puget Sound | Schneebeck Hall | HYAC Replacement

* USPS | Tacoma Carrier Annex | HVAC Replacement

* Capitol Campus | Emergency Operations Center | HVAC Upgrades

* Olympic College | Bremerton Campus | Mechanical Improvements

* City of Tacoma | New Police Headquarters

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 5



YEARS WITH HULTZ|BHU
19 Years

EDUCATION/REGISTRATION

B.S., Mechanical Engineering,
University of Washington, 2002

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

Member, American Society of
Heating, Refrigeration, and Air
Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE)

SECTION 1 | QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

Tiffany Roberts
Senior Mechanical Engineer

Tiffany Roberts has been the design engineer for numerous public safety and
municipal projects; designing HVAC systems, plumbing systems, controls, boiler
and chiller plants and exhaust systems. She has also been responsible for the
project specifications, cost estimates, and construction.

From initial project scheduling, code compliance, heating and cooling load
calculations, to plumbing and HVAC design, construction administration and final
building inspections, Tiffany has worked on a wide variety of projects including
schools, colleges, military facilities, office buildings, churches and retail buildings.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
* Tacoma Public Library | Moore Branch | HVAC Upgrades

* WMD | Camp Murray | Building 34 | HVAC Improvements

* Thurston County | Emergency Services Center | HVAC Replacement

* Tacoma Dome & Exhibition Hall | Mechanical Renovation

* Centralia College | Administration Building | HVAC System Replacement
* WMD | Camp Murray | Building 15 | HVAC Improvements

* Northshore Parks & Recreation | Northshore Senior Center | HVAC Replacement
* Pierce County | Spanaway Sheriff Precinct | Improvements

* USPS | Pullman Post Office | HVYAC Replacement

* North Thurston SD | Seven Oaks Elementary School | Controls Upgrades
* WMD | Camp Murray | Buildings 1 & 20 | HVAC Replacement

* USPS | Dayton Post Office | HVAC Replacement

* Thurston County | Building 3 - Administration | HVAC Replacement

* WMD | Camp Murray | Buildings 32 | HVAC Replacement

* DSHS | Western State Hospital | Buildings 32 & 33 | HVAC Improvements
* WSDOT | Everett Maintenance Facility

* WMD | Joint Base Lewis-McChord | Building 3106 | HVAC Upgrades

* North Thurston SD | Meadows, Horizons & Seven Oaks Elementary Schools |
HVAC Improvements

* CKSD | Brownsville Elementary School | HVAC Replacement

* Centralia College | Administration Building | HVAC System Replacement
* CKSD | Olympic High School | HVAC Improvements

* CKSD | Pinecrest Elementary School | HVAC Improvements

* CKSD | Central Kitsap High School | HVAC Improvements

* NTSD | River Ridge High School | Mechanical Improvements

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 6



O
A 3

YEARS WITH HULTZ|BHU
32 Years

EDUCATION/REGISTRATION

B.S., Electrical Engineering, Virginia
Military Institute, 1972

Professional Electrical Engineer:
Washington 1979, Oregon 1983,
Colorado 1995, Arizona 1997,
Texas 2002, North Carolina 2007,
Florida 2015, New Mexico 2021,
California 2021

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS

Member, National Fire Protection
Agency (NFPA)

Member, National Society of
Professional Engineers (NSPE)

SECTION 1 | QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

Tom Urquhart, PE
Electrical Principal

Tom Urquhart has more than forty years of experience as an electrical design
and consulting engineer. His experience includes condition assessment, cost
estimating, specification writing, project document preparation, design, and
construction administration for small, medium, and large projects involving
electrical work covered under Divisions 26, 27, and 28 of the Construction
Specification Institute Manual of Practice.

After serving four years with the U.S. Air Force as an officer attached to a Civil
Engineering Squadron, Tom has since been with Hultz|BHU Engineers. He

has performed studies, code analysis, cost estimating, planning and design of
renovations, upgrades, and new construction for electrical systems that include
lighting, power distribution (above and below 600 volts), structured cabling,
security, and life safety systems. Tom has been the electrical engineer of record
for numerous school districts, as well as college and universities, commercial,
industrial, and institutional buildings.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
* Centralia College | Library/WAH Building | Mechanical Upgrades

* Everett Community College | Nippon Business Institute | HVAC Replacement
e City of Yakima | Municipal Building | HVAC Improvements

* Tacoma Public Library | Moore Branch | HVAC & Lighting Upgrades

* Kitsap County Jail | HYAC Replacement

* Ocean Park Library | Addition

* DSHS | Echo Glen Children’s Center | Cottage HVAC Upgrades

* Thurston County | Emergency Services Center | HVYAC Replacement

* University of Puget Sound | Collins Library | Remodel

* Capitol Campus | Emergency Operations Center | HVAC Upgrades

* DSHS | Fircrest School | HVAC Upgrades at 7 Cottages

* WMD | Camp Murray | Building 34 | HVAC Improvements

* Tacoma Public Library | Main Branch | Remodel

* Lakehaven | Lakota Maintenance Building | HYAC Replacement & Re-Roof
* Tacoma SD | Mann Elementary School | Library | HYAC Improvements

* WMD | Camp Murray | Buildings 1 & 20 | HVAC Replacement

DSHS | Yakima Valley School | HVYAC Replacement & Repairs

* City of Tacoma | Fire Station #5 | Remodel

DOC | Stafford Creek Correctional Center | Electrical Improvements

* Centralia College | Student Center | HVAC Upgrades & Re-Roof

City of Olympia | Old City Hall/Police Station | Remodel

* WMD | Emergency Management Center | Modernization
Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 7



YEARS WITH HULTZ|BHU
19 Years

EDUCATION/REGISTRATION

Journeyman Electrician, Washington
State, 1990

Electrical Administrator, Washington
State, 2000

Master of Electrical, Washington
State, 2003

SECTION 1 | QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

Neil Morse
Electrical Engineer

Neil Morse has over thirty-three years of experience in the electrical construction
trade as an electrical installer, contractor and designer with his past fifteen years
designing with Hultz|BHU Engineers.

His experience includes planning, estimating, design, installation, supervision,
and inspection for electrical systems associated with educational, healthcare,
residential, commercial, instrumentation and automation. Continuing education
courses in Electrical Code, Theory, Grounding and low voltage systems.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
* Tacoma Public Library | HVYAC Replacement at 3 Libraries

* Pierce County | Spanaway Sheriff Precinct | Improvements

* WSP | Seattle Crime Lab | Electrical Improvements

* Pacific Lutheran University | Library Remodel

* WDFW | Mill Creek Office | Heat Pump Replacement

* WMD | Camp Murray | Building 34 | HVAC Improvements

* DSHS | Fircrest School | HVAC Upgrades at 7 Cottages

* USPS | Redmond Carrier Annex | HVAC Improvements

* WMD | Camp Murray | Buildings 1 & 20 | HVAC Replacement

* Lakehaven | Lakota Maintenance Building | HYAC Replacement & Re-Roof
e DSHS | Rainier School | Central Kitchen | HVAC Replacement

* Pierce County Parks & Recreation | Sprinker Recreation Center | HVAC Upgrades
* USPS | Tacoma Carrier Annex | HYAC Replacement

* WMD | Camp Murray | Buildings 32 | HVAC Replacement

* Bellevue Fire Station #2 | HVAC Improvements

* Thurston County | Emergency Services Center | HVYAC Replacement

* DSHS | Rainier School | Cottage Air Conditioning Addition

* Kittitas County Jail | Expansion

* DOC | Cedar Creek Corrections Center | Electrical Improvements

* WSDOT | Tumwater Materials Lab | HYAC Access Controls

* Allenmore Hospital | Emergency Department | Electrical Improvements
* Kelso SD | Stadium | Mechanical Improvements

* Tacoma Community College | Buildings 9 & 20 | HVAC Replacement

* Centralia College | Student Center | HVAC Upgrades & Re-Roof

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 8



YEARS WITH CORNERSTONE
30 Years

EDUCATION/REGISTRATION
B.Arch, Washington State University
Registered Architect: WA

YEARS WITH PCS
21 Years

EDUCATION/REGISTRATION

B.S., Civil Engineering, 2001,
Washington State University

M.S., Civil Engineering, 2002,
Washington State University

Structural Engineer: Washington,
Oregon

.
=~
S

SECTION 1 | QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

St B , AlIA ’
Prﬁ}’eect Aarrcnhitsect " COI'IlerStOIle

Steve has over thirty-five years of design WA icuirecTuraL cRour
and architectural management experience. He shows strong leadership and
relationship building skills in each project he works on. Steve’s thoroughness
and focus on providing constructible designs contributes to his project’s success.
Steve has extensive experience working with government agencies and using
innovation to maximize budgets.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

* Central Kitsap School District | Jenne Wright Administration Building | Roofing
& Exterior Repairs

* Highline Public Schools | District Performing Arts Center
* Central Kitsap School District | Envelope Repairs at 11 Schools
e USPS | Bellevue Carrier Annex | Conversion & Expansion

* Highline Public Schools | Hilltop Elementary School | Modernization & Addition
* |ssaquah School District | Briarwood Elementary School | Replacement
e USPS | Seattle Main Post Office

* Highline Public Schools | School District | Hazel Valley Elementary School |
Replacement

e USPS | Tacoma P&DC | Improvements

Luke Heath, SE

Structural Principal .: m
Luke has been with PCS Structural Solutions since 2002 Structural Solutions
and has spent his career matching architectural vision

with incredible creativity for structural solutions. Luke leads structural design

for a variety of civic projects including 500+ RTU/Mechanical support projects
throughout the region, working for owners, architects and mechanical contractors
and engineers. With this valuable experience, Luke brings an open mind and

options for supporting equipment.

As principal-in-charge of structural engineering, Luke will provide consistency,
communication, and leadership of structural design throughout all phases of each
project. He will direct the quality, budget, and schedule aspects of the structural
design.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

* City of Orting | City Hall | HVAC Upgrades

* Federal Way City Hall Rooftop Mechanical Unit Replacement

* Bellarmine Preparatory School | Library | Mechanical Unit Support

* PeaceHealth Medical Center | Inpatient HVAC Upgrades

* Weyerhaeuser Campus | Center Building | RTU/Condenser Support

* Muckleshoot Indian Tribe | Muckleshoot Casino | HYAC Upgrades

* PeaceHealth Saint Joseph Medical Center | Cooling Tower Replacement

* Auburn School District | Admin Building | Mechanical Unit Support

* Kent Corporate Center | RTU Replacement

* Bethel School District | Educational Service Center | Mechanical Rooftop Support

* Central Building | HVAC Replacement
Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 9



SECTION 2 | APPROACH & CAPABILITY

October 24, 2023

City of Everett Procurement
2930 Wetmore Avenue
Suite 9E

Everett, Washington 98201

Attention: Theresa Bauccio-Teschlog, MBA, NIGP-CPP, CPPB

Subject: RFQ No. 2023-093
HVAC and Controls Replacement

To Whom It May Concern:

We appreciate this opportunity to submit our qualifications for your review. We would like to be
considered for the City of Everett's HVAC and Controls Replacement projects at the Everett Main Library,
South Precinct Complex and the Everett Station.

We are a mechanical and electrical engineering firm located in Tacoma, Washington, specializing in

serving County, City, State, and similar public and municipal agencies. We have over thirty years of

experience in designing mechanical, plumbing, and electrical systems for government and municipal
buildings and a variety of related institutional facilities.

Our firm is experienced in handling complete project design, bidding, and construction administration for
projects similar to the size and scope of these three projects. We have successfully completed numerous
HVAC and Control replacement projects for numerous Counties, Cities, and State agencies throughout
Washington. We believe that a successful project can be carried out no matter the distance in locations,
and are confident in our ability to quickly respond in person to address any project concerns or issues.

Our many years of experience makes our firm familiar with the special requirements involved in these
types of projects. We understand what is expected in order to successfully and thoroughly complete these
projects. Hultz|BHU Engineers provides the knowledge, skill and capacity to complete the engineering
required for these three projects. They are committed to working in partnership with the City of Everett
staff in order to meet all design needs and overcome any challenges to ensure your satisfaction.

We thank you for your consideration and hope we have the opportunity to work with you.

Sincerely,
Hultz|BHU Engineers, Inc.

Rick Hultz, PE | President
rickh@hultzbhu.com

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 10



SECTION 2 | APPROACH & CAPABILITY

Western State Hospital - Building 22 Western State Hospital - Building 22
New Kitchen/Commissary Rooftop VRF & DOAS Units

Nisqually Indian Tribe
Health & Wellness Center

Clover Park School District City of Tacoma City of Yelm
Hudtloff Middle School Police Department Headquarters New Community Center

AVAILABILITY

Hultz|BHU Engineers is careful and strategic in planning our project workload. We currently have few projects scheduled
to take place during the time frame of these three projects.

Completing multiple projects within the same time frame requires effective project management and resource allocation.
We believe that communication and organization within our firm, as well as with you, the City of Everett, is key in being
able to staff various projects over a 2-3 year span. Regular monitoring and tracking of each project’s progress, along with
timely adjustments and risk management, are essential to keep these projects on track.

Ultimately, our firm’s ability to complete multiple projects within the same time frame relies on efficient planning,
coordination, and adaptability. We also understand that being involved with all stakeholders in this process is key to
making each project a success.

Our proposed team members are dedicated and available immediately to accommodate the engineering needs for the
City of Everett’s HVAC and Control Replacement projects. We have worked on numerous similar projects in the past, and
plan to use our same experienced engineers and qualified support staff on our future projects.

As a team, we have the understanding of the unique requirements and scheduling needed in order to successfully
complete these projects.

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 11



SECTION 2 | APPROACH & CAPABILITY

APPROACH

We know that it takes a team effort to achieve success, and having the right team with the right project approach really
matters. Our project approach will be to establish a detail work breakdown structure and implement Project Controls to
meet the goal of the project. This project is unique because the system improvements and repairs must be performed with
minimum impact to occupant usage and facility operations.

1.

SCHEDULE, BUDGET, AND SEQUENCING APPROACH AND IMPACTS:

We will work collaboratively with the City of Everett to develop the scheduling methodology, scheduling tools, and how
to integrate with all three projects. Regular updates and adjustments to cost estimates and scheduling are necessary
as the project progresses and new information becomes available. Effective cost estimation and forecasting enables
our firm to allocate resources appropriately, make informed decisions, and ensure the financial viability of construction
projects. The ability to estimate and forecast construction costs is crucial for effective project planning and budgeting.
It involves analyzing various factors such as project scope, materials, labor, equipment, permits, and potential risks.

We will develop detailed schedules, including a detailed list activities, activity durations, define dependencies,

and identify the critical path (and near critical paths). The schedule will include all deliverables, and dates for all
project tasks. Monthly schedule reports would be submitted to the City of Everett staff, which will summarize work
accomplished, work planned, actual expenditures, and planned expenditures. Weekly design team meetings would
review design work progress of each consultant, discuss schedule, impacts, and resolve design and schedule issues.

If during the design, any of the schedules “slip”, we will propose strategies to get the projects back on schedule.
Strategies would include expediting upcoming work, reviewing methods to reduce time for various activities
(accelerate the design), change items that were in series to parallel, remove a specific work item that is severely
impacting the overall project schedule.

DESIGN APPROACH AND IMPACTS:
Some of the key items we see to making a project successful include:

* Proper project management and scheduling is a key part of a project. We have experience with managing
similar projects as the three described in the scope of work.

* A concept/kick-off meeting is important as it will identify (and allow discussion for) project goals, concepts for the
alternatives analysis, design criteria, budget, project management techniques/tools, schedule, and allow for an
interaction and forming of a cooperative team. This meeting would also be used to begin discussions on facility
operations and concerns.

* Afield assessment of the existing conditions and a review of as-built documentation is another important
activity. This will allow us to form concepts on how these systems can remain operational while new systems
are installed.

* Analyzing alternatives will be an important activity to confirm the design direction and if other options present
any advantages. We have performed numerous life cycle cost analysis (LCCA) and are experienced in
evaluating the associated first costs, maintenance cost, replacement costs, energy costs, and discount factors
for municipal projects.

* Since the decisions reached on all three of these projects will be long lasting, we will be reviewing green
building concepts as part of our LCCA work, and on-going throughout each project.

* Project controls will be utilized to keep the projects in scope, budget and on schedule. To ensure the design
meets your requirements, a design quality control manager will be assigned and a Design Quality Control
(DQC) plan shall be developed. The plan will require an independent technical review (ITR) of each category
of the scope of work. The ITR staff will perform a detail examination of plans, specifications and cost estimates.
The ITR will recommend improvements to the design to ensure the scope of work is being met in a manner
that can be bid and constructed. The DQC will then ensure back checks are implemented to insure the ITR
comments are addressed. ITR will be included in the schedule.

3. GC/CM DELIVERY:

We have worked on numerous projects in a GC/CM arrangement. Our success has been working closely with the
GC/CM and the project sub-contractors to review the project scope, schedule, costs, and related key elements.
Communication with them throughout is critical. The GC/CM process will allow for a smooth integrated project and

has our full support.
Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 12



NTSD - New

SECTION 2 | APPROACH & CAPABILITY

Capitol Campus Tacoma Dome & Exhibition Center
John L. O’Brien Building Mechanical & Electrical Renovation

—

Salish Middle School NTSD - North Thurston High School NTSD - New Salish Middle School

Mezzanine AHUs Modernization Mechanical Room
4. IDENTIFYING POTENTIAL CONFLICTS & DISRUPTIONS TO THE AFFECTED FACILITY OPERATIONS:

5.

We understand that the Everett Main Library, South Precinct and Everett Station facilities are occupied, and operations
cannot be interrupted. There may need to be “work-around solutions” in place to keep these facilities functional.
Disruptions which could occur due to project work on equipment or facilities must be prevented or mitigated.

There are a number of ways that we will handle these concerns:

* Prepare and review project schedules, weekly schedules, and daily work tasks with Contractor and staff to fully
understand work being accomplished and possible impacts.

* Prepare a design that allows the existing systems to remain in place (i.e. operational) while new are installed
parallel to existing (to the greatest extent possible).

* Have pre-construction, weekly, and (as needed) daily meetings with the Contractor and staff to confirm work
scope and potential impacts to the facilities.

* Review “what-if” scenarios with work-around solutions in place to resolve issues.

* Coordinate with City of Everett staff for communication to facility workers so there is an awareness of the
project, potential interruptions, how to communicate when they occur and the plans in place to resolve

e Confirm with Contractor that all materials are on hand for critical equipment and critical installation periodically.

PERMITS, REGULATORY COMPLIANCE & PROJECT CHALLENGES:

We are experienced in working in all of the jurisdictions involved in these types of projects and are familiar with their
code, and submittal procedures. We will establish as part of our design reports the governing codes and standards
and review those with City of Everett staff. We also propose to have pre-submittal meetings with local jurisdictions to
confirm an understanding of the project scope and verify their concerns will be handled.

We feel that the largest challenge to the project is working in an occupied facility, and one that cannot have operations
disrupted. We have a long list of experience in working such projects in essential facilities which has included State
prisons, county jails, hospitals, and 911 emergency centers. Other projects have included transit facilities, office
buildings, maintenance shops, and schools. We think an essential element in handling these is having very explicit
phasing plans that clearly indicate how new work is phased in and old is phased out. We think that for a number of the
systems they can be installed while the existing systems are left in place. Allowing for the new system to be installed
and operational prior to the existing system being demolished.

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 13



SECTION 2 | APPROACH & CAPABILITY

APPROACH TO PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENTS (PLAs) & COMMUNITY WORKFORCE
AGREEMENTS (CWAs)

We think PLAs and CWAs can be beneficial. We would propose to review with you a full list of the pros and cons and
jointly decide on the best approach.

Some initial thoughts:
PLAs:

Can offer predictability to the labor force by reducing the likelihood of a strike or other labor dispute that could disrupt
the project. They can also help manage costs by establishing predetermined labor costs to give more certainty about
labor expenses and prevent cost overruns. The PLAs could also include the requirement to use highly skilled and
trained workers, which can contribute to the overall quality of the project

CWAs:

These can have provisions that prioritize hiring local workers from the community and ensuring diversity within the
labor force which can contribute to the economic health of the community. CWAs can also require local educational
programs or other social aspects which can aide in developing good relationships with the community.

Overall, PLAs and CWAs can bring about economic, social, and community benefits. As a team, we will consider the
unique characteristics of each of these projects and the perspectives of all stakeholders involved.

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 14



SECTION 3 | PERFORMANCE

, ji;; SEATTLE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

LAFAYETTE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL | HVAC UPGRADES
Company Name: Seattle Public Schools
Address: 2645 California Avenue SW, Seattle, Washington 98116

Point of Contact: Tom Gut, Senior Project Manager
twgut@seattleschools.org, 206.252.0709

Start Date: 2019 Completion Date: 2021
Contract Value: $200,000 Construction Value: $3.5 million

Description: The Lafayette Elementary School improvements included the
installation of a complete new HVAC system. This new system incorporated
stand-alone air handlers in each classroom with MERV 13 filters, CO2 controls,
optimum start/stop, and full fresh air economizer ability.

Each classroom has its own dedicated air handling system using variable speed
high quality fan coil units. The building’s indoor air quality can be maintained
without re-circulating air between spaces.

New central high-efficiency boilers were installed, as well as new hot water
piping, new pumps, and new direct digital controls (DDC). New fire sprinkler
systems and seismic improvements were also part of this project.

The work also included an evaluation for the new HVAC ventilation system
with the current pandemic in mind, including improved filtration and increased
ventilation rates.

PIERCE COUNTY | 950 FAWCETT BUILDING | HVAC REPLACEMENT
Company Name: Pierce County
Address: 950 Fawcett Avenue, Tacoma, Washington 98402

Point of Contact: Tim Chan, Construction Project Manager
tchan@co.pierce.wa.us, 253.798.6702

Start Date: 2018 Completion Date: 2019
Contract Value: $185,000 Construction Value: $1.65 million

Description: Project involved a complete new HVAC system for this three-story
office building in downtown Tacoma, Washington. The building was occupied
during the project with construction phased through each floor of the building.

The new mechanical system uses a high efficiency VRF (variable refrigerant
flow) system with a DOAS (dedicated outside air system) with energy recovery
for fresh air. Project included added rooftop steel supporting structure to
accommodate new rooftop air cooled condensers and the DOAS air handler.

Hultz/BHU Engineers was prime on the project, handling all contract document
preparation, bidding document distribution, responsibility criteria review, and
construction phase administration.

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 15



SECTION 3 | PERFORMANCE

KOMACHIN MIDDLE SCHOOL | RENOVATION
Company Name: North Thurston Public Schools
Address: 3650 College Street SE, Lacey, Washington 98503

Point of Contact: Tony Matiatos, Assistant Director, Construction & Design
amatiatos@nthurston.k12.wa.us, 360.412.4500

Start Date: 2020 Completion Date: 2023
Contract Value: $453,000 Construction Value: $29 million

Description: Remodel of a 110,000 square foot middle school with installation
of a complete new HVAC system and DDC controls. The middle school has
been occupied during construction, with phased construction over two years.
New systems include multiple fan coil units, central boiler, central chiller, energy
recovery DOAS units, and open protocol DDC controls.

KITSAP COUNTY JAIL | HVAC REPLACEMENT
Company Name: Kitsap County
Address: 614 Division Street, Port Orchard, Washington 98366

Point of Contact: Glen McNeill, Project Manager
gsmcneill@kitsap.gov, 360.337.4789

Start Date: 2022 Completion Date: 2024
Contract Value: $500,000 Construction Value: $7.5 million

Description: Replacement of the complete HVAC system and controls for this
multi-story jail in Port Orchard. New equipment includes heat recovery units,
multizone units, VRF system, engineered smoke control system and new DDC
controls.

Project is phased to allow for full occupancy during construction.

. - - OLYMPUS HALL | HVAC REPLACEMENT
\ Company Name: Everett Community College
Address: 801 Wetmore Avenue, Everett, Washington 98020

Point of Contact: Jonathan Martin, DES Project Manager
Jjonathan.martin@des.wa.gov, 360.239.3350

Start Date: 2015 Completion Date: 2016
Contract Value: $160,000 Construction Value: $1.25 million

Description: Hultz/BHU provided the engineering for the HVAC system and
equipment upgrades, as well as the improvements to the electrical and fire alarm
system. The mechanical work included new gas fired high-efficiency boilers,
new rooftop air handling units, replacement of the existing ceiling, new ductwork,
and new DDC controls. Our in-house electrical team provided the necessary
connections required to accommodate the new system.

Hultz|BHU Engineers | Page 16



City of Everett
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS #2023-093

EVERETT MAIN LIBRARY HVAC and CONTROLS REPLACEMENT
SOUTH PRECINCT CONTROLS REPLACEMENT and MAINTENANCE
EVERETT STATION CONTROLS REPLACEMENT and MAINTENANCE

The undersigned hereby declares that he or she is duly authorized to complete and submit this Statement of
Qualifications and that the statements contained herein are true and correct as of the date set forth below.
Incomplete, incorrect or misleading information may be reason for a determination of non-responsibility by the City of
Everett.

Company Name:
Hultz/BHU Engineers, Inc.

Company Address:
1111 Fawcett Avenue, Suite 100
City: State: ZIP:
Tacoma Washington 98402
Tax ID #: UBI #:
91-1282644 601 589 566
Legal status of supplier organization, i.e., corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship.
Corporation

Diversity Certification (if applicable): O Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) (1 Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) [1 Women Business
Enterprise (WBE) [1 Minority Women Business Enterprise (MWBE) Certification number: N/A

Website: City of Everett Business License #
www.hultzbhu.com 66610

Supplier Contact Name (if different from Authorizing Official): Supplier Contact Title:

Supplier Contact Email: Supplier Contact Direct Phone:

Supplier Contact Address (if different from above):

City: State: ZIP:
Authorizing Official Name: Authorizing Official Title:
Rick Hultz President
Authorizing Official Email: Authorizing Official Phone:
rickh@hultzbhu.com 253.383.3257
Authorizing Official Signature* and Date:
l, )L October 24, 2023

*A signature means an original signature, a copy of an original signature, a PDF scan of an original signature, or a DocuSign/AdobeSign electronic
signature.

13




EVE RETT EVEERANSIT

WASHINGTON

City of Everett

Federal Transit
Administration
Clauses

Last updated: 1/13/2023




Federal Transit Administration Clauses

Table of Contents

W O N U s W DN R

W W W W W N N NN NNNNDNNNNRRPRR R R R R R @R§
PO 0P OO0 ®NO U S ®NPEODOOND O R ®N RO

SIMPLIFIED ACQUISITION THRESHOLD ......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciccc e 3
ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS......coiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt 3
BONDING REQUIREMENTS ..ottt 3
2L I I 4
BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS.....ciiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 4
BUILD AMERICA, BUY AMERICA ACT .ttt 4
CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS ..ottt 5
CHARTER SERVICE ...ttt s s aa e s b s sb s s b e e s na e sane e 5
CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (Over 150K) .....cccocereeniiniriieniiieienecienne 5
CIVIL RIGHTS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ..ottt s 5
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) ...c..cceeiririeeiinieeeentinieete sttt st st sre e sre e sne s e e 7
VETERAN'S EMPLOYMENT ..ottt sttt et s e st et en e neenne e 11
TERMINATION OF DBE SUBCONTRACTOR ..ottt 11
PREVAILING WAGE AND ANTI-KICKBACK.......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic s 12
CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS (40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 —3708)......cccocevvvenrerirvenrereenenn. 13
CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS FOR AWARDS NOT INVOLVING CONSTRUCTION..... 14
ENERGY CONSERVATION. ..ottt s s 15
FLY AMERICA ..o s s s be s ab s s 15
GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION ......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicc s 16
DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES (31 U.S.C. § 1352) ..eiiuieiiriieeeieeieeiesieeee e 17
NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY ...coviiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiicc e 17
PATENT RIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA L..ooii s 17
PRE-AWARD AND POST-DELIVERY AUDITS OF ROLLING STOCK PURCHASES ........cccciiiiiiiiiiiniiiciei 19
PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS.......cooiiviiiiiiiniiene 19
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS ......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiine e, 19
RECOVERED MATERIALS - RECYCLED PRODUCTS .....coiiiiiiiiiiie it 20
SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES .....oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 20
SCHOOL BUS OPERATIONS ...ttt s 20
SEISMIC SAFETY .o e b e s b s s e ba e s b e e s eaa e sabe s 21
SUBSTANCE ABUSE REQUIREMENTS ....ooiiiiiiiiiii it 21
TERMINATION ...ttt bbb s e e b s e s ab e e s b b e s b e s s ae e s saa e e sabe s 21
VIOLATION AND BREACH OF CONTRACT ....oiiiiiiiiiictiicics st 22
PROTEST AND APPEALS......ooiitii et 23
FEDERAL CHANGES ... 23



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

35. INCORPORATION OF FTATERMS ...ttt 24
36. TERMS OF THESE PROVISIONS AND COMPLIANCE.......cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciin e 24
37. CONTRACTOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY TO EXTEND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS TO LOWER TIER PARTICIPANTS . 25
38. TRAFFICKING OF PERSONS .....ooiiiiiiiiiiii s aa s 26
39. FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS ......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicciin e 26
41. NOTIFICATION OF LEGAL MATTERS ..ottt 27
42. SOLID WASTES ...ttt b e e b s b e s b e e b e s b e e s b e e e b b e s s b e e s aa e sabe s 28
43. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION. ..ottt 28
44, FEDERAL “S1 COIN” REQUIREMENTS.....utitiitetirietertetesteiestete ettt sttt st et b et eb e b e bt be st esenaenesnens 31
45. CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION ORDER ON REQUIREMENTS FOR PERSONS TO WEAR

MASKS WHILE ON CONVEYANCES AND AT TRANSPORTATION HUBS.......cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiic 31
46. ADA ACCESS ..o e 32



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

1.

SIMPLIFIED ACQUISITION THRESHOLD

Required Clauses in Third Party Contracts. In addition to other applicable provisions of federal law,
regulations, requirements, and guidance, all third-party contracts made by the Recipient under the Federal
award must contain provisions covering the following.

Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is the inflation adjusted amount
determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council
(Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. § 1908, or otherwise set by law, must address administrative,
contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide
for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. (Note that the simplified acquisition threshold determines
the procurement procedures that must be employed pursuant to 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317-200.327.) The
simplified acquisition threshold does not exempt a procurement from other eligibility or processes
requirements that may apply. For example, Buy America’s eligibility and process requirements apply to any
procurement in excess of $150,000. 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j)(13).)

ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included in
every tier contract.

The U.S. Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General of the United States, the state, or their
duly authorized representatives, access to all third party contract records (at any tier) as required under 49
U.S.C. § 5325(g); and (2) Sufficient access to all third party contract records (at any tier) as needed for
compliance with applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements or to assure proper management of
Underlying Agreement as determined by FTA.

A. Record Retention. The Contractor will retain, and will require its subcontractors of all tiers to retain,
complete and readily accessible records related in whole or in part to the contract,including, but not
limited to, data, documents, reports, statistics, sub-agreements, leases, subcontracts, arrangements,
other third party agreements of any type, and supporting materials related to those records.

B. Retention Period. The Contractor agrees to comply with the record retention requirements in
accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and
reports required under this Contract for a period of at not less than three (3) years after the date of
termination or expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising
from the performance of this Contract, in which case records shall be maintained until the disposition of
all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

C. Access to Records. The Contractor agrees to provide sufficient access to FTA and its contractors to
inspect and audit records and information related to performance of this contract as reasonably may be
required.

D. Access to the Sites of Performance. The Contractor agrees to permit FTA and its contractors’ access to
the sites of performance under this contract as reasonably may be required.

BONDING REQUIREMENTS - NOT APPLICABLE

Bonds are required for all construction or facility improvement contracts and subcontracts exceeding



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

4,
5.

the simplified acquisition threshold.

BUS TESTING - NOT APPLICABLE

BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS

This clause flows down and extends to all first-tier contractors and their contracts. It must be included in
every first-tier contract.

The contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C 5323(j) and 49 C.F.R. part 661, which provide that Federal
funds may not be obligated unless all steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA funded projects
are produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a
general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. § 661.7. Separate requirements for rolling stock are
set out at 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 C.F.R. § 661.11.

BUILD AMERICA, BUY AMERICA ACT

This clause flows down and extends to all first-tier contractors and their contracts. It must be included in
every first-tier contract.

The contractor agrees to comply with the Build America, Buy America Act. Construction materials used in
the Project are subject to the domestic preference requirement of the Build America, Buy America Act, Pub.
L. 117-58, div. G, tit. IX, §§ 70911 — 70927 (2021), as implemented by the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget, the U.S. Department of Transportation, and FTA. The Recipient acknowledges that this agreement is
neither a waiver of § 70914(a) nor a finding under § 70914(b).

A. Alliron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States — this means all manufacturing
processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United
States;

B. All manufactured products used in the project are produced in the United States—this means the
manufactured product was manufactured in the United States; and the cost of the components of the
manufactured product that are mined, produced, or manufactured in the United States is greater than
55 percent of the total cost of all components of the manufactured product, unless another standard for
determining the minimum amount of domestic content of the manufactured product has been
established under applicable law or regulation; and

C. All construction materials* are manufactured in the United States—this means that all manufacturing
processes for the construction material occurred in the United States.

*Excludes cement and cementitious materials, aggregates such as stone, sand, or gravel, or aggregate
binding agents or additives.

The Buy America preference only applies to articles, materials, and supplies that are consumed in,
incorporated into, or affixed to an infrastructure project. As such, it does not apply to tools, equipment, and
supplies, such as temporary scaffolding, brought to the construction site and removed at or before the
completion of the infrastructure project. Nor does a Buy America preference apply to equipment and
furnishings, such as movable chairs, desks, and portable computer equipment, that are used at or within the
finished infrastructure project, but are not an integral part of the structure or permanently affixed to the



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

infrastructure project.

CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS — NOT APPLICABLE

A. Cargo Preference - Use of United States-Flag Vessels

Include for all contracts in which ocean vessel is used to transport.

CHARTER SERVICE — NOT APPLICABLE

CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (Over
150K)

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included in
every tier contract.

The Contractor agrees:
1. It will not use any violating facilities;

2. It will report the use of facilities placed on or likely to be placed on the U.S. EPA “List of Violating
Facilities;”

3. It will comply with the inspection and other requirements of the Clean Air Act, asamended, (42 U.S.C. §§
7401 —-7671q); and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended, (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1388).

4. It will report violations must to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

10. CIVIL RIGHTS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included in
every tier contract.

The City of Everett is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As such, the City of Everett and all third-party
contractors and their contracts agree to prohibit discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, or national origin, and comply with all applicable Federal civil rights laws and
implementing regulations. Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal laws or regulations,
the City of Everett agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(h)(3) by not using any
Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory
specifications.

City of Everett and all third-party contractors and their contracts also agree to comply with Title VII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000g, et seq.; (ii) Comply with Title | of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101, et seq_.; (iii) Facilitate compliance with Executive
Order No. 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” September 24, 1965 (42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), as
amended by any later Executive Order that amends or supersedes it in part and is applicable to federal
assistance programs; (iv) Comply with federal transit law, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, as provided in section
12 of this Master Agreement; (v) FTA Circular 4704.1 “Equal Employment Opportunity (EEOQ) Requirements



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

and Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients;” and (vi) Follow other federal guidelines
pertaining to EEO laws, regulations, and requirements.

The City of Everett also follows the most recent edition of FTA Circular 4702.1, “Title VI Requirements and
Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients,” to the extent consistent with applicable federal
laws, regulations, requirements, and guidance, U.S. DOJ, “Guidelines for the enforcement of Title VI, Civil
Rights Act of 1964,” 28 C.F.R. § 50.3; and all other applicable federal guidance.

Under this Agreement, the Contractor shall at all times comply with the following requirements and shall
include these requirements in each subcontract entered into as part thereof.

1. Nondiscrimination. In accordance with Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C § 5332, the Contractor agrees
that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), disability, or age. In
addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other
implementing requirements FTA may issue.

2. Race, Color, Religion, National Origin, Sex, including gender identity. The Contractor will prohibit
discrimination based on race, color, or national origin in accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination in Federally-
Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation — Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964,” 49 CFR Part 21; and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply
with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL)
regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity,
Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. chapter 60, and Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment
Opportunity in Federal Employment," September 24, 1965, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, as amended by any
later Executive Order that amends or supersedes it, referenced in 42 U.S.C. § 2000d. The Contractor
agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are
treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
(including sexual orientation and gender identity). Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the
following: employment, promotion, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff
or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA
may issue.

3. Age. In accordance with the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621- 634, U.S. Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S. EEOC) regulations, “Age Discrimination in Employment Act,”
29 C.F.R. part 1625, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq., U.S.
Health and Human Services regulations,“Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,” 45 C.F.R. part 90, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the
Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason
of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

4. Disabilities. In accordance with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. §
794, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., the
Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §4151 et seq., and Federal transit law at 49
U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against individuals on the basis of
disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may
issue.



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

11.

Affirmative Action. If required to do so by U.S. DOT regulations (49 CFR Part 21) or U.S. Department of
Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. chapter 60), take affirmative action that includes, but is not limited to: (A)
Recruitment advertising, recruitment, and employment; 53 (B) Rates of pay and other forms of
compensation; (C) Selection for training, including apprenticeship, and upgrading; and (D) Transfers,
demotions, layoffs, and terminations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements for Construction Activities. Comply, when undertaking
“construction” as recognized by the U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL), with: (i) U.S. DOL regulations,
“Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of
Labor,” 41 C.F.R. chapter 60; and (ii) Executive Order No. 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity in
Federal Employment,” September 24, 1965, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note (30 Fed. Reg. 12319, 12935), as
amended by any later Executive Order that amends or supersedes it, referenced in 42 U.S.C. § 2000e
note.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)

A. Background and Applicability

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be
included in every tier contract. It is the prime contractor’s responsibility to ensure the DBE
requirements are applied across the board to all subcontractors.

B. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Participation

The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 applies to this
contract. The requirements of this contract are to encourage DBE participation and to report race
neutral accomplishments semi-annually. No preference will be included in the evaluation of bids, no
minimum level of DBE participation shall be required as condition for receiving an award and
bids/Bids will not be rejected or considered non-responsive on that basis.

C. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Definitions

1. DBE s anincorporated or unincorporated small business concern or joint venture, as defined by
Section 3 of the Small Business Act and implementing regulations, except that a small business
concern shall not include any concern or group of concerns controlled by the same socially and
economically disadvantaged individual or individuals which has annual average gross receipts in
excess of $14 million over the previous three fiscal years. The Secretary shall adjust this figure
from time to time for inflation. A DBE must be certified by the Washington State Office of
Minority and Women’s Business Enterprises.

a. Atleast 51 percent of which is owned by one or more socially and economically
disadvantaged individuals or, in the case of any publicly owned business, at least 51 percent
of the stock of which is owned by one or more socially and economically disadvantaged
individuals; and,

b. The management and daily business operations of which are controlled by the socially and
economically disadvantaged individuals who own the business.

2. Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals are those individuals who are citizens of the
United States (or lawfully admitted permanent residents) and who are:



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

a. Black Americans - which includes persons having origins in any of the black racial groups of
Africa;

b. Hispanic Americans - which includes persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or
South American or other Spanish or Portuguese culture or origin, regardless of race;

c. Native Americans - which includes persons who are American Indians, Eskimos, Aleuts or
Native Hawaiians;

d. Asian-Pacific Americans - which includes persons whose origins are from Japan, China,
Taiwan, Korea, Vietham, Laos, Cambodia, the Philippines, Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust
Territories or the Pacific and the Northern Marianas;

e. Asian-Indian Americans - which includes persons whose origins are from India, Pakistan and
Bangladesh;

f.  Women - regardless of race, ethnicity or origin; and,

g. Other - individuals found to be socially and economically disadvantaged by the Small
Business Administration (SBA) pursuant to Section 8(a) of the Small Business Act.

D. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises

1.

This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26,
Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial
Assistance Programs. The national goal for participation of DBEs is 10%. The agency’s overall
goal for DBE participation is 2%. A separate contract goal has not been established for this
procurement.

The successful bidder/Bidder will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through
race-neutral means throughout the period of performance.

The contractor must promptly notify the City of Everett, whenever a DBE subcontractor
performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must
make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same
amount of work. The contractor may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that
work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of the City of
Everett.

E. Affirmative Efforts to Solicit DBE Participation

DBE firms shall have equal opportunity to compete for and perform subcontracts which the
Contractor enters into pursuant to this contract. Contractors are encouraged to:

1.

2.

Advertise opportunities for subcontractors or suppliers in a manner reasonably designed to
provide DBEs capable of performing the work with timely notice of such opportunities. All
advertisements should include a provision encouraging participation by DBE firms and may be
done through general advertisements (e.g. newspapers, journals, etc.) or by soliciting bids/Bids
directly from DBEs.

Utilize the services of available minority community-based organizations, minority contractor



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

groups, local minority assistance offices and organizations that provide assistance in the
recruitment and placement of DBEs and other small businesses, such as the Office of Minority
and Women's Business Enterprises listed below.

3. Establish delivery schedules, where requirements of the contract allow, that encourage
participation by DBEs and other small businesses.

4. Achieve attainment through joint ventures.

In the absence of a mandatory goal, all DBE participation that is attained on this project will be
considered as "race neutral" participation and will be reported as such.

F. Information Regarding DBEs

Information regarding Disadvantaged Business Enterprises currently certified with the State of
Washington is available at:

Office of Minority and Women’s Business Enterprises
PO Box 41160

Olympia, WA 98504-1160

(800) 208-1064 Toll Free

(360) 586-7079 Fax

Or visit their website at http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/

G. Procedures Between Award and Execution

After award of the contract, the successful bidder shall provide the following additional information:

A list of all firms who submitted a bid or quote in an attempt to participate in this project whether
they were successful or not. Include the correct business name, federal employer identification
number (optional), and a mailing address.

H. Required DBE Contract Clauses

1. Contract Assurance

The following clause is incorporated in every FTA-assisted contract and subcontract:

The Contractor or Subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national
origin, or sex in the performance of this Contract. The Contractor shall carry out applicable
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of FTA-assisted contracts.
Failure by the Contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this Contract,
which may result in the termination of this Contract or such other remedy as City of Everett
deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:

a. Withholding monthly progress payments;

b. Assessing sanctions;


http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/

Federal Transit Administration Clauses

c. Liguidated damages; and/or
d. Disqualifying the Contractor from future bidding as non-responsible per 49 CFR§ 26.13(b).

2. Prompt Payment and Retainage

The following clause is incorporated in every FTA-assisted prime contract:

When payment is received by a Contractor or Subcontractor for work performed, the
Contractor or Subcontractor shall pay to any Subcontractor no later than thirty (30) days after
the receipt of the payment, amounts allowed the Contractor on account of the work performed
by the Subcontractor, to the extent of each Subcontractor's interest therein, unless the
payment otherwise is excused under the provisions of RCW 39.04.250. This requirement shall
flow down from Contractor to all lower tier subcontractors.

The City of Everett will not withhold any retainage or payments owing to the Contractor. The
Contractor shall not withhold any retainage or payments owing to any Subcontractor. No
delays or postponements of payment from the above referenced timeframe may occur unless
approved in writing by the City. This clause applies to the DBE and non-DBE subcontracts.

If an DBE has not been paid on time, it should seek to resolve issues with the Contractor or
Subcontractor, if the DBE is on a lower tier. If a satisfactory resolution is not arrived at, the DBE
may approach the City of Everett Procurement Manager for assistance.

3. Resolving Payment Disputes, Discrepancies and Delays

Per 49 CFR §26.29 Contractors shall include in their subcontracts language providing that
Contractor and Subcontractors will use appropriate alternative dispute resolution mechanisms
to resolve payment disputes.

Further, if a payment to a Contractor by the City of Everett is in dispute, has discrepancies or is
delayed for any other reason, Contractor shall pay its DBE subcontractor(s) in a timely manner,
without waiting for receipt of payment from the City of Everett.

4. Use of DBE Financial Institutions:

Per 49 CFR Part 26.27, Contractors and Subcontractors are encouraged to investigate the full
extent of services offered by financial institutions owned and controlled by socially and
economically disadvantaged individuals in their community and make reasonable efforts to use
these institutions. The list of such firms is available at: www.federalreserve.gov/releases/mob.

I. Small Business Participation

Bidders on public works contracts greater than $100,000 must identify and provide specific
subcontracts appropriate for small business participation.

Definition of Small Business per the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 49: Transportation, Part
26 — Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial
Assistance Programs, Subpart A — General, Paragraph 26.5:

Small business concern means, with respect to firms seeking to participate as DBEs in DOT-assisted
contracts, a small business concern as defined pursuant to section 3 of the Small Business Act and

10



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

12.

13.

Small Business Administration regulations implementing it (13 CFR part 121) that also does not
exceed the cap on average annual gross receipt specified in Paragraph 26.65(b).

Paragraph 26.65: What rules govern business size determinations?

1. To be an eligible DBE, a firm (including its affiliates) must be an existing small business, as
defined by Small Business Administration (SBA) standards. As a recipient, you must apply
current SBA business size standard(s) found in 13 CFR part 121 appropriate to the type(s) of
work the firm seeks to perform in DOT-assisted contracts.

2. Evenif it meets the requirements of paragraph (a) of this section, a firm is not an eligible DBE in
any Federal fiscal year if the firm (including its affiliates) has had average annual gross receipts,
as defined by SBA regulations (see 13 CFR 121.402), over the firm's previous three fiscal years, in
excess of $22.41 million.

3. The Department adjusts the number in paragraph (b) of this section annually using the
Department of Commerce price deflators for purchases by State and local governments as the
basis for this adjustment.

[74 FR 15224, Apr. 3, 2009]

VETERAN’S EMPLOYMENT

To the extent practicable, Contractors shall give a hiring preference to veterans (as defined in Section
2108 of title 5 (5 USC 2108)) who have the requisite skills and abilities to perform the construction work
required under a third-party contract in connection with a Capital Project supported with federal
assistance appropriated or made available for 49 U.S.C. This subsection shall not be understood,
construed or enforced in any manner that would require an employer to give a preference to any
veteran over any equally qualified applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an
individual with a disability, or a former employee.

TERMINATION OF DBE SUBCONTRACTOR

The Contractor shall not terminate the DBE subcontractor(s) listed in the bid documents without the
City of Everett’s prior written consent. The City of Everett may provide such written consent only if the
Contractor has good cause to terminate the DBE firm. Before transmitting a request to terminate, the
Contractor shall give notice in writing to the DBE subcontractor of its intent to terminate and the reason
for the request. The Contractor shall give the DBE five (5) days to respond to the notice and advise of the
reasons why it objects to the proposed termination. When a DBE subcontractoris terminated or fails to
complete its work on the Contract for any reason, the Contractor shall make good faith efforts to find
another DBE subcontractor to substitute for the original DBE and immediately notify the City of Everett
in writing of its efforts to replace the original DBE. These good faith efforts shall be directed at finding
another DBE to perform at least the same amount of work under the Contract as the DBE that was
terminated.

A. Continued Compliance

The City of Everett shall monitor the Contractor’s DBE compliance during the life of the Contract. In

11



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

the event this procurement exceeds ninety (90) days, it will be the responsibility of the Contractor
to submit quarterly written reports to the City of Everett that summarize the total DBE value for
this Contract. These reports shall provide the following details:

e DBE utilization established for the Contract;

e Total value of expenditures with DBE firms for the quarter;

e The value of expenditures with each DBE firm for the quarter by race and gender;
e Total value of expenditures with DBE firms from inception of the Contract; and

o The value of expenditures with each DBE firm from the inception of the Contract by raceand
gender.

Reports and other correspondence must be submitted to the DBE Coordinator with copies provided
to the City of Everett. Reports shall continue to be submitted quarterly until final payment is issued
or until DBE participation is completed.

The successful Bidder shall permit:

e The City of Everett to have access to necessary records to examine information as it deems
appropriate for the purpose of investigating and determining compliance with this provision,
including, but not limited to, records of expenditures, invoices, and contract between the
successful Bidder and other DBE parties entered into during the life of the Contract.

® The authorized representative(s) of the City of Everett, the U.S. Department of Transportation,
the Comptroller General of the United States, to inspect and audit all data and record of the
Contractor relating to its performance under the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Participation provision of this Contract.

e All data/record(s) pertaining to DBE shall be maintained as stated in the solicitation.

B. Sanctions for Violations

If at any time the City of Everett has reason to believe that the Contractor is in violation of its
obligations under this Agreement or has otherwise failed to comply with terms of this Section, the
City of Everett may, in addition to pursuing any other available legal remedy, commence
proceedings, which may include but are not limited to, the following:

e Suspension of any payment or part due the Contractor until such time as the issues concerning
the Contractor’s compliance are resolved; and

e Termination or cancellation of the Contract, in whole or in part, unless the successful Contractor
is able to demonstrate within a reasonable time that it is in compliance with the DBE terms
stated herein.

14. PREVAILING WAGE AND ANTI-KICKBACK — NOT APPLICABLE

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included

12



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

15.

in every tier contract.

For all prime construction, alteration or repair contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by FTA, the
Contractor shall comply with the Davis-Bacon Act and the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act. Under 49
U.S.C. § 5333(a), prevailing wage protections apply to laborers and mechanics employed on FTA assisted
construction, alteration, or repair projects. The Contractor will comply with the Davis-Bacon Act,
40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 as supplemented by DOL regulations at 29 C.F.R. part 5, “Labor
Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction.”
In accordance with the statute, the Contractor shall pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not
less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In
addition, the Contractor agrees to pay wages not less than once a week. The Contractor shall also
comply with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by DOL regulations
at 29 C.F.R. part 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole
or in part by Loans or Grants from the United States.” The Contractor is prohibited from inducing, by any
means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any
part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled.

Davis-Bacon Act, (40 U.S.C. §§ 3141 — 3144, and 3146 — 3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor
regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally
Financed and Assisted Construction”). When required by federal program legislation, all prime
construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-federal entities must include a provision for
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 3141 — 3144, and 3146 — 3148) as supplemented by
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts
Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors
must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages
specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be
required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the
current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage
determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the federal
awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland “Anti-
Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3,
“Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by
Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be
prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair
of a public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The
non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency.

CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS (40 U.S.C. §§ 3701
—3708)

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included
in every tier contract.

For all contracts in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers, must
include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of
Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required
to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer based on a standard work week of forty (40)

13



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

16.

hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is
compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in
excess of forty (40) hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to
construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not
apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or
contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

In the event of any violation of the clause set forth herein, the Contractor and any subcontractor
responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, the Contractor and subcontractor
shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia
or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages
shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards,
employed in violation of this clause in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual
was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment
of the overtime wages required by this clause.

The FTA shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative ofthe
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work
performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract
with the same prime Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime Contractor, such sums as may be
determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid
wages and liquidated damages as provided in this section.

The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section and
also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The
prime Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor
with the clauses set forth in this agreement.

CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS FOR AWARDS
NOT INVOLVING CONSTRUCTION

The Contractor shall comply with all federal laws, regulations, and requirements providing wage and
hour protections for non-construction employees, in accordance with 40 U.S.C. § 3702, Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act, and other relevant parts of that Act, 40 U.S.C. § 3701 et seq., and U.S.
DOL regulations, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and
Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Non-construction Contracts Subject
to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act),” 29 C.F.R. part 5.

The Contractor shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records during the course of the work and shall
preserve them for a period of three (3) years from the completion of the contract for all laborers and
mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract. Such records shall contain the
name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of
wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid.

Such records maintained under this paragraph shall be made available by the Contractor for inspection,
copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the FTA and the Department of Labor, and the
Contractor will permit such representatives to interview employees during working hourson the job.

14



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

17.

18.

The contractor shall require the inclusion of the language of this clause within subcontracts of all tiers.

ENERGY CONSERVATION

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included
in every tier contract.

The contractor agrees to comply with the mandatory energy standards and policies of its state energy
conservation plans under the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6321, et seq.,
and perform an energy assessment for any building constructed, reconstructed, or modified with federal
assistance required under FTA regulations, “Requirements for Energy Assessments,” 49 CFR Part 622,
subpart C.

FLY AMERICA

This clause flows down and extends to the first-tier contractor only.
A. Definitions. As used in this clause:

“International air transportation” means transportation by air between a place in the United States and
a place outside the United States or between two places bothof which are outside the United States.

“United States” means the 50 States, the District of Columbia, and outlying areas.

The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the “Fly America” Act) in accordance with the
General Services Administration’s regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, which provide that recipients and
subrecipients of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S
Government-financed international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to
the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined
by the Fly America Act. The Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate
certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not
available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate
of compliance with the Fly America requirements. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of
this section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation.

B. Statement of Unavailability of U.S.-Flag Air Carriers

International air transportation of persons (and their personal effects) or property by U.S.-flagair
carrier was not available or it was necessary to use foreign-flag air carrier service for the following
reasons. See FAR § 47.403. [State reasons]:

(End of statement)

The Contractor shall include the substance of this clause, including this paragraph, in each
subcontract or purchase under this contract that may involve international air transportation.

15



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

19.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

This clause applier to any tier contract that is expected to exceed $25,000. The Contractor, including any
of its officers or holders of a controlling interest, is obligated to inform the Recipient, the City of Everett,
whether or not it is or has been on any debarred bidders’ list maintained by the United States
Government. Should the Contractor be included on such a list during the performance of this project, it
shall so inform the Recipient.

(Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). A covered transaction (see 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220) must
not be entered into with any party listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for Award
Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 180 that implement Executive
Orders 12549 (31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, 51 Fed. Reg. 6370,) and 12689 (31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, 54 Fed. Reg.
34131), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred,
suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or
regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. The Recipient agrees to include, and require
each Third Party Participant to include, a similar provision in each lower tier covered transaction,
ensuring that each lower tier Third Party Participant: (i) Complies with federal debarment and
suspension requirements; and (ii) Reviews the SAM at https://www.sam.gov, if necessary to comply
with U.S. DOT regulations, 2 CFR Part 1200.

The Contractor shall comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations requirements of 2 CFR
Part 180, subpart C, as adopted and supplemented by U.S. DOT regulations at 2 CFR Part 1200.
“Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” which adopts and supplements the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (U.S. OMB) “Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and
Suspension (Nonprocurement),” 2 C.F.R. part 180. These provisions apply to each contract at any tier of
$25,000 or more, and to each contract at any tier for a federally required audit (irrespective of the
contract amount), and to each contract at any tier that must be approved by an FTA official irrespective
of the contract amount. As such, the Contractor shall verify that its principals, affiliates, and
subcontractors are eligible to participate in this federally funded contract and are not presently declared
by any Federal department or agency to be:

A. Debarred from participation in any federally assisted Award;

@

Suspended from participation in any federally assisted Award;

C. Proposed for debarment from participation in any federally assisted Award;

D. Declared ineligible to participate in any federally assisted Award;

E. Voluntarily excluded from participation in any federally assisted Award; or

F. Disqualified from participation in ay federally assisted Award.

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows:

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City of Everett. Ifit
is later determined by the City that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous
certification, in addition to remedies available to the City of Everett, the Federal Government may
pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or
proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. part 180, subpart C, as supplemented by 2

16



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

20.

21.

22.

C.F.R. part 1200, while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from
this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its
lower tier covered transactions.

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES (31 U.S.C. § 1352)

The lobbying requirements apply to all contracts and subcontracts of $100,000 or more at any tier under
a Federal grant.

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995,
P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.] - Contractors who apply or bid for an award of
$100,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying."
Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used federal appropriated funds to pay
any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of
Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31
U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that takes place in
connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the
non-federal award.

NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY

This clause applies to third party contracts that are federally funded and flows down to every tier.

A. The Federal Government does not and shall not have any commitment or liability related to this
Contract or its underlying agreements, to any participant at any tier, or to any other person or entity
that is not a party (FTA or the Agency) to the underlying agreement; and

B. Notwithstanding that the Federal Government may have concurred in or approved any Solicitation
or Contract at any tier that may affect any underlying agreement, the Federal Government does not
and shall not have any commitment or liability to any participant or other entity or person that is
not a party (FTA or the Agency) to this Contract/Task Order or any underlying agreement.

PATENT RIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA

If the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract (or subcontract) with a small business firm
or nonprofit organization for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under
the FTA award.

This Project is funded through a Federal award with FTA for experimental, developmental, or research
work purposes. As such, certain Patent Rights and Data Rights apply to all subject data first produced in
the performance of this Contract. The Contractor shall grant the City of Everett intellectual property
access and licenses deemed necessary for the work performed under this Agreement and in accordance
with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and
Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any
implementing regulations issued by FTA or U.S. DOT. The terms of an intellectual property agreement
and software license rights will be finalized prior to execution of this Agreement and shall, at a
minimum, include the following restrictions: Except for its own internal use, the Contractor may not
publish or reproduce subject data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Contractor

17



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

authorize others to do so, without the written consent of FTA, until such time as FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public. This restriction on publication, however,
does not apply to any contract with an academic institution. For purposes of this agreement, the term
“subject data” means recorded information whether or not copyrighted, and that is delivered or
specified to be delivered as required by the Contract. Examples of “subject data” include, but are not
limited to computer software, standards, specifications, engineering drawings, and associated lists,
process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related information, but do
not include financial reports, cost analyses, or other similar information used for performance or
administration of the Contract.

A. The Federal Government reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use for “Federal Government Purposes,” any
subject data or copyright described below. For “Federal Government Purposes,” means use only for
the direct purposes of the Federal Government. Without the copyright owner’s consent, the Federal
Government may not extend its Federal license to any other party.

1. Any subject data developed under the Contract, whether or not a copyright has been obtained,;
and any rights of copyright purchased by the Contractor using Federal assistance in whole or in
part by the FTA.

B. Unless FTA determines otherwise, the Contractor performing experimental, developmental, or
research work required as part of this Contract agrees to permit FTA to make available to the public,
either FTA's license in the copyright to any subject data developed in the course of the Contract, or a
copy of the subject data first produced under the Contract for which a copyright has not been
obtained. If the experimental, developmental, or research work, which is the subject of this
Contract, is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under the Contract shall
become subject data as defined herein and shall be delivered as the Federal Government may direct.

C. Unless prohibited by state law, upon request by the Federal Government, the Contractor agrees to
indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Federal Government, its officers, agents, and employees
acting within the scope of their official duties againstany liability, including costs and expenses,
resulting from any willful or intentional violation by the Contractor of proprietary rights, copyrights,
or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or
disposition of any datafurnished under that contract. The Contractor shall be required to indemnify
the Federal Government for any such liability arising out of the wrongful act of any employee,
official, or agents of the Federal Government.

D. Nothing contained in this clause on rights in data shall imply a license to the Federal Government
under any patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise
granted to the Federal Government under any patent.

E. Data developed by the Contractor and financed entirely without using Federal assistance provided
by the Federal Government that has been incorporated into work required by the underlying
Contract is exempt from the requirements herein, provided that the Contractor identifies those data
in writing at the time of delivery of the Contract work.

F. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract for experimental,
developmental, or research work financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance.

G. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the federal award meets the

18



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

23.

24,

25.

definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or subrecipient
wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the
substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research
work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the
requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small
Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any
implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

PRE-AWARD AND POST-DELIVERY AUDITS OF ROLLING STOCK
PURCHASES — NOT APPLICABLE

PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND
RELATED ACTS

The Program Fraud clauses applies to all third-party contracts that are federally funded. It extends to all
third-party contractors and their contracts at every tire and subrecipients and their subcontracts at
every tier. These requirements flow down to contractors and subcontractors who make, present, or
submit covered claims and statements.

The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as
amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies,"49 C.F.R.
part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the
Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it
may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for
which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the
Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent
claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the
penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent to the Federal
Government deems appropriate.

The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent
claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a contract connected
with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA
under the authority of 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties
of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5323(l) on the Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government
deems appropriate.

The Contractor agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in wholeor in
part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified,
except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS

This clause applies to all third-party contractor and their contracts at every tier.

The Contractor agrees to comply with the following employee protective arrangements of 49 U.S.C. §
5333(b):

19



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

26.

27.

28.

A. U.S. DOL Certification. Under this Contract or any Amendments thereto that involve public
transportation operations that are supported with federal assistance, a certification issued by U.S.
DOL is a condition of the Contract.

B. Special Warranty. When the Contract involves public transportation operations and is supported
with federal assistance appropriated or made available for 49 U.S.C. § 5311, U.S. DOL will provide a
Special Warranty for its Award, including its Award of federal assistance under the Tribal Transit
Program. The U.S. DOL Special Warranty is a condition of the Contract.

C. Special Arrangements. The conditions of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) do not apply to Contractors providing
public transportation operations pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 5310.FTA reserves the right to make
case-by-case determinations of the applicability of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) for all transfers of funding
authorized under title 23, United States Code (flex funds), and make other exceptions as it deems
appropriate, and, in those instances,any special arrangements required by FTA will be incorporated
herein as required.

RECOVERED MATERIALS - RECYCLED PRODUCTS

These requirements extend to all third-party contractors and their contracts at every tier and
subrecipients and their subcontracts at every tier where the value of an EPA designated item exceeds
$10,000.

The Contractor agrees to provide a preference for those products and services that conserve natural
resources, protect the environment, and are energy efficient by complying with and facilitating
compliance with Section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §
6962, and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA), “Comprehensive Procurement Guideline for
Products Containing Recovered Materials,” 40 C.F.R. part 247.

SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES

The Safe Operation of Motor Vehicles requirements apply to all federally funded third party contracts. It
flows down to all third-party contractors at every tier.

A. Seat Belt Use

The Contractor is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies andprograms
for its employees and other personnel that operate company-owned vehicles, company-rented
vehicles, or personally operated vehicles. The terms “company-owned” and “company-leased” refer
to vehicles owned or leased either by the Contractor or the City of Everett.

B. Distracted Driving

The Contractor agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashescaused by
distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while using an electronic device supplied
by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor owns, leases, or
rents, or a privately-owned vehicle when on official business in connection with the work performed
under this agreement.

SCHOOL BUS OPERATIONS — NOT APPLICABLE

20



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

29.

30.
31.

SEISMIC SAFETY

The Seismic Safety requirements apply only to contracts for the construction of new buildings oradditions
to existing buildings. This clause flows down from FTA recipients and subrecipients to first tier
contractors to assure compliance with the applicable building standards for Seismic Safety, including the
work performed by all subcontractors.

The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and
constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of
Transportation (DOT) Seismic Safety Regulations 49 C.F.R. part 41 and will certify to compliance to the
extent required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under
this contract, including work performed by a subcontractor, is in compliance with the standards required
by the Seismic Safety regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

SUBSTANCE ABUSE REQUIREMENTS — NOT APPLICABLE

TERMINATION

All contracts in excess of 510,000 must address the termination for cause and for convenience, including
the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement. This clause extends to all third-party
contractors and their contracts at every tier and subrecipients and their subcontracts at every tier.

A. Termination for Convenience or Default (Architect and Engineering)

The City of Everett may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the City’s convenience or
because of the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations. The City shall terminate by
delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date
of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all
services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the City‘s Procurement
Professional all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information
and materials accumulated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process. The City of
Everett has a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or
otherwise use, all such data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other
information and materials.

If the termination is for the convenience of the City, the City’s Procurement Professional shall make
an equitable adjustment in the contract price but shall allow no anticipated profit on unperformed
services.

If the termination is for failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations, the City may
complete the work by contact or otherwise and the Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost
incurred by the City.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was
not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had
been issued for the convenience of the City.

B. Opportunity to Cure (General Provision)

21



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

32.

The City, in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the
Contractor two weeks in which to cure the defect. In such case, the Notice of Termination will state
the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If Contractor fails to remedy to City’s satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms,
covenants, or conditions of this Contract within ten (10) business days after receipt by Contractor of
written notice from the City setting forth the nature of said breach or default, the City of Everett
shall have the right to terminate the contract without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such
termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude the City from also pursuing all
available remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

C. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach

In the event that the City elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant,
term or condition of this contract, such waiver by the City shall not limit the City’s remedies for any
succeeding breach of that or of any other covenant, term, or condition of this contract.

VIOLATION AND BREACH OF CONTRACT

All contracts in excess of the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently set at $250,000) shall contain
administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract
terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. The Violations and Breach of
Contracts clause flow down to all third-party contractors and theircontracts at every tier.

A. Rights and Remedies of the City of Everett

The City of Everett shall have the following rights in the event that the City of Everett deems the
Contractor guilty of a breach of any term under the Contract.

1. The right to take over and complete the work or any part thereof as agency for and atthe
expense of the Contractor, either directly or through other contractors;

2. The right to cancel this Contract as to any or all of the work yet to be performed;
3. The right to specific performance, an injunction or any other appropriate equitableremedy; and
4. The right to money damages.

B. Rights and Remedies of Contractor

Inasmuch as the Contractor can be adequately compensated by money damages for any breach of

this Contract, which may be committed by the City of Everett, the Contractor expressly agrees that

no default, act or omission of the City of Everett shall constitute a material breach of this Contract,

entitling Contractor to cancel or rescind the Contract, unless the City directs Contractor to do so, or
to suspend or abandon performance.

C. Remedies

Substantial failure of the Contractor to complete the Project in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement will be a default of this Agreement. In the event of a default, the City of Everett will have
all remedies in law and equity, including the right to specific performance, without further

22



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

33.

34.

assistance, and the rights to termination or suspension as provided herein. The Contractor
recognizes that in the event of a breach of this Agreement by the Contractor before the City takes
action contemplated herein, the City will provide the Contractor with sixty (60) days written notice
that the City considers that such a breach has occurred and will provide the Contractor a reasonable
period of time to respond and to take necessary corrective action.

Disputes

Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract that are not resolved byagreement of the
parties shall be decided in writing by the authorized representative of City’s Project Manager. This
decision shall be final and conclusive unless within ten (10) business days from the date of receipt of
its copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the City Clerk. In
connection with any such appeal, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and
to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the Procurement Manager shall be
binding upon the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide be the decision.

Performance during Dispute

Unless otherwise directed by the City of Everett, Contractor shall continue performance under this
Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

Claims for Damages

Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act
or omission of the party or any of its employees, agents or others for whose acts it is legally liable, a
claim for damages, therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time
after the first observance of such injury or damage.

Remedies

Unless this Contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in
question between the City of Everett and the Contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement
or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent
jurisdiction within in Washington State in which the City of Everett is located.

Rights and Remedies

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract documents and the rights and remedies
available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and
remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the City of Everett or
Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract,
nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach
thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

PROTEST AND APPEALS

Procurement Protest Procedures are available for review at:
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Everett/#!/Everett03/Everett0346.htmI#3.46

FEDERAL CHANGES

23


https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Everett/#!/Everett03/Everett0346.html

Federal Transit Administration Clauses

35.

36.

Any proposed change in this contract shall be submitted to the City of Everett for its prior approval.
Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and
directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Agreement (Form FTA
MA (28) dated February 9, 2021) between Purchaser and FTA, or as they may be amended or
promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor's failure to so comply shall
constitute a material breach of this contract.

INCORPORATION OF FTA TERMS

The preceding and following provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required
by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual
provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F dated November 1, 2008, (Revised: July
29, 2009) are hereby incorporated by reference.

https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/Third%20Party%20Contracting%20Guidance%2
0%28Circular%204220.1F%29.pdf

Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in
the event of a conflict either other provisions contained in this agreement. The Contractor shall not
perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any City of Everett requests which
would cause City of Everett to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

The contract agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contract parties, their
successors and permitted assigns, but shall not inure to the benefit of any third party or other person.

TERMS OF THESE PROVISIONS AND COMPLIANCE

A. The Contractor must comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements, and
should follow applicable federal guidance, except as FTA determines otherwise in writing.

B. To assure compliance with federal laws, regulations, and requirements, the Contractor must take
measures to assure that other participants in all of its underlying agreements, including, but not
limited to subcontracts or purchase or task orders with lower tier subcontractors, suppliers,
consultants etc.) comply with applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements, and follow
applicable federal guidance, except as FTA determines otherwise in writing.

C. FTA may take enforcement action if the Contractor violates an applicable federal law, regulation, or
requirement, or does not follow applicable federal guidance.

D. Parties agree that not every provision of this section will apply to every subcontractor or any
underlying agreements. Criteria determining which federal laws, regulations, requirements, and
guidance apply include the type of award, the federal law authorizing federal assistance for the
award, the federal law, regulations, or requirements governing how the award must be
implemented, the federal guidance pertaining to the award, and the Contractor’s legal status as a
business, a “private nonprofit entity,” a “private for-profit entity,” or an individual.

E. As provided in federal laws, regulations, requirements, and guidance, FTA will enforce only those
federal laws, regulations, requirements, and guidance that apply to the Contractor, or to any Project

24


https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/Third%20Party%20Contracting%20Guidance%20%28Circular%204220.1F%29.pdf
https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/Third%20Party%20Contracting%20Guidance%20%28Circular%204220.1F%29.pdf

Federal Transit Administration Clauses

37.

and related activities encompassed in the award, any accompanying underlying agreements, and
any amendments thereto.

F. This Section does not have an expiration date. Section shall continue to apply to the Agency, the
Contractor and all parties covered by any underlying agreements, until the Section is modified or
superseded by a more recently enacted or issued applicable federal law, regulation, requirement, or
guidance, or amendment.

G. The Contractor must comply with U.S. DOT regulations, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 1201, which incorporates by
reference U.S. OMB regulatory guidance, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 200, which applies to this Contract or other
underlying agreements.

H. Except as FTA determines otherwise in writing, U.S. DOT regulations, “Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 1201, and
subparts A through E of U.S. OMB regulatory guidance, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 200, shall apply to the
Contractor and all its subcontractors.

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY TO EXTEND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS
TO LOWER TIER PARTICIPANTS

In certain circumstances, the Contractor’s compliance with specific federal requirements depends on
compliance by its lower tier participant(s) and therefore:

A. General. The Contractor agrees to ensure that its lower tier participant(s) will comply with
applicable federal requirements and follow applicable federal guidance.

B. Performance of the Contractor’s Responsibilities. If a lower tier participant is expected to fulfill any
responsibilities typically performed by the Contractor, the Contractor agrees to ensure that the
lower tier participant will carry out the Contractor’s responsibilities in compliance with federal
requirements, and provide enough information to each lower tier participant so that they
understands that they will be expected to follow federal guidance.

C. Risk. As provided in 2 CFR Part 1201, which incorporates by reference 2 CFR Part 200, the Contractor
agrees to evaluate the risk involved before awarding an underlying agreement to any entity.

D. Lower tier agreements. To comply with federal requirements, the Contractor agrees to enter into a
written agreement with each lower tier participant in its underlying agreement and must include all
appropriate provisions stating the lower tier participant’s responsibilities to assure the Contractor’s
capability to comply with applicable federal requirements and guidance and specifying the
responsibilities that the lower tier participant will fulfill on the Contractor’s behalf.

E. Notice to lower tier participants. The Contractor agrees to include notice in each lower tier
agreement that:

1. Federal requirements that apply to the Contractor or are included in the Contract/Task Order,
the accompanying underlying agreement, and any amendments thereto may change due to
changes in federal law, regulation, other requirements, or guidance, or changes in this

25



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

38.

39.

Contract/Task Order or the Contractors underlying agreements including any information
incorporated by reference and made part of that underlying agreement; and

Applicable changes to those federal requirements will apply to this Contract/Task Order and the
Contractor’s underlying agreements and parties thereto at any tier.

TRAFFICKING OF PERSONS

A. Contractor agrees to comply and assures the compliance of each Lower Tier Participant with:
Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), as amended, 22 U.S.C. §
7104(g); and the terms of this section, which have been derived from U.S. OMB regulatory guidance,
“Award Term for Trafficking in Persons,” 2 CFR Part 175, per U.S. OMB’s direction.

B. Contractor further agrees that it and its employees that participate in this Contract/Task Order shall

not:

1.

Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the contract period, including all
extensions or while Contract/Task Order is in effect,

Procure a commercial sex act during the Contract or Task Order period, including all extensions,
or

Use forced labor in the performance of Contract or Task Order or any sub agreements
thereunder.

FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS

This flows down to all third-party participants regardless of tier or value of the sub agreement.

Transactions Prohibited:

A. The Contractor agrees to certify that, prior to entering into this Contract or any Lower Tier
Agreement with any private corporation, partnership, trust, joint-stock company, sole
proprietorship, or other business association, the Contractor will obtain from the prospective Lower
Tier Participant a certification that the Lower Tier Participant —

1.

Does not have any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and
administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a
timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax
liability; and

Was not convicted of the felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding
24 months. v €/

4 -
! ¢ P
/

Signature of Contractor’s Authorized Official
Rick Hultz, President

Name and title of Contractor’s Authorized Official

26


SamanthaN
Stamp


Federal Transit Administration Clauses

40.

41.

October 24, 2023

Date

B. Contractors that cannot certify to the provisions as listed in this Section 38 above will be deemed
not responsible due to the delay such non-certification would cause to the delivery of the Contract.

CONFORMANCE WITH ITS NATIONAL ARCHITECTURE

Contractor shall conform, to the extent applicable, to the National Intelligent Transportation Standards
architecture as required by SAFETEA-LU Section 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. Section 512 and as amended by
MAP-21 23 U.S.C. § 51?(d), note and follow the provisions of FTA Notice, "FTA National Architecture
Policy on Transit Projects," 66 Fed. Reg.1455 et seq., January 8, 2001, and any other implementing
directives FTA may issue at a later date, except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing.

NOTIFICATION OF LEGAL MATTERS

Each Third-Party Participant must include an equivalent provision in its subagreements at every tier, for
any agreement that is a “covered transaction” according to 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220.

A. The types of legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major dispute,
breach, default, litigation, or naming the Federal Government as a party to litigation or a legal
disagreement in any forum for any reason.

B. Matters that may affect the Federal Government include, but are not limited to, the Federal
Government’s interests in the Award, the accompanying Underlying Agreement, and any
Amendments thereto, or the Federal Government’s administration or enforcement of federal laws,
regulations, and requirements.

C. Additional Notice to U.S. DOT Inspector General. The Recipient must promptly notify the U.S. DOT
Inspector General in addition to the FTA Chief Counsel or Regional Counsel for the Region in which
the Recipient is located, if the Recipient has knowledge of potential fraud, waste, or abuse occurring
on a Project receiving assistance from FTA. The notification provision applies if a person has or may
have submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729, et seq., or has or may
have committed a criminal or civil violation of law pertaining to such matters as fraud, conflict of
interest, bid rigging, misappropriation or embezzlement, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct
involving federal assistance. This responsibility occurs whether the Project is subject to this
Agreement or another agreement between the Recipient and FTA, or an agreement involving a
principal, officer, employee, agent, or Third Party Participant of the Recipient. It also applies to
subcontractors at any tier. Knowledge, as used in this paragraph, includes, but is not limited to,
knowledge of a criminal or civil investigation by a Federal, state, or local law enforcement or other
investigative agency, a criminal indictment or civil complaint, or probable cause that could support a
criminal indictment, or any other credible information in the possession of the Recipient. In this
paragraph, “promptly” means to refer information without delay and without change. This
notification provision applies to all divisions of the Recipient, including divisions tasked with law
enforcement or investigatory functions.

D. Federal Interest in Recovery. The Federal Government retains the right to a proportionate share of
any proceeds recovered from any third party, based on the percentage of the federal share for the
Underlying Agreement. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Recipient may return all

27



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

42.

43.

liguidated damages it receives to its Award Budget for its Underlying Agreement rather than return
the federal share of those liquidated damages to the Federal Government, provided that the
Recipient receives FTA’s prior written concurrence.

E. Enforcement. The Recipient must pursue its legal rights and remedies available under any third
party agreement or any federal, state, or local law or regulation.

Contractor agrees to notify the City of Everett immediately if it becomes involved in a current or
prospective legal matter that may affect the federal government, which includes, but is not limited to,
FTA’s interests in the award, the accompanying underlying agreement, and any Amendments thereto,
or the FTA’s administration or enforcement of federal laws, regulations, and requirements. The types of
legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major dispute, breach, default,
litigation, or where the FTA may be named as a party to litigation or a legal disagreement in any forum
for any reason.

Contractor will immediately notify the City of Everett if it has knowledge of potential fraud, waste, or
abuse occurring in relation to this Contract. The notification provision applies if a person has or may
have submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et seq., or has or may have
committed a criminal or civil violation of law pertaining to such matters as fraud, conflict of interest, bid
rigging, misappropriation or embezzlement, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving federal
assistance. Knowledge, as used in this paragraph, includes, but is not limited to, knowledge of a criminal
or civil investigation by a federal, state, or local law enforcement or other investigative agency, a
criminal indictment or civil complaint, or probable cause that could support a criminal indictment, or
any other credible information in the possession of the City of Everett.

The City of Everett reserves the right to seek all remedies available to it under law, including to procure
substitute services or products elsewhere and recover its damages, attorneys’ fees and costs from
Contractor.

SOLID WASTES

Required Clause in Third-Party Contracts. In addition to other applicable provisions of federal law,
regulations, requirements, and guidance, all third-party contracts made by the Recipient under the
Federal award must contain provisions covering the following:

A Recipient that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must
comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest
percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of
competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity
acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste management
services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative
procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

A. General. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that its Third-Party Participants will, comply with all
applicable environmental and resource use laws, regulations, and requirements, and follow

28



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

applicable guidance, now in effect or that may become effective in the future, including state and
local laws, ordinances, regulations, and requirements and follow applicable guidance.

B. National Environmental Policy Act. An Award of federal assistance requires the full compliance with
applicable environmental laws, regulations, and requirements. Accordingly, the Recipient agrees to,
and assures that its Third-Party Participants will:

1.

Comply and facilitate compliance with federal laws, regulations, and requirements, including,
but not limited to:

a. Federal transit laws, such as 49 U.S.C. § 5323(c)(2), and 23 U.S.C. § 139;

b. The National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321, et
seq., as limited by 42 U.S.C. § 5159, and CEQ’s implementing regulations 40 CFR Part 1500 —
1508;

c. Joint FHWA and FTA regulations, “Environmental Impact and Related Procedures,” 23 CFR
Part 771 and 49 CFR Part 622;

d. Executive Order No. 11514, as amended, “Protection and Enhancement of Environmental
Quality,” March 5, 1970, 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note (35 Fed. Reg. 4247); and

e. Other federal environmental protection laws, regulations, and requirements applicable to
the Recipient or the Award, the accompanying Underlying Agreement, and any
Amendments thereto.

Follow the federal guidance identified herein to the extent that the guidance is consistent with
applicable authorizing legislation:

a. Joint FHWA and FTA final guidance, “Interim Guidance on MAP-21 Section 1319,
Accelerated Decision making in Environmental Reviews,” January 14, 2013;

b. Joint FHWA and FTA final guidance, “SAFETEA-LU Environmental Review Process (Public
Law 109-59),” 71 Fed. Reg. 66576, November 15, 2006; and

c. Other federal environmental guidance applicable to the Recipient or the Award, the
accompanying Underlying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto.

C. Environmental Justice. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that its Third-Party Participants will,
promote environmental justice by following:

1.

3.

Executive Order No. 12898, “Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations,” February 11, 1994, 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note, (59 Fed.
Reg. 7629, 3 C.F.R. 1994 Comp., p. 859) as well as facilitating compliance with that Executive
Order;

U.S. DOT Order 5610.2(a), “Department of Transportation Updated Environmental Justice
Order,” 77 Fed. Reg. 27534, May 10, 2012; and

The most recent edition of FTA Circular 4703.1, “Environmental Justice Policy Guidance for
Federal Transit Administration Recipients,” August 15, 2012, to the extent consistent with
applicable federal laws, regulations, requirements, and guidance.

29



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

D. Other Environmental Federal Laws. The Recipient agrees to comply or facilitate compliance, and
assures that its Third Party Participants will comply or facilitate compliance, with all applicable
federal laws, regulations, and requirements, and will follow applicable guidance, including, but not
limited to, the Clean Air Act, Clean Water Act, Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968, Coastal Zone
Management Act of 1972, the Endangered Species Act of 1973, Magnuson Stevens Fishery
Conservation and Management Act, Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, Executive Order No. 11990 relating to
“Protection of Wetlands,” and Executive Order No. 11988, as amended, “Floodplain Management.”

E. Corridor Preservation. The Recipient agrees that:

1. It will not develop any right-of-way acquired under 49 U.S.C. § 5323(q) in anticipation of
implementing its Award until all required environmental reviews for each Project or related
activities have been completed; and

2. It will follow FTA Final Guidance on the Application of 49 U.S.C § 5323(q) to Corridor
Preservation for a Transit Project, October 27, 2014.

F. Use of Certain Public Lands. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures that its Third Party
Participants will comply, with U.S. DOT laws, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 303 (often referred to as
“section 4(f)”), and joint FHWA and FTA regulations, “Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and
Waterfowl Refuges, and Historic Sites,” 23 CFR Part 774, and referenced in 49 CFR Part 622.

G. Historic Preservation. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that its Third-Party Participants will:

1. Comply with U.S. DOT laws, including 49 U.S.C. § 303 (often referred to as “section 4(f)”), which
requires certain findings be made before an Award may be undertaken if it involves the use of
any land from a historic site that is on or eligible for inclusion on the National Register of
Historic Places.

2. Encourage compliance with the federal historic and archaeological preservation requirements
of section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, 54 U.S.C. § 306108.

3. Comply with the Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974, as amended, 54 U.S.C. §
312501, et seq.

4. Comply with U.S. Advisory Council on Historic Preservation regulations, “Protection of Historic
Properties,” 36 CFR Part 800.

5. Comply with federal requirements and follow federal guidance to avoid or mitigate adverse
effects on historic properties.

H. Indian Sacred Sites. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that its Third Party Participants will,
facilitate compliance with federal efforts to promote the preservation of places and objects of
religious importance to American Indians, Eskimos, Aleuts, and Native Hawaiians, and facilitate
compliance with the American Indian Religious Freedom Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1996, and Executive Order
No. 13007, “Indian Sacred Sites,” May 24, 1996, 42 U.S.C. § 3161 note (61 Fed. Reg. 26771).

I.  Mitigation of Adverse Environmental Effects.

30



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

44.

45.

1. The Recipient agrees to comply with all environmental mitigation measures that may be
identified as conditions that the Federal Government might 87 impose in its finding of no
significant impact or record of decision or commitments in the environmental documents that
apply to the Award, such as environmental assessments, environmental impact statements,
categorical exclusions, memoranda of agreement, documents required under 49 U.S.C. § 303,
and other environmental documents.

2. The Recipient agrees that:

a. Any mitigation measures agreed on will be incorporated by reference and made part of the
Underlying Agreement and any Amendments thereto;

b. Any deferred mitigation measures will be incorporated by reference and made part of the
Underlying Agreement and any Amendments thereto as soon as agreement with the
Federal Government is reached; and

J.  Any mitigation measures agreed on will not be modified or withdrawn without the written approval
of the Federal Government.

FEDERAL “$1 COIN” REQUIREMENTS

The City of Everett agrees to comply with section 104 of the Presidential $1 Coin Act of 2005, 31 U.S.C.
§ 5112(p), therefore its equipment and facilities will be fully capable of accepting and dispensing S1
coins when coins or currency are required to use that equipment or those facilities, and it will display
signs and notices of the $1 coin capability of its equipment and facilities on its premises, including
vending machines, where coins or currency are used.

CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION ORDER ON
REQUIREMENTS FOR PERSONS TO WEAR MASKS WHILE ON
CONVEYANCES AND AT TRANSPORTATION HUBS

A. Compliance with CDC Mask Order. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) Order of
January 29, 2021, titled Requirement for Persons to Wear Masks While on Conveyances and at
Transportation Hubs (“CDC Mask Order”), is within the meaning of “Federal Requirement” as that
term is defined in this Master Agreement. One of the objectives of the CDC Mask Order is
“maintaining a safe and operating transportation system.” The Recipient agrees that it will comply,
and will require all Third-Party Participants to comply, with the CDC Mask Order.

B. Enforcement for non-compliance. The Recipient agrees that FTA may take enforcement action for
non-compliance with the CDC Mask Order, including:

1. Enforcement actions authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5329(g);
2. Referring the Recipient to the CDC or other Federal authority for enforcement action;
3. Enforcement actions authorized by 2 CFR §§ 200.339 — 340; and

4. Any other enforcement action authorized by Federal law or regulation.

31



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

46.

ADA ACCESS

The Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5301(d), stating Federal policy that the elderly and persons
with disabilities have the same rights as other persons to use mass transportation services and facilities
and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to
implement that policy. Contractor shall also comply with all applicable requirements of Sec. 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act (1973), as amended, 29 USC 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
handicaps, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 USC 12101 et seq.,
which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities,
including any subsequent amendments hereto.

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (ADA), 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101 et seq.,
prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities in programs, activities, and
services, and imposes specific requirements on public and private public and private entities. Third party
contractors must comply with their responsibilities under Titles | thru V of the ADA in employment,
public services, public accommodations, telecommunications, and other provisions, many of which are
subject to regulations issued by other Federal agencies. The following clauses should be included for the
appropriate procurement action.

A. Rolling Stock Accessibility: Rolling stock must comply with the accessibility requirements of DOT
regulations, “Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),” 49 CFR Part 37, and
Joint ATBCB/DOT regulations, “Americans with Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for
Transportation Vehicles,” 36 CFR Part 1192 and 49 CFR Part 38. Vehicles acquired (with limited
exceptions) should be accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities, including individuals
using wheelchairs;

B. Purchased Transportation Services Accessibility. A third party contractor providing public
transportation services must operate its services in compliance with 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101 et seq.
and DOT regulations, “Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),” using facilities
and equipment that comply with 49 CFR Part 37; and Joint ATBCB/DOT regulations, “Americans with
Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles,” 36 CFR Part 1192 and 49
CFR Part 38. Private entities must comply with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 37 applicable to
public entities with which they contract to provide public transportation services. MART advises its
third party contractors operating public transportation services to review the requirements for
public entities in this context which include but are not limited to:

1. Complementary Paratransit Service. Requirements that public entities providing fixed-route
service provide complementary paratransit service to individuals with disabilities who cannot
use the fixed-route service.

2. Equal Opportunity. Requirements for compliance with service requirements intended to ensure
that individuals with disabilities are afforded equal opportunity to use transportation systems
and services

C. Design and Construction Accessibility. Facilities to be used in public transportation service must
comply with 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101 et seq. and DOT regulations, “Transportation Services for
Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),” 49 CFR Part 37; and Joint ATBCB/DOT regulations, “Americans
with Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles,” 36 CFR Part 1192 and
49 CFR Part 38. Notably, DOT incorporated by reference the ATBCB’s “Americans with Disabilities

32



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

Act Accessibility Guidelines” (ADAAG), revised July 2004, which include accessibility guidelines for
buildings and facilities, and are incorporated into Appendix A to 49 CFR Part 37. DOT also added
specific provisions to Appendix A modifying the ADAAG, with the result that buildings and facilities,
and are incorporated into Appendix A to 49 CFR Part 37. DOT also added specific provisions to
Appendix A modifying the ADAAG, with the result that buildings and facilities must comply with both
the ADAAG and amendments thereto in Appendix A to 49 CFR Part 37.

33



CERTIFICATE OF NONDEBARMENT / SUSPENSION

e To be completed by the Prime Contractor of this bid and any Subcontractors that will be
affiliated with the work in this bid.

e Return the completed form with the original bid package.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

The Lower Tier Participant (Applicant for a third party subcontract or subgrant under an FTA project),

Hultz/BHU Engineers hereinafter referred to as Vendor, certifies, by
submission of this document, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction by any federal department or agency.

Where the Vendor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such Vendor shall
attach an explanation to this submittal.

The Vendor, Hultz/BHU Engineers , certifies or affirms the truthfulness and
accuracy of the contents of the statements submitted on or with this certification and
understands that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Section 3801 et seq. are applicable thereto.

Vd ’

U i a

Signature of Authorized Official

President October 24, 2023
Title of Authorized Official Date

THIS FORM SHALL BE COMPLETED BY THE PRIME CONTRACTOR AND ANY
SUBCONTRACTORS THAT WILL BE AFFILIATED WITH THE WORK IN THIS BID. RETURN ALL
COMPLETED FORMS WITH ORIGINAL BID PACKAGE.



CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING BY CONTRACTOR (FTA)

Pursuant to 40 CFR Part 20 (which is by this reference incorporated herein), the undersigned
certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

A.

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment,
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement,
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions.

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients
shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and
not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

The Contractor, Hultz/BHU Engineers  certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of
each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands
and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. A 3801, et seq., apply to this certification and
disclosure, if any. v </ ./ /

/oA At Rick Hultz
Signature of Contractor Print Name
President 1111 Fawcett Avenue, Suite 100
Title Address
October 24, 2023 Tacoma, WA 98402
Date City State Zip

NOTE: The penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001.



EXHIBIT C
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
(ATTACHED)

Exhibit D



City of Everett

Request for Qualifications

=

EVERETT

RFQ No. 2023-093

Request for Qualifications

Everett Main Library HVAC and Controls Replacement
South Precinct Controls Replacement and Maintenance
Everett Station Controls Replacement and Maintenance

City of Everett
Procurement Division
2930 Wetmore Ave, Suite 9E
Everett WA 98201
(425) 257-8901



City of Everett
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS

RFQ No.2023-093

EVERETT MAIN LIBRARY HVAC and CONTROLS REPLACEMENT
SOUTH PRECINCT CONTROLS REPLACEMENT and MAINTENANCE
EVERETT STATION CONTROLS REPLACEMENT and MAINTENANCE

INTRODUCTION & SUBMITTAL LOCATION

Statements of Qualifications will be received will be at the City of Everett Procurement Office, Monday — Friday from
8:00 a.m. —3:30 p.m. 2930 Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9E, Everett, Washington 98201.

This RFQ contains three sections.

Section One contains a description of the proposed project.

Section Two contains general information, including the RFQ schedule and contact information, including e-mail
and phone number for the RFQ Coordinator.

Section Three contains submittal requirements and explains how the city will evaluate Statements of
Qualifications.

OBJECTIVE

The City is requesting statements of qualifications from architects and engineers with experience in HVAC and control
systems to provide design, engineering, permitting, and construction documents for a public bid. There are some minor
repairs and modifications to each HVAC system, as noted throughout this Request for Qualifications.

This request includes multiple design scopes of work as follows:

1.

The City of Everett intends to replace the existing HVAC equipment and related controls at the Main Branch of
the Everett Public Library located at 2702 Hoyt Ave, Everett, WA 98201. The scope includes design, engineering,
permitting, construction documents, and construction management for the replacement of packaged rooftop air
conditioners and the associated direct digital (DDC) control system.

The City of Everett intends to replace the existing controls at the South Precinct located at 1121 SE Everett Mall
Way, Everett, WA 98208. The scope includes design, engineering, permitting, construction documents, and
construction management for the replacement of the direct digital (DDC) control system along with the
replacement of VAV boxes.

The City of Everett intends to replace the existing controls at the Everett Station located at 3201 Smith Ave,
Everett, WA 98201. The scope includes design, engineering, permitting, construction documents, and
construction management for the replacement of direct digital (DDC) control system along with VAV controllers.
The design and construction for this portion is funded by a Federal Transit Administration grant and has
associated non-negotiable clauses that must be agreed to.



SCHEDULE

The following anticipated schedule contains major milestones and may be modified:

September 28, 2023

Release of Request for Statement of Qualifications

October 26, 2023

Submittals Due

No later than:

October 27, 2023, at
12:00 p.m.

Provide an electronic copy of submittal.

November 20, 2023

Potential Interviews of Shortlisted Firms

December 2023

Selection of Preferred Architect or Engineer

NUMBER OF COPIES REQUIRED

Proposers must submit one unbound original statement of qualifications and one bound copy in a sealed envelope.
The project name must be clearly indicated on the outside package. One electronic copy in Adobe Acrobat PDF file
format is required to be e-mailed to the RFQ coordinator and received no later than one day after submittals are due.

SECTION ONE

1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR ALL THREE PROPOSED PROJECTS

Services must consist of the following:

A. Design Development

o

Design Development Phase — the Architect or Engineer (A/E) shall provide those services
necessary to prepare 30% design documents, the design development documents consisting of
drawings and other documents to fix and describe the size and character of the entire project
for approval by the City.

e} Permit Design Phase — the A/E shall provide those services necessary to prepare permit design
documents, the design development documents consisting of drawings and other documents to
fix and describe the size and character of the entire project for approval by the City.

e} The City wishes to utilize state of the art techniques and technology for this project.
Consideration must be given to availability of materials, equipment and labor, construction
sequencing and scheduling, user safety, and maintenance requirements.

o) All three project design phases will run concurrently.

B. Permit Documents

o) Permit Documents — the A/E must provide the services necessary to prepare for approval by the
City, all permit related documents.

e} Permit Documents must consist of drawings, specifications, and other documents required by
Local, State, and Federal Agencies.

C. Construction Documents



Bidding

O

Construction Documents Phase — the A/E must provide the services necessary to prepare for
approval by the City, from the approved design development drawings.

Construction Documents must consist of drawings, specifications, and other documents
describing the requirements for construction of the project; and bidding and contracting for the
construction of the project.

Bidding Phase — the A/E, following the City’s approval of the Construction Documents and the
most recent statement of probable construction cost, shall provide those services necessary for
the A/E to assist the City in obtaining bids and in awarding the contract for construction.

Construction Contract Administration

o

Construction Contract Administration Phase — the A/E shall provide services necessary for the
administration of the construction contract as set forth in the General Conditions and the
Contract for Construction.

Project Closeout

o

Services initiated upon notice that the work is substantially complete, consisting of a detailed
inspection for conformity of the work to the contract documents, issuance of certificate of
substantial completion, issuance of a list of remaining work required (punch list), final
inspections, receipt and transmittal of warranties, affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of
lien or bonds, permits, and issuance of final certificate for payment.

Record Documents (As-Builts) Receive and review the contractors marked up field records.
Supply the record documents to the City. Which includes, transferring the contractor’s record of
field changes to the original record drawings may be authorized by the City as an additional
service.

A summary analysis, if a Project Labor Agreement and Community Workforce Agreement was
used during construction, regarding general contractor compliance with terms of the
agreements.

Cost Estimating

Services shall include cost estimating at the following design stages. Please break down this cost for the
three buildings verses one lump sum:

O

O

30% Cost Estimate (Design level)

] Services consisting of development of a probable construction cost from quantity
surveys and unit costs of construction elements for the project.

] Parametric costs reflect the level of the 30% design documents, plus appropriate design
contingencies to encompass unidentified scope ultimately included in the program.

] Assist the City with analyzing scope, schedule, and budget options to stay within the
MACC.

60% Cost Estimate (Design Development level)

] Services consisting of development of a probable construction cost from quantity
3



1.2

1.3

surveys and unit costs of building elements for the project.

. Parametric costs reflect the level of the 60% design documents, plus appropriate design
contingencies to encompass unidentified scope ultimately included in the program.

] Assist the City with analyzing scope, schedule, and budget options to stay within the
MACC.
o 90% Cost Estimate (Pre-Bid Construction Documents level)
] Services consisting of development of a probable construction cost from quantity

surveys and unit costs of building elements for the project.

] Parametric costs reflect the level of the 90% design documents, plus appropriate design
contingencies to encompass unidentified scope ultimately included in the program.

] Assist the City with analyzing scope, schedule, and budget options to stay within the
MACC.

CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT

The City has not prepared a detailed scope for the design phase work to be performed under this contract. The
City will provide a scope of work outline to the selected consultant. The selected consultant will enter into a
Professional Services Agreement, which will establish a maximum contract amount. The City will authorize some
or all of the work elements described above on a task basis.

The form of contract used for this project is the City of Everett standard Professional Services Agreement which
is included in the Appendix.

PROJECT 1 — MAIN LIBRARY

A

Main Library Design Objective

The City of Everett intends to replace the existing HVAC and DDC systems serving the Main Library to
reduce system energy use, increase system reliability, and improve occupant health and comfort. The
project scope includes replacement of the (6) existing packaged air conditioners with electric heat with
(9) variable air volume high efficiency packaged heat pumps, relocation of (1) of the RTU units,
installation of supplemental zone heating, and replacement of the existing DDC system with connected
wireless thermostats and controls. Design will include a review of system sizing based on revised
building occupancy and use, changes to system ducting, and modifications to (1) system with variable air
volume zone control. To be included is the design of necessary electrical and structural modifications,
and any noise or architectural screening, if required.

Project Description

Three (3) of the units will be replaced with minimal modification.
e  One (1) 7.5-ton unit is to be relocated and connected to existing abandoned ducting.

e  One (1) 80-ton unit is to be divided into (3) smaller units to increase the number of control zones
and allow the use of more readily available and easier to service unitary equipment.

e  One (1) 7.5-ton unit with multiple electric duct heaters is to be divided into (2) smaller units,
allowing the removal of the duct heaters and most of the associated roof top ductwork. Small
electric wall heaters will be added in 2 locations and interlocked with the cooling system.



e One (1) 25-ton unit serves a changeover variable air volume system, which will be modernized with
a new sequence of operation and controls. Small electric wall heaters will be added in 2 locations
and interlocked with the cooling system.

e  The A/E team will coordinate with Snohomish County PUD to maximize conservation grant funding.
However, at this time no energy auditing or energy modeling is required.

e  Scope will include independent test and balance, and commissioning.

e  The library will remain open during design and construction. The A/E team will participate in
developing the construction sequencing and schedule.

Project Schedule

The proposed project schedule is as follows. Note - all three parts of this project will run concurrently:

e  30% Design 3 months
e Permit Design 3 months
e 90% Design 3 months
e Bid 2 months
e  Build 3 months
MACC

The estimated Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) is:

° $2,500,000 -This includes all materials, equipment, and labor.

1.4 PROJECT 2 — SOUTH PRECINCT

A

South Precinct Objective

The City of Everett intends to replace the existing DDC systems serving the South Precinct to reduce
system energy use, increase system reliability, and improve occupant health and comfort. The project
scope includes the replacement of the existing DDC system with connected wireless thermostats and
controls, along with installing heat in the VAV boxes on the first-floor east perimeter. The design will
include a review of system sizing based on revised building occupancy and use and review of the
variable air volume zone controls. Additional scope may include the design of necessary electrical and
structural modifications and any noise or architectural screening if required.

Project Description

e  Replacement of the existing DDC system. BACNET IP with Niagara 4 front end. Per the City of
Everett Resource Conservation Program specifications. Include the following alternates in the
design that may be removed from the project based on pricing.

= |. Demand control ventilation at zone level.
= |I. Occupancy sensing at zone level for standby setback

. Replacement of the existing VAV boxes with FP VAV boxes with electric heat on the first-floor east
perimeter. The following zones are affected, Zones: TU-1, TU-3, TU-4, TU-5, and TU-6



. HVAC RTU repairs or refurbishment as needed (beyond controls). Maintenance records will be
made available to the Design Consultant/Architect/Mechanical Engineer.

e The Design team will coordinate with Snohomish County PUD to maximize conservation grant
funding. However, currently, no energy auditing or energy modeling is required.

e Scope will include independent test and balance and commissioning.

e The South Precinct will remain open during design and construction. The Design team will
participate in developing the construction sequencing and schedule.

C. Project Schedule

The proposed project schedule for the South Precinct is as follows. Note - all three parts of this project
will run concurrently:

e 30% Design 2 months

e  Permit Design 1.5 months

e 90% Design 1.5 months

e Bid 2 months

e  Build 2 months
D. MACC

The estimated Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) is:
e  $550,000 -This includes all materials, equipment, and labor.

15 PROJECT 3 - EVERETT STATION

A. Proposed Project Objective

The City of Everett intends to replace the existing Alerton DDC systems serving the Everett Station to
reduce system energy use, increase system reliability, and improve occupant health and comfort. The
project scope includes the replacement of the existing DDC system with connected wireless thermostats
and controls, along with the replacement of the VAV controllers. The design will include the
replacement of all the HVAC controls, including VAV controllers, a review of current maintenance
records and a plan to address any deferred maintenance, repair and/or replacement of bathroom
exhausts throughout the building to make them all operational, installation of destratification fans in the
Great Hall, design of a new stand-alone HVAC system for the server/computer room and a complete
balancing and recommissioning of all systems which shall include the setting of schedules based on
occupancy, setpoints, DAT reset and DAP reset. The new control systems shall be BACNET IP with
Niagara 4 front end per City of Everett Resource Conservation Program specifications. Additionally,
alternates shall be included in the plan to add occupancy sensing and demand control ventilation.

= Additional scope may include the design of necessary electrical and structural modifications if
required.

B. Project Description

e  Replacement of the existing DDC system. BACNET IP with Niagara 4 front end. Per City of Everett
Resource Conservation Program specifications. Include the following alternates in the design that

6



may be removed from the project based on pricing.
= |. Demand control ventilation at zone level.
= |I. Occupancy sensing at zone level for standby setback

e  HVAC RTU repairs or refurbishment as needed (beyond controls). Maintenance records will be
made available to the Design Consultant/Architect/Mechanical Engineer.

e The Design team will coordinate with Snohomish County PUD to maximize conservation grant
funding. However, at this time, no energy auditing or energy modeling is required.

e  Scope will include independent test and balance and commissioning.

e  The Everett Station will remain open during design and construction. The Design team will
participate in developing the construction sequencing and schedule.

e  The design and construction of this portion is grant funded by Federal Transit Administration. The
attached clauses are non-negotiable.

C. Project Schedule

The proposed project schedule for Everett Station is as follows. Note all three parts of this project will
run concurrently:

e 30% Design 2 months

e Permit Design 1.5 months

e 90% Design 1.5 months

e Bid 2 months

e Build 2 months
D. MACC

The estimated Maximum Allowable Construction Cost (MACC) is:

e 51,498,762 -This includes all materials, equipment, and labor.



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

SECTION TWO

GENERAL INFORMATION

RFQ COORDINATOR
Upon release of this Request for Qualifications (RFQ), all communications concerning this process must
be directed to the RFQ Coordinator listed below:

Theresa Bauccio-Teschlog, MBA, NIGP-CPP, CPPB
City of Everett Procurement
2930 Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9E, Everett, WA 98201
Phone: (425) 257-8901
tbauccio@everettwa.gov

After issuance of the RFQ, unauthorized contact regarding the RFQ with other City of Everett employees
may result in disqualification. Any oral communications will be considered unofficial and non-binding on
the City of Everett. Proposers must only rely on written statements issued by the RFQ Coordinator.

ADDENDA

Changes to this RFQ will be made only by formal written addenda issued by the RFQ Coordinator named
above.

Respondents are responsible for checking the City of Everett website for the issuance of any addenda
prior to submitting a Statement of Qualifications.

The address is https://www.everettwa.gov/2713/Bid-opportunities

STATEMENT RESPONSE DATE AND LOCATION

The consultant’s Statement of Qualifications must be submitted in a sealed envelope, in its entirety, not
later than the date and time, and at the location listed on page one of this RFQ. Statements arriving
after the deadline may be returned unopened to their senders. All statements and accompanying
documentation will become the property of the City of Everett and may not be returned.

Senders assume the risk of the method of dispatch chosen. The City of Everett assumes no
responsibility for delays caused by any delivery service. Postmarking by the due date will not substitute
for actual statement receipt. Statements will not be accepted late, nor will additional time be granted
to any proposer. Statements may not be delivered by facsimile transmission or other
telecommunication or by electronic means.

NON-ENDORSEMENT

As a result of the selection of a proposer, the City of Everett is neither endorsing nor suggesting that the
proposer’s service is the best or only solution. The proposer agrees to make no reference to the City of



2.5

Everett in any literature, promotional material, brochures, sales presentation or the like without the
express written consent of the City of Everett.

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE

1.

Property of the City of Everett

All materials (including, for example, proposals and statements of qualification) submitted in
response to this RFQ shall become the property of the City of Everett. Selection or rejection of a
proposal does not affect this. In this section, the term “proposal” is generic and refers to
proposals, statements of qualification, letters of interest and any other material submitted in
response to this RFQ.

Proposals are Public Records

Pursuant to Chapter 42.56 RCW and other statutes regarding public agencies, all materials
(including, for example, proposals) submitted under this RFQ shall be considered public records
and with limited exceptions will be available for inspection and copying by the public. Except to
the extent protected by state and or federal laws, proposals shall be considered public
documents and available for review and copying by the public.

Public Records Exemption

Trade secrets (as defined in RCW 19.108.010) or other proprietary information submitted by a
Proposer in connection with this RFP might not be subject to public disclosure under chapter
42.56 RCW if the proposer specifically states in writing the reasons why protection from
disclosure is necessary and identifies the data or materials to be protected. Proposers shall
specifically designate and clearly label as “CONFIDENTIAL” any and all such materials or portions
thereof that they deem to contain trade secrets or other proprietary information. Proposers
should carefully consider what is truly confidential and should not mark an entire proposal as
confidential. The proposer shall provide the legal basis for the exemption to the City upon
request. Proposers are advised that this exemption is subject to judicial review and the
proposer’s designation of confidential may or may not be upheld by a Court.

Proposals Not Marked as Confidential

If a proposal or other material does not clearly identify the “CONFIDENTIAL” portions, the City
will not notify the proposer that its proposal will be made available for inspection and copying,
and the City may publicly disclose such non-clearly identified portion with no liability
whatsoever to the proposer.

Process for Disclosing Information

If a request is made for disclosure of material or any portion marked “CONFIDENTIAL,” the City
will determine whether the material should be made available under the law. If the City
determines that the material is subject to disclosure, the City will seek to notify the Proposer of
the request and allow the proposer ten (10) business days after such notification to take
appropriate legal action in Snohomish County Superior Court at the proposer’s sole expense and
liability. If the proposer does not within such ten (10) business days serve the Office of the City
Attorney with a copy of an order entered by the Superior Court that expressly prohibits the City



2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

from disclosure of the material marked “CONFIDENTIAL,” then the proposer will be deemed to
have consented to the public disclosure of the material marked “Confidential” and the City may
publicly disclose such material without any liability whatsoever to proposer.

6. Indemnification by Proposer

To the extent that the City withholds from disclosure all or any portion of proposer’s material
marked “CONFIDENTIAL”, the proposer, by submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, agrees
to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City of Everett from all lawsuits, liabilities, losses,
damages, penalties, attorneys’ fees and costs the City incurs arising from or relating to such
withholding from disclosure.

7. Consent to Procedure

Proposers, by submission of materials marked “CONFIDENTIAL”, acknowledge and agree that
the City will have no obligation to advocate for nondisclosure in any forum and has no liability
whatsoever to any proposer for the disclosure of any material or record of any kind when that
disclosure is in accordance with applicable law or in accordance with an order applying
applicable law entered by the Snohomish County Superior Court or a Washington appellate
court. By submitting a proposal, the proposer consents to the procedure in this Section as its
sole remedy and waives and releases all claims against the City arising from the City’s actions
taken in accordance with this procedure.

NO OBLIGATION TO BUY

The City of Everett reserves the right to refrain from contracting with any proposer. The release of this
RFQ does not compel the City of Everett to purchase.

COST OF PREPARING STATEMENTS

The City of Everett is not liable for any costs incurred by proposers in the preparation and presentation
of statements and demonstrations submitted in response to this RFQ.

CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT OF FUNDS

Notwithstanding any provision of this RFQ, by submission of a proposal the proposer agrees and
acknowledges that this RFQ does not constitute a commitment of funds or site approval.

PROTESTS

All protests regarding this RFQ are governed by EMC 3.46 “Bid Protest Procedures.”

10



3.1

3.2

SECTION THREE

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS AND EVALUATION

SUBMITTAL INFORMATION

The statements of qualifications must be limited to thirty (30) single-sided pages. The front and back
cover, required forms, and clauses are not considered a page. No additional information or pamphlets
will be considered by the selection committee. Contact information, including contact person, e-mail,
and phone number, should be provided on the first page of the submittal.

Title each page with your name or company name and note the section number for each response.
Include the completed Federal Transit Administration clauses and forms with the submission.

Statements of Qualifications must include the Signed Authorization contained on the last page of this
RFQ or they may be deemed non-responsive and may not be evaluated.

SUBMITTAL FORMAT

Statements of Qualification will be evaluated on the completeness of the information supplied in the
submittal.

Submit Statements of Qualification with the following three-section format. Failure to clearly and
completely provide all the information below may result in rejection as non-responsive.

1. QUALIFICATIONS & EXPERIENCE

Provide a general overview of your organization. At a minimum, answer the following
questions:

a) Describe your company. Include how long the company has been in business. Describe
the qualifications of your company, its business experience and achievements.

b) Who are you proposing to be the project manager for each design project if awarded
this contract? What is their experience with this work and other aspects pertinent to this
project? What are their years of experience, years in the profession, years with the firm,
years of applicable licenses, and etc? Provide a list of three major projects that person
has been involved in and their role.

c) Provide names, tenure, roles, and responsibilities for each key team member engaged
in providing the related services for each design project.

2. APPROACH & CAPABILITY

a) Provide a letter of interest signed by a principal of the professional firm with a
statement as to the location of the firm in relation to the size and scope of the project.

b) What is the firm’s availability to complete the concurrent project work within the
stated time period?

11



3.3

What other work does your firm have under way or is anticipated to be in progress
during the time frame of this project.

d) Describe your approach to the project. What achievements would you use to
determine project success? Include how all three design projects will be designed
concurrently.

e) What risks do you foresee with this project?

f) Describe your ability to estimate and forecast construction costs on similar projects.

g) Describe your approach to analyzing whether a Project Labor Agreement and
Community Workforce Agreement is beneficial to construct this project.

3. PERFORMANCE

a) Submit no more than five (5) completed relevant project experiences, within the past
ten years that demonstrate successful contract performance similar in size and scope
as described in this RFQ, including any government experience. Include the following
for each reference:

o Company name and full address

o Point of contact name, title, e-mail address, and phone number

o Contract title, number, start and completion dates

o) Contract value, description and order / service details
EVALUATION

A numerical scale will be used to score each section for the written submittal. These track the
submittal format on the previous two pages. The total score for each section will not exceed the
maximum number of points set for that section. Scoring will be as follows:

Qualifications & Experience 40
Approach & Capability 45
Performance 15

Total 100

Oral Interview: Subsequent to the City’s review of written submittals, the City may conduct interviews.
If the City elects to do this, identical questions will be prepared and distributed to each team to be
interviewed, as well as questions that are customized for each team. Additional questions both for and
to the team may be addressed during oral interviews. Each team’s demonstrated experience,
qualifications, completeness, clarity, and professionalism as demonstrated through its oral
presentation and answers to questions will be used in ranking teams in order of preference.

12



City of Everett
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS #2023-093

EVERETT MAIN LIBRARY HVAC and CONTROLS REPLACEMENT
SOUTH PRECINCT CONTROLS REPLACEMENT and MAINTENANCE
EVERETT STATION CONTROLS REPLACEMENT and MAINTENANCE

The undersigned hereby declares that he or she is duly authorized to complete and submit this Statement of
Qualifications and that the statements contained herein are true and correct as of the date set forth below.
Incomplete, incorrect or misleading information may be reason for a determination of non-responsibility by the City of
Everett.

Company Name:

Company Address:
City: State: ZIP:
Tax ID #: UBI #:

Legal status of supplier organization, i.e., corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship.

Diversity Certification (if applicable): O Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) (1 Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) [1 Women Business
Enterprise (WBE) [1 Minority Women Business Enterprise (MWBE) Certification number:

Website: City of Everett Business License #
Supplier Contact Name (if different from Authorizing Official): Supplier Contact Title:
Supplier Contact Email: Supplier Contact Direct Phone:

Supplier Contact Address (if different from above):

City: State: ZIP:
Authorizing Official Name: Authorizing Official Title:
Authorizing Official Email: Authorizing Official Phone:

Authorizing Official Signature* and Date:

*A signature means an original signature, a copy of an original signature, a PDF scan of an original signature, or a DocuSign/AdobeSign electronic
signature.

13




EVE RETT EVEERANSIT

WASHINGTON

City of Everett

Federal Transit
Administration
Clauses

Last updated: 1/13/2023




Federal Transit Administration Clauses

Table of Contents

W O N U s W DN R

W W W W W N N NN NNNNDNNNNRRPRR R R R R R @R§
PO 0P OO0 ®NO U S ®NPEODOOND O R ®N RO

SIMPLIFIED ACQUISITION THRESHOLD ......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciccc e 3
ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS......coiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt 3
BONDING REQUIREMENTS ..ottt 3
2L I I 4
BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS.....ciiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 4
BUILD AMERICA, BUY AMERICA ACT .ttt 4
CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS ..ottt 5
CHARTER SERVICE ...ttt s s aa e s b s sb s s b e e s na e sane e 5
CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (Over 150K) .....cccocereeniiniriieniiieienecienne 5
CIVIL RIGHTS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ..ottt s 5
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) ...c..cceeiririeeiinieeeentinieete sttt st st sre e sre e sne s e e 7
VETERAN'S EMPLOYMENT ..ottt sttt et s e st et en e neenne e 11
TERMINATION OF DBE SUBCONTRACTOR ..ottt 11
PREVAILING WAGE AND ANTI-KICKBACK.......coiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic s 12
CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS (40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 —3708)......cccocevvvenrerirvenrereenenn. 13
CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS FOR AWARDS NOT INVOLVING CONSTRUCTION..... 14
ENERGY CONSERVATION. ..ottt s s 15
FLY AMERICA ..o s s s be s ab s s 15
GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION ......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicc s 16
DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES (31 U.S.C. § 1352) ..eiiuieiiriieeeieeieeiesieeee e 17
NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY ...coviiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiiicc e 17
PATENT RIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA L..ooii s 17
PRE-AWARD AND POST-DELIVERY AUDITS OF ROLLING STOCK PURCHASES ........cccciiiiiiiiiiiniiiciei 19
PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS.......cooiiviiiiiiiniiene 19
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS ......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiine e, 19
RECOVERED MATERIALS - RECYCLED PRODUCTS .....coiiiiiiiiiiie it 20
SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES .....oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii s 20
SCHOOL BUS OPERATIONS ...ttt s 20
SEISMIC SAFETY .o e b e s b s s e ba e s b e e s eaa e sabe s 21
SUBSTANCE ABUSE REQUIREMENTS ....ooiiiiiiiiiii it 21
TERMINATION ...ttt bbb s e e b s e s ab e e s b b e s b e s s ae e s saa e e sabe s 21
VIOLATION AND BREACH OF CONTRACT ....oiiiiiiiiiictiicics st 22
PROTEST AND APPEALS......ooiitii et 23
FEDERAL CHANGES ... 23



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

35. INCORPORATION OF FTATERMS ...ttt 24
36. TERMS OF THESE PROVISIONS AND COMPLIANCE.......cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciin e 24
37. CONTRACTOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY TO EXTEND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS TO LOWER TIER PARTICIPANTS . 25
38. TRAFFICKING OF PERSONS .....ooiiiiiiiiiiii s aa s 26
39. FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS ......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicciin e 26
41. NOTIFICATION OF LEGAL MATTERS ..ottt 27
42. SOLID WASTES ...ttt b e e b s b e s b e e b e s b e e s b e e e b b e s s b e e s aa e sabe s 28
43. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION. ..ottt 28
44, FEDERAL “S1 COIN” REQUIREMENTS.....utitiitetirietertetesteiestete ettt sttt st et b et eb e b e bt be st esenaenesnens 31
45. CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION ORDER ON REQUIREMENTS FOR PERSONS TO WEAR

MASKS WHILE ON CONVEYANCES AND AT TRANSPORTATION HUBS.......cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiic 31
46. ADA ACCESS ..o e 32



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

1.

SIMPLIFIED ACQUISITION THRESHOLD

Required Clauses in Third Party Contracts. In addition to other applicable provisions of federal law,
regulations, requirements, and guidance, all third-party contracts made by the Recipient under the Federal
award must contain provisions covering the following.

Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold, which is the inflation adjusted amount
determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council
(Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. § 1908, or otherwise set by law, must address administrative,
contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide
for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. (Note that the simplified acquisition threshold determines
the procurement procedures that must be employed pursuant to 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317-200.327.) The
simplified acquisition threshold does not exempt a procurement from other eligibility or processes
requirements that may apply. For example, Buy America’s eligibility and process requirements apply to any
procurement in excess of $150,000. 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j)(13).)

ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included in
every tier contract.

The U.S. Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General of the United States, the state, or their
duly authorized representatives, access to all third party contract records (at any tier) as required under 49
U.S.C. § 5325(g); and (2) Sufficient access to all third party contract records (at any tier) as needed for
compliance with applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements or to assure proper management of
Underlying Agreement as determined by FTA.

A. Record Retention. The Contractor will retain, and will require its subcontractors of all tiers to retain,
complete and readily accessible records related in whole or in part to the contract,including, but not
limited to, data, documents, reports, statistics, sub-agreements, leases, subcontracts, arrangements,
other third party agreements of any type, and supporting materials related to those records.

B. Retention Period. The Contractor agrees to comply with the record retention requirements in
accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and
reports required under this Contract for a period of at not less than three (3) years after the date of
termination or expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising
from the performance of this Contract, in which case records shall be maintained until the disposition of
all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

C. Access to Records. The Contractor agrees to provide sufficient access to FTA and its contractors to
inspect and audit records and information related to performance of this contract as reasonably may be
required.

D. Access to the Sites of Performance. The Contractor agrees to permit FTA and its contractors’ access to
the sites of performance under this contract as reasonably may be required.

BONDING REQUIREMENTS - NOT APPLICABLE

Bonds are required for all construction or facility improvement contracts and subcontracts exceeding



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

4,
5.

the simplified acquisition threshold.

BUS TESTING - NOT APPLICABLE

BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS

This clause flows down and extends to all first-tier contractors and their contracts. It must be included in
every first-tier contract.

The contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C 5323(j) and 49 C.F.R. part 661, which provide that Federal
funds may not be obligated unless all steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA funded projects
are produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a
general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. § 661.7. Separate requirements for rolling stock are
set out at 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 C.F.R. § 661.11.

BUILD AMERICA, BUY AMERICA ACT

This clause flows down and extends to all first-tier contractors and their contracts. It must be included in
every first-tier contract.

The contractor agrees to comply with the Build America, Buy America Act. Construction materials used in
the Project are subject to the domestic preference requirement of the Build America, Buy America Act, Pub.
L. 117-58, div. G, tit. IX, §§ 70911 — 70927 (2021), as implemented by the U.S. Office of Management and
Budget, the U.S. Department of Transportation, and FTA. The Recipient acknowledges that this agreement is
neither a waiver of § 70914(a) nor a finding under § 70914(b).

A. Alliron and steel used in the project are produced in the United States — this means all manufacturing
processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United
States;

B. All manufactured products used in the project are produced in the United States—this means the
manufactured product was manufactured in the United States; and the cost of the components of the
manufactured product that are mined, produced, or manufactured in the United States is greater than
55 percent of the total cost of all components of the manufactured product, unless another standard for
determining the minimum amount of domestic content of the manufactured product has been
established under applicable law or regulation; and

C. All construction materials* are manufactured in the United States—this means that all manufacturing
processes for the construction material occurred in the United States.

*Excludes cement and cementitious materials, aggregates such as stone, sand, or gravel, or aggregate
binding agents or additives.

The Buy America preference only applies to articles, materials, and supplies that are consumed in,
incorporated into, or affixed to an infrastructure project. As such, it does not apply to tools, equipment, and
supplies, such as temporary scaffolding, brought to the construction site and removed at or before the
completion of the infrastructure project. Nor does a Buy America preference apply to equipment and
furnishings, such as movable chairs, desks, and portable computer equipment, that are used at or within the
finished infrastructure project, but are not an integral part of the structure or permanently affixed to the



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

infrastructure project.

CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS — NOT APPLICABLE

A. Cargo Preference - Use of United States-Flag Vessels

Include for all contracts in which ocean vessel is used to transport.

CHARTER SERVICE — NOT APPLICABLE

CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (Over
150K)

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included in
every tier contract.

The Contractor agrees:
1. It will not use any violating facilities;

2. It will report the use of facilities placed on or likely to be placed on the U.S. EPA “List of Violating
Facilities;”

3. It will comply with the inspection and other requirements of the Clean Air Act, asamended, (42 U.S.C. §§
7401 —-7671q); and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended, (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1388).

4. It will report violations must to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

10. CIVIL RIGHTS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included in
every tier contract.

The City of Everett is an Equal Opportunity Employer. As such, the City of Everett and all third-party
contractors and their contracts agree to prohibit discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity, or national origin, and comply with all applicable Federal civil rights laws and
implementing regulations. Apart from inconsistent requirements imposed by Federal laws or regulations,
the City of Everett agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(h)(3) by not using any
Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support procurements using exclusionary or discriminatory
specifications.

City of Everett and all third-party contractors and their contracts also agree to comply with Title VII of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000g, et seq.; (ii) Comply with Title | of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101, et seq_.; (iii) Facilitate compliance with Executive
Order No. 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” September 24, 1965 (42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), as
amended by any later Executive Order that amends or supersedes it in part and is applicable to federal
assistance programs; (iv) Comply with federal transit law, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, as provided in section
12 of this Master Agreement; (v) FTA Circular 4704.1 “Equal Employment Opportunity (EEOQ) Requirements



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

and Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients;” and (vi) Follow other federal guidelines
pertaining to EEO laws, regulations, and requirements.

The City of Everett also follows the most recent edition of FTA Circular 4702.1, “Title VI Requirements and
Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients,” to the extent consistent with applicable federal
laws, regulations, requirements, and guidance, U.S. DOJ, “Guidelines for the enforcement of Title VI, Civil
Rights Act of 1964,” 28 C.F.R. § 50.3; and all other applicable federal guidance.

Under this Agreement, the Contractor shall at all times comply with the following requirements and shall
include these requirements in each subcontract entered into as part thereof.

1. Nondiscrimination. In accordance with Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C § 5332, the Contractor agrees
that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, national origin, sex (including sexual orientation and gender identity), disability, or age. In
addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other
implementing requirements FTA may issue.

2. Race, Color, Religion, National Origin, Sex, including gender identity. The Contractor will prohibit
discrimination based on race, color, or national origin in accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., U.S. DOT regulations, “Nondiscrimination in Federally-
Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation — Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964,” 49 CFR Part 21; and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply
with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL)
regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity,
Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. chapter 60, and Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment
Opportunity in Federal Employment," September 24, 1965, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, as amended by any
later Executive Order that amends or supersedes it, referenced in 42 U.S.C. § 2000d. The Contractor
agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are
treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
(including sexual orientation and gender identity). Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the
following: employment, promotion, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff
or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA
may issue.

3. Age. In accordance with the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621- 634, U.S. Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S. EEOC) regulations, “Age Discrimination in Employment Act,”
29 C.F.R. part 1625, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq., U.S.
Health and Human Services regulations,“Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Age in Programs or Activities
Receiving Federal Financial Assistance,” 45 C.F.R. part 90, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the
Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason
of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

4. Disabilities. In accordance with section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. §
794, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., the
Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §4151 et seq., and Federal transit law at 49
U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against individuals on the basis of
disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may
issue.



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

11.

Affirmative Action. If required to do so by U.S. DOT regulations (49 CFR Part 21) or U.S. Department of
Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. chapter 60), take affirmative action that includes, but is not limited to: (A)
Recruitment advertising, recruitment, and employment; 53 (B) Rates of pay and other forms of
compensation; (C) Selection for training, including apprenticeship, and upgrading; and (D) Transfers,
demotions, layoffs, and terminations.

Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements for Construction Activities. Comply, when undertaking
“construction” as recognized by the U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL), with: (i) U.S. DOL regulations,
“Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of
Labor,” 41 C.F.R. chapter 60; and (ii) Executive Order No. 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity in
Federal Employment,” September 24, 1965, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note (30 Fed. Reg. 12319, 12935), as
amended by any later Executive Order that amends or supersedes it, referenced in 42 U.S.C. § 2000e
note.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)

A. Background and Applicability

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be
included in every tier contract. It is the prime contractor’s responsibility to ensure the DBE
requirements are applied across the board to all subcontractors.

B. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Participation

The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 applies to this
contract. The requirements of this contract are to encourage DBE participation and to report race
neutral accomplishments semi-annually. No preference will be included in the evaluation of bids, no
minimum level of DBE participation shall be required as condition for receiving an award and
bids/Bids will not be rejected or considered non-responsive on that basis.

C. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Definitions

1. DBE s anincorporated or unincorporated small business concern or joint venture, as defined by
Section 3 of the Small Business Act and implementing regulations, except that a small business
concern shall not include any concern or group of concerns controlled by the same socially and
economically disadvantaged individual or individuals which has annual average gross receipts in
excess of $14 million over the previous three fiscal years. The Secretary shall adjust this figure
from time to time for inflation. A DBE must be certified by the Washington State Office of
Minority and Women’s Business Enterprises.

a. Atleast 51 percent of which is owned by one or more socially and economically
disadvantaged individuals or, in the case of any publicly owned business, at least 51 percent
of the stock of which is owned by one or more socially and economically disadvantaged
individuals; and,

b. The management and daily business operations of which are controlled by the socially and
economically disadvantaged individuals who own the business.

2. Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals are those individuals who are citizens of the
United States (or lawfully admitted permanent residents) and who are:



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

a. Black Americans - which includes persons having origins in any of the black racial groups of
Africa;

b. Hispanic Americans - which includes persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or
South American or other Spanish or Portuguese culture or origin, regardless of race;

c. Native Americans - which includes persons who are American Indians, Eskimos, Aleuts or
Native Hawaiians;

d. Asian-Pacific Americans - which includes persons whose origins are from Japan, China,
Taiwan, Korea, Vietham, Laos, Cambodia, the Philippines, Samoa, Guam, the U.S. Trust
Territories or the Pacific and the Northern Marianas;

e. Asian-Indian Americans - which includes persons whose origins are from India, Pakistan and
Bangladesh;

f.  Women - regardless of race, ethnicity or origin; and,

g. Other - individuals found to be socially and economically disadvantaged by the Small
Business Administration (SBA) pursuant to Section 8(a) of the Small Business Act.

D. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises

1.

This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26,
Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial
Assistance Programs. The national goal for participation of DBEs is 10%. The agency’s overall
goal for DBE participation is 2%. A separate contract goal has not been established for this
procurement.

The successful bidder/Bidder will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through
race-neutral means throughout the period of performance.

The contractor must promptly notify the City of Everett, whenever a DBE subcontractor
performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must
make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same
amount of work. The contractor may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that
work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of the City of
Everett.

E. Affirmative Efforts to Solicit DBE Participation

DBE firms shall have equal opportunity to compete for and perform subcontracts which the
Contractor enters into pursuant to this contract. Contractors are encouraged to:

1.

2.

Advertise opportunities for subcontractors or suppliers in a manner reasonably designed to
provide DBEs capable of performing the work with timely notice of such opportunities. All
advertisements should include a provision encouraging participation by DBE firms and may be
done through general advertisements (e.g. newspapers, journals, etc.) or by soliciting bids/Bids
directly from DBEs.

Utilize the services of available minority community-based organizations, minority contractor



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

groups, local minority assistance offices and organizations that provide assistance in the
recruitment and placement of DBEs and other small businesses, such as the Office of Minority
and Women's Business Enterprises listed below.

3. Establish delivery schedules, where requirements of the contract allow, that encourage
participation by DBEs and other small businesses.

4. Achieve attainment through joint ventures.

In the absence of a mandatory goal, all DBE participation that is attained on this project will be
considered as "race neutral" participation and will be reported as such.

F. Information Regarding DBEs

Information regarding Disadvantaged Business Enterprises currently certified with the State of
Washington is available at:

Office of Minority and Women’s Business Enterprises
PO Box 41160

Olympia, WA 98504-1160

(800) 208-1064 Toll Free

(360) 586-7079 Fax

Or visit their website at http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/

G. Procedures Between Award and Execution

After award of the contract, the successful bidder shall provide the following additional information:

A list of all firms who submitted a bid or quote in an attempt to participate in this project whether
they were successful or not. Include the correct business name, federal employer identification
number (optional), and a mailing address.

H. Required DBE Contract Clauses

1. Contract Assurance

The following clause is incorporated in every FTA-assisted contract and subcontract:

The Contractor or Subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national
origin, or sex in the performance of this Contract. The Contractor shall carry out applicable
requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of FTA-assisted contracts.
Failure by the Contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this Contract,
which may result in the termination of this Contract or such other remedy as City of Everett
deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:

a. Withholding monthly progress payments;

b. Assessing sanctions;


http://www.omwbe.wa.gov/

Federal Transit Administration Clauses

c. Liguidated damages; and/or
d. Disqualifying the Contractor from future bidding as non-responsible per 49 CFR§ 26.13(b).

2. Prompt Payment and Retainage

The following clause is incorporated in every FTA-assisted prime contract:

When payment is received by a Contractor or Subcontractor for work performed, the
Contractor or Subcontractor shall pay to any Subcontractor no later than thirty (30) days after
the receipt of the payment, amounts allowed the Contractor on account of the work performed
by the Subcontractor, to the extent of each Subcontractor's interest therein, unless the
payment otherwise is excused under the provisions of RCW 39.04.250. This requirement shall
flow down from Contractor to all lower tier subcontractors.

The City of Everett will not withhold any retainage or payments owing to the Contractor. The
Contractor shall not withhold any retainage or payments owing to any Subcontractor. No
delays or postponements of payment from the above referenced timeframe may occur unless
approved in writing by the City. This clause applies to the DBE and non-DBE subcontracts.

If an DBE has not been paid on time, it should seek to resolve issues with the Contractor or
Subcontractor, if the DBE is on a lower tier. If a satisfactory resolution is not arrived at, the DBE
may approach the City of Everett Procurement Manager for assistance.

3. Resolving Payment Disputes, Discrepancies and Delays

Per 49 CFR §26.29 Contractors shall include in their subcontracts language providing that
Contractor and Subcontractors will use appropriate alternative dispute resolution mechanisms
to resolve payment disputes.

Further, if a payment to a Contractor by the City of Everett is in dispute, has discrepancies or is
delayed for any other reason, Contractor shall pay its DBE subcontractor(s) in a timely manner,
without waiting for receipt of payment from the City of Everett.

4. Use of DBE Financial Institutions:

Per 49 CFR Part 26.27, Contractors and Subcontractors are encouraged to investigate the full
extent of services offered by financial institutions owned and controlled by socially and
economically disadvantaged individuals in their community and make reasonable efforts to use
these institutions. The list of such firms is available at: www.federalreserve.gov/releases/mob.

I. Small Business Participation

Bidders on public works contracts greater than $100,000 must identify and provide specific
subcontracts appropriate for small business participation.

Definition of Small Business per the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 49: Transportation, Part
26 — Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial
Assistance Programs, Subpart A — General, Paragraph 26.5:

Small business concern means, with respect to firms seeking to participate as DBEs in DOT-assisted
contracts, a small business concern as defined pursuant to section 3 of the Small Business Act and

10



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

12.

13.

Small Business Administration regulations implementing it (13 CFR part 121) that also does not
exceed the cap on average annual gross receipt specified in Paragraph 26.65(b).

Paragraph 26.65: What rules govern business size determinations?

1. To be an eligible DBE, a firm (including its affiliates) must be an existing small business, as
defined by Small Business Administration (SBA) standards. As a recipient, you must apply
current SBA business size standard(s) found in 13 CFR part 121 appropriate to the type(s) of
work the firm seeks to perform in DOT-assisted contracts.

2. Evenif it meets the requirements of paragraph (a) of this section, a firm is not an eligible DBE in
any Federal fiscal year if the firm (including its affiliates) has had average annual gross receipts,
as defined by SBA regulations (see 13 CFR 121.402), over the firm's previous three fiscal years, in
excess of $22.41 million.

3. The Department adjusts the number in paragraph (b) of this section annually using the
Department of Commerce price deflators for purchases by State and local governments as the
basis for this adjustment.

[74 FR 15224, Apr. 3, 2009]

VETERAN’S EMPLOYMENT

To the extent practicable, Contractors shall give a hiring preference to veterans (as defined in Section
2108 of title 5 (5 USC 2108)) who have the requisite skills and abilities to perform the construction work
required under a third-party contract in connection with a Capital Project supported with federal
assistance appropriated or made available for 49 U.S.C. This subsection shall not be understood,
construed or enforced in any manner that would require an employer to give a preference to any
veteran over any equally qualified applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an
individual with a disability, or a former employee.

TERMINATION OF DBE SUBCONTRACTOR

The Contractor shall not terminate the DBE subcontractor(s) listed in the bid documents without the
City of Everett’s prior written consent. The City of Everett may provide such written consent only if the
Contractor has good cause to terminate the DBE firm. Before transmitting a request to terminate, the
Contractor shall give notice in writing to the DBE subcontractor of its intent to terminate and the reason
for the request. The Contractor shall give the DBE five (5) days to respond to the notice and advise of the
reasons why it objects to the proposed termination. When a DBE subcontractoris terminated or fails to
complete its work on the Contract for any reason, the Contractor shall make good faith efforts to find
another DBE subcontractor to substitute for the original DBE and immediately notify the City of Everett
in writing of its efforts to replace the original DBE. These good faith efforts shall be directed at finding
another DBE to perform at least the same amount of work under the Contract as the DBE that was
terminated.

A. Continued Compliance

The City of Everett shall monitor the Contractor’s DBE compliance during the life of the Contract. In

11



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

the event this procurement exceeds ninety (90) days, it will be the responsibility of the Contractor
to submit quarterly written reports to the City of Everett that summarize the total DBE value for
this Contract. These reports shall provide the following details:

e DBE utilization established for the Contract;

e Total value of expenditures with DBE firms for the quarter;

e The value of expenditures with each DBE firm for the quarter by race and gender;
e Total value of expenditures with DBE firms from inception of the Contract; and

o The value of expenditures with each DBE firm from the inception of the Contract by raceand
gender.

Reports and other correspondence must be submitted to the DBE Coordinator with copies provided
to the City of Everett. Reports shall continue to be submitted quarterly until final payment is issued
or until DBE participation is completed.

The successful Bidder shall permit:

e The City of Everett to have access to necessary records to examine information as it deems
appropriate for the purpose of investigating and determining compliance with this provision,
including, but not limited to, records of expenditures, invoices, and contract between the
successful Bidder and other DBE parties entered into during the life of the Contract.

® The authorized representative(s) of the City of Everett, the U.S. Department of Transportation,
the Comptroller General of the United States, to inspect and audit all data and record of the
Contractor relating to its performance under the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Participation provision of this Contract.

e All data/record(s) pertaining to DBE shall be maintained as stated in the solicitation.

B. Sanctions for Violations

If at any time the City of Everett has reason to believe that the Contractor is in violation of its
obligations under this Agreement or has otherwise failed to comply with terms of this Section, the
City of Everett may, in addition to pursuing any other available legal remedy, commence
proceedings, which may include but are not limited to, the following:

e Suspension of any payment or part due the Contractor until such time as the issues concerning
the Contractor’s compliance are resolved; and

e Termination or cancellation of the Contract, in whole or in part, unless the successful Contractor
is able to demonstrate within a reasonable time that it is in compliance with the DBE terms
stated herein.

14. PREVAILING WAGE AND ANTI-KICKBACK — NOT APPLICABLE

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included

12



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

15.

in every tier contract.

For all prime construction, alteration or repair contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by FTA, the
Contractor shall comply with the Davis-Bacon Act and the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act. Under 49
U.S.C. § 5333(a), prevailing wage protections apply to laborers and mechanics employed on FTA assisted
construction, alteration, or repair projects. The Contractor will comply with the Davis-Bacon Act,
40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 as supplemented by DOL regulations at 29 C.F.R. part 5, “Labor
Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction.”
In accordance with the statute, the Contractor shall pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not
less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In
addition, the Contractor agrees to pay wages not less than once a week. The Contractor shall also
comply with the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by DOL regulations
at 29 C.F.R. part 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole
or in part by Loans or Grants from the United States.” The Contractor is prohibited from inducing, by any
means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any
part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled.

Davis-Bacon Act, (40 U.S.C. §§ 3141 — 3144, and 3146 — 3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor
regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally
Financed and Assisted Construction”). When required by federal program legislation, all prime
construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-federal entities must include a provision for
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 3141 — 3144, and 3146 — 3148) as supplemented by
Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts
Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors
must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages
specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be
required to pay wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the
current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage
determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the federal
awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland “Anti-
Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3,
“Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by
Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be
prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair
of a public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The
non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency.

CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS (40 U.S.C. §§ 3701
—3708)

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included
in every tier contract.

For all contracts in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers, must
include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of
Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required
to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer based on a standard work week of forty (40)

13



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

16.

hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is
compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in
excess of forty (40) hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to
construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not
apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or
contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.

In the event of any violation of the clause set forth herein, the Contractor and any subcontractor
responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, the Contractor and subcontractor
shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia
or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages
shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards,
employed in violation of this clause in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual
was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment
of the overtime wages required by this clause.

The FTA shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative ofthe
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work
performed by the Contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract
with the same prime Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime Contractor, such sums as may be
determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid
wages and liquidated damages as provided in this section.

The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in this section and
also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The
prime Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor
with the clauses set forth in this agreement.

CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS FOR AWARDS
NOT INVOLVING CONSTRUCTION

The Contractor shall comply with all federal laws, regulations, and requirements providing wage and
hour protections for non-construction employees, in accordance with 40 U.S.C. § 3702, Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act, and other relevant parts of that Act, 40 U.S.C. § 3701 et seq., and U.S.
DOL regulations, “Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and
Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Non-construction Contracts Subject
to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act),” 29 C.F.R. part 5.

The Contractor shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records during the course of the work and shall
preserve them for a period of three (3) years from the completion of the contract for all laborers and
mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract. Such records shall contain the
name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of
wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid.

Such records maintained under this paragraph shall be made available by the Contractor for inspection,
copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the FTA and the Department of Labor, and the
Contractor will permit such representatives to interview employees during working hourson the job.

14



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

17.

18.

The contractor shall require the inclusion of the language of this clause within subcontracts of all tiers.

ENERGY CONSERVATION

This clause flows down and extends to all third-party contractors and their contracts. It must be included
in every tier contract.

The contractor agrees to comply with the mandatory energy standards and policies of its state energy
conservation plans under the Energy Policy and Conservation Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6321, et seq.,
and perform an energy assessment for any building constructed, reconstructed, or modified with federal
assistance required under FTA regulations, “Requirements for Energy Assessments,” 49 CFR Part 622,
subpart C.

FLY AMERICA

This clause flows down and extends to the first-tier contractor only.
A. Definitions. As used in this clause:

“International air transportation” means transportation by air between a place in the United States and
a place outside the United States or between two places bothof which are outside the United States.

“United States” means the 50 States, the District of Columbia, and outlying areas.

The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the “Fly America” Act) in accordance with the
General Services Administration’s regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, which provide that recipients and
subrecipients of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S
Government-financed international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to
the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined
by the Fly America Act. The Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate
certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not
available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate
of compliance with the Fly America requirements. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of
this section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation.

B. Statement of Unavailability of U.S.-Flag Air Carriers

International air transportation of persons (and their personal effects) or property by U.S.-flagair
carrier was not available or it was necessary to use foreign-flag air carrier service for the following
reasons. See FAR § 47.403. [State reasons]:

(End of statement)

The Contractor shall include the substance of this clause, including this paragraph, in each
subcontract or purchase under this contract that may involve international air transportation.

15



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

19.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

This clause applier to any tier contract that is expected to exceed $25,000. The Contractor, including any
of its officers or holders of a controlling interest, is obligated to inform the Recipient, the City of Everett,
whether or not it is or has been on any debarred bidders’ list maintained by the United States
Government. Should the Contractor be included on such a list during the performance of this project, it
shall so inform the Recipient.

(Executive Orders 12549 and 12689). A covered transaction (see 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220) must
not be entered into with any party listed on the governmentwide exclusions in the System for Award
Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 180 that implement Executive
Orders 12549 (31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, 51 Fed. Reg. 6370,) and 12689 (31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, 54 Fed. Reg.
34131), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names of parties debarred,
suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or
regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. The Recipient agrees to include, and require
each Third Party Participant to include, a similar provision in each lower tier covered transaction,
ensuring that each lower tier Third Party Participant: (i) Complies with federal debarment and
suspension requirements; and (ii) Reviews the SAM at https://www.sam.gov, if necessary to comply
with U.S. DOT regulations, 2 CFR Part 1200.

The Contractor shall comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations requirements of 2 CFR
Part 180, subpart C, as adopted and supplemented by U.S. DOT regulations at 2 CFR Part 1200.
“Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment,” which adopts and supplements the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (U.S. OMB) “Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and
Suspension (Nonprocurement),” 2 C.F.R. part 180. These provisions apply to each contract at any tier of
$25,000 or more, and to each contract at any tier for a federally required audit (irrespective of the
contract amount), and to each contract at any tier that must be approved by an FTA official irrespective
of the contract amount. As such, the Contractor shall verify that its principals, affiliates, and
subcontractors are eligible to participate in this federally funded contract and are not presently declared
by any Federal department or agency to be:

A. Debarred from participation in any federally assisted Award;

@

Suspended from participation in any federally assisted Award;

C. Proposed for debarment from participation in any federally assisted Award;

D. Declared ineligible to participate in any federally assisted Award;

E. Voluntarily excluded from participation in any federally assisted Award; or

F. Disqualified from participation in ay federally assisted Award.

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows:

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City of Everett. Ifit
is later determined by the City that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous
certification, in addition to remedies available to the City of Everett, the Federal Government may
pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. The bidder or
proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. part 180, subpart C, as supplemented by 2

16



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

20.

21.

22.

C.F.R. part 1200, while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from
this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its
lower tier covered transactions.

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES (31 U.S.C. § 1352)

The lobbying requirements apply to all contracts and subcontracts of $100,000 or more at any tier under
a Federal grant.

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995,
P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.] - Contractors who apply or bid for an award of
$100,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying."
Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used federal appropriated funds to pay
any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of
Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31
U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that takes place in
connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the
non-federal award.

NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY

This clause applies to third party contracts that are federally funded and flows down to every tier.

A. The Federal Government does not and shall not have any commitment or liability related to this
Contract or its underlying agreements, to any participant at any tier, or to any other person or entity
that is not a party (FTA or the Agency) to the underlying agreement; and

B. Notwithstanding that the Federal Government may have concurred in or approved any Solicitation
or Contract at any tier that may affect any underlying agreement, the Federal Government does not
and shall not have any commitment or liability to any participant or other entity or person that is
not a party (FTA or the Agency) to this Contract/Task Order or any underlying agreement.

PATENT RIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA

If the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract (or subcontract) with a small business firm
or nonprofit organization for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under
the FTA award.

This Project is funded through a Federal award with FTA for experimental, developmental, or research
work purposes. As such, certain Patent Rights and Data Rights apply to all subject data first produced in
the performance of this Contract. The Contractor shall grant the City of Everett intellectual property
access and licenses deemed necessary for the work performed under this Agreement and in accordance
with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and
Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any
implementing regulations issued by FTA or U.S. DOT. The terms of an intellectual property agreement
and software license rights will be finalized prior to execution of this Agreement and shall, at a
minimum, include the following restrictions: Except for its own internal use, the Contractor may not
publish or reproduce subject data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Contractor

17



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

authorize others to do so, without the written consent of FTA, until such time as FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public. This restriction on publication, however,
does not apply to any contract with an academic institution. For purposes of this agreement, the term
“subject data” means recorded information whether or not copyrighted, and that is delivered or
specified to be delivered as required by the Contract. Examples of “subject data” include, but are not
limited to computer software, standards, specifications, engineering drawings, and associated lists,
process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related information, but do
not include financial reports, cost analyses, or other similar information used for performance or
administration of the Contract.

A. The Federal Government reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce,
publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use for “Federal Government Purposes,” any
subject data or copyright described below. For “Federal Government Purposes,” means use only for
the direct purposes of the Federal Government. Without the copyright owner’s consent, the Federal
Government may not extend its Federal license to any other party.

1. Any subject data developed under the Contract, whether or not a copyright has been obtained,;
and any rights of copyright purchased by the Contractor using Federal assistance in whole or in
part by the FTA.

B. Unless FTA determines otherwise, the Contractor performing experimental, developmental, or
research work required as part of this Contract agrees to permit FTA to make available to the public,
either FTA's license in the copyright to any subject data developed in the course of the Contract, or a
copy of the subject data first produced under the Contract for which a copyright has not been
obtained. If the experimental, developmental, or research work, which is the subject of this
Contract, is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under the Contract shall
become subject data as defined herein and shall be delivered as the Federal Government may direct.

C. Unless prohibited by state law, upon request by the Federal Government, the Contractor agrees to
indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Federal Government, its officers, agents, and employees
acting within the scope of their official duties againstany liability, including costs and expenses,
resulting from any willful or intentional violation by the Contractor of proprietary rights, copyrights,
or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or
disposition of any datafurnished under that contract. The Contractor shall be required to indemnify
the Federal Government for any such liability arising out of the wrongful act of any employee,
official, or agents of the Federal Government.

D. Nothing contained in this clause on rights in data shall imply a license to the Federal Government
under any patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise
granted to the Federal Government under any patent.

E. Data developed by the Contractor and financed entirely without using Federal assistance provided
by the Federal Government that has been incorporated into work required by the underlying
Contract is exempt from the requirements herein, provided that the Contractor identifies those data
in writing at the time of delivery of the Contract work.

F. The Contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract for experimental,
developmental, or research work financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance.

G. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the federal award meets the

18



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

23.

24,

25.

definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or subrecipient
wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the
substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research
work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the
requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small
Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any
implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

PRE-AWARD AND POST-DELIVERY AUDITS OF ROLLING STOCK
PURCHASES — NOT APPLICABLE

PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND
RELATED ACTS

The Program Fraud clauses applies to all third-party contracts that are federally funded. It extends to all
third-party contractors and their contracts at every tire and subrecipients and their subcontracts at
every tier. These requirements flow down to contractors and subcontractors who make, present, or
submit covered claims and statements.

The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as
amended, 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies,"49 C.F.R.
part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the
Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it
may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for
which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable, the
Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent
claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the
penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent to the Federal
Government deems appropriate.

The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent
claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a contract connected
with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA
under the authority of 49 U.S.C. chapter 53, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties
of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5323(l) on the Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government
deems appropriate.

The Contractor agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in wholeor in
part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified,
except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS

This clause applies to all third-party contractor and their contracts at every tier.

The Contractor agrees to comply with the following employee protective arrangements of 49 U.S.C. §
5333(b):

19



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

26.

27.

28.

A. U.S. DOL Certification. Under this Contract or any Amendments thereto that involve public
transportation operations that are supported with federal assistance, a certification issued by U.S.
DOL is a condition of the Contract.

B. Special Warranty. When the Contract involves public transportation operations and is supported
with federal assistance appropriated or made available for 49 U.S.C. § 5311, U.S. DOL will provide a
Special Warranty for its Award, including its Award of federal assistance under the Tribal Transit
Program. The U.S. DOL Special Warranty is a condition of the Contract.

C. Special Arrangements. The conditions of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) do not apply to Contractors providing
public transportation operations pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 5310.FTA reserves the right to make
case-by-case determinations of the applicability of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) for all transfers of funding
authorized under title 23, United States Code (flex funds), and make other exceptions as it deems
appropriate, and, in those instances,any special arrangements required by FTA will be incorporated
herein as required.

RECOVERED MATERIALS - RECYCLED PRODUCTS

These requirements extend to all third-party contractors and their contracts at every tier and
subrecipients and their subcontracts at every tier where the value of an EPA designated item exceeds
$10,000.

The Contractor agrees to provide a preference for those products and services that conserve natural
resources, protect the environment, and are energy efficient by complying with and facilitating
compliance with Section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §
6962, and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA), “Comprehensive Procurement Guideline for
Products Containing Recovered Materials,” 40 C.F.R. part 247.

SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES

The Safe Operation of Motor Vehicles requirements apply to all federally funded third party contracts. It
flows down to all third-party contractors at every tier.

A. Seat Belt Use

The Contractor is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies andprograms
for its employees and other personnel that operate company-owned vehicles, company-rented
vehicles, or personally operated vehicles. The terms “company-owned” and “company-leased” refer
to vehicles owned or leased either by the Contractor or the City of Everett.

B. Distracted Driving

The Contractor agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashescaused by
distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while using an electronic device supplied
by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor owns, leases, or
rents, or a privately-owned vehicle when on official business in connection with the work performed
under this agreement.

SCHOOL BUS OPERATIONS — NOT APPLICABLE

20



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

29.

30.
31.

SEISMIC SAFETY

The Seismic Safety requirements apply only to contracts for the construction of new buildings oradditions
to existing buildings. This clause flows down from FTA recipients and subrecipients to first tier
contractors to assure compliance with the applicable building standards for Seismic Safety, including the
work performed by all subcontractors.

The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and
constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of
Transportation (DOT) Seismic Safety Regulations 49 C.F.R. part 41 and will certify to compliance to the
extent required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under
this contract, including work performed by a subcontractor, is in compliance with the standards required
by the Seismic Safety regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

SUBSTANCE ABUSE REQUIREMENTS — NOT APPLICABLE

TERMINATION

All contracts in excess of 510,000 must address the termination for cause and for convenience, including
the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement. This clause extends to all third-party
contractors and their contracts at every tier and subrecipients and their subcontracts at every tier.

A. Termination for Convenience or Default (Architect and Engineering)

The City of Everett may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the City’s convenience or
because of the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations. The City shall terminate by
delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date
of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all
services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the City‘s Procurement
Professional all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information
and materials accumulated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process. The City of
Everett has a royalty-free, nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or
otherwise use, all such data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other
information and materials.

If the termination is for the convenience of the City, the City’s Procurement Professional shall make
an equitable adjustment in the contract price but shall allow no anticipated profit on unperformed
services.

If the termination is for failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations, the City may
complete the work by contact or otherwise and the Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost
incurred by the City.

If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was
not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had
been issued for the convenience of the City.

B. Opportunity to Cure (General Provision)

21



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

32.

The City, in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the
Contractor two weeks in which to cure the defect. In such case, the Notice of Termination will state
the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If Contractor fails to remedy to City’s satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms,
covenants, or conditions of this Contract within ten (10) business days after receipt by Contractor of
written notice from the City setting forth the nature of said breach or default, the City of Everett
shall have the right to terminate the contract without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such
termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude the City from also pursuing all
available remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

C. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach

In the event that the City elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant,
term or condition of this contract, such waiver by the City shall not limit the City’s remedies for any
succeeding breach of that or of any other covenant, term, or condition of this contract.

VIOLATION AND BREACH OF CONTRACT

All contracts in excess of the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently set at $250,000) shall contain
administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract
terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. The Violations and Breach of
Contracts clause flow down to all third-party contractors and theircontracts at every tier.

A. Rights and Remedies of the City of Everett

The City of Everett shall have the following rights in the event that the City of Everett deems the
Contractor guilty of a breach of any term under the Contract.

1. The right to take over and complete the work or any part thereof as agency for and atthe
expense of the Contractor, either directly or through other contractors;

2. The right to cancel this Contract as to any or all of the work yet to be performed;
3. The right to specific performance, an injunction or any other appropriate equitableremedy; and
4. The right to money damages.

B. Rights and Remedies of Contractor

Inasmuch as the Contractor can be adequately compensated by money damages for any breach of

this Contract, which may be committed by the City of Everett, the Contractor expressly agrees that

no default, act or omission of the City of Everett shall constitute a material breach of this Contract,

entitling Contractor to cancel or rescind the Contract, unless the City directs Contractor to do so, or
to suspend or abandon performance.

C. Remedies

Substantial failure of the Contractor to complete the Project in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement will be a default of this Agreement. In the event of a default, the City of Everett will have
all remedies in law and equity, including the right to specific performance, without further

22



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

33.

34.

assistance, and the rights to termination or suspension as provided herein. The Contractor
recognizes that in the event of a breach of this Agreement by the Contractor before the City takes
action contemplated herein, the City will provide the Contractor with sixty (60) days written notice
that the City considers that such a breach has occurred and will provide the Contractor a reasonable
period of time to respond and to take necessary corrective action.

Disputes

Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract that are not resolved byagreement of the
parties shall be decided in writing by the authorized representative of City’s Project Manager. This
decision shall be final and conclusive unless within ten (10) business days from the date of receipt of
its copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the City Clerk. In
connection with any such appeal, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and
to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the Procurement Manager shall be
binding upon the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide be the decision.

Performance during Dispute

Unless otherwise directed by the City of Everett, Contractor shall continue performance under this
Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

Claims for Damages

Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act
or omission of the party or any of its employees, agents or others for whose acts it is legally liable, a
claim for damages, therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time
after the first observance of such injury or damage.

Remedies

Unless this Contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in
question between the City of Everett and the Contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement
or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent
jurisdiction within in Washington State in which the City of Everett is located.

Rights and Remedies

The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract documents and the rights and remedies
available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and
remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the City of Everett or
Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract,
nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach
thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

PROTEST AND APPEALS

Procurement Protest Procedures are available for review at:
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Everett/#!/Everett03/Everett0346.htmI#3.46

FEDERAL CHANGES

23


https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Everett/#!/Everett03/Everett0346.html

Federal Transit Administration Clauses

35.

36.

Any proposed change in this contract shall be submitted to the City of Everett for its prior approval.
Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and
directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the Agreement (Form FTA
MA (28) dated February 9, 2021) between Purchaser and FTA, or as they may be amended or
promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract. Contractor's failure to so comply shall
constitute a material breach of this contract.

INCORPORATION OF FTA TERMS

The preceding and following provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required
by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions. All contractual
provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F dated November 1, 2008, (Revised: July
29, 2009) are hereby incorporated by reference.

https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/Third%20Party%20Contracting%20Guidance%2
0%28Circular%204220.1F%29.pdf

Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in
the event of a conflict either other provisions contained in this agreement. The Contractor shall not
perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any City of Everett requests which
would cause City of Everett to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

The contract agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the contract parties, their
successors and permitted assigns, but shall not inure to the benefit of any third party or other person.

TERMS OF THESE PROVISIONS AND COMPLIANCE

A. The Contractor must comply with all applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements, and
should follow applicable federal guidance, except as FTA determines otherwise in writing.

B. To assure compliance with federal laws, regulations, and requirements, the Contractor must take
measures to assure that other participants in all of its underlying agreements, including, but not
limited to subcontracts or purchase or task orders with lower tier subcontractors, suppliers,
consultants etc.) comply with applicable federal laws, regulations, and requirements, and follow
applicable federal guidance, except as FTA determines otherwise in writing.

C. FTA may take enforcement action if the Contractor violates an applicable federal law, regulation, or
requirement, or does not follow applicable federal guidance.

D. Parties agree that not every provision of this section will apply to every subcontractor or any
underlying agreements. Criteria determining which federal laws, regulations, requirements, and
guidance apply include the type of award, the federal law authorizing federal assistance for the
award, the federal law, regulations, or requirements governing how the award must be
implemented, the federal guidance pertaining to the award, and the Contractor’s legal status as a
business, a “private nonprofit entity,” a “private for-profit entity,” or an individual.

E. As provided in federal laws, regulations, requirements, and guidance, FTA will enforce only those
federal laws, regulations, requirements, and guidance that apply to the Contractor, or to any Project

24


https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/Third%20Party%20Contracting%20Guidance%20%28Circular%204220.1F%29.pdf
https://www.transit.dot.gov/sites/fta.dot.gov/files/docs/Third%20Party%20Contracting%20Guidance%20%28Circular%204220.1F%29.pdf

Federal Transit Administration Clauses

37.

and related activities encompassed in the award, any accompanying underlying agreements, and
any amendments thereto.

F. This Section does not have an expiration date. Section shall continue to apply to the Agency, the
Contractor and all parties covered by any underlying agreements, until the Section is modified or
superseded by a more recently enacted or issued applicable federal law, regulation, requirement, or
guidance, or amendment.

G. The Contractor must comply with U.S. DOT regulations, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 1201, which incorporates by
reference U.S. OMB regulatory guidance, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 200, which applies to this Contract or other
underlying agreements.

H. Except as FTA determines otherwise in writing, U.S. DOT regulations, “Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 1201, and
subparts A through E of U.S. OMB regulatory guidance, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,” 2 CFR Part 200, shall apply to the
Contractor and all its subcontractors.

CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY TO EXTEND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS
TO LOWER TIER PARTICIPANTS

In certain circumstances, the Contractor’s compliance with specific federal requirements depends on
compliance by its lower tier participant(s) and therefore:

A. General. The Contractor agrees to ensure that its lower tier participant(s) will comply with
applicable federal requirements and follow applicable federal guidance.

B. Performance of the Contractor’s Responsibilities. If a lower tier participant is expected to fulfill any
responsibilities typically performed by the Contractor, the Contractor agrees to ensure that the
lower tier participant will carry out the Contractor’s responsibilities in compliance with federal
requirements, and provide enough information to each lower tier participant so that they
understands that they will be expected to follow federal guidance.

C. Risk. As provided in 2 CFR Part 1201, which incorporates by reference 2 CFR Part 200, the Contractor
agrees to evaluate the risk involved before awarding an underlying agreement to any entity.

D. Lower tier agreements. To comply with federal requirements, the Contractor agrees to enter into a
written agreement with each lower tier participant in its underlying agreement and must include all
appropriate provisions stating the lower tier participant’s responsibilities to assure the Contractor’s
capability to comply with applicable federal requirements and guidance and specifying the
responsibilities that the lower tier participant will fulfill on the Contractor’s behalf.

E. Notice to lower tier participants. The Contractor agrees to include notice in each lower tier
agreement that:

1. Federal requirements that apply to the Contractor or are included in the Contract/Task Order,
the accompanying underlying agreement, and any amendments thereto may change due to
changes in federal law, regulation, other requirements, or guidance, or changes in this

25



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

38.

39.

Contract/Task Order or the Contractors underlying agreements including any information
incorporated by reference and made part of that underlying agreement; and

Applicable changes to those federal requirements will apply to this Contract/Task Order and the
Contractor’s underlying agreements and parties thereto at any tier.

TRAFFICKING OF PERSONS

A. Contractor agrees to comply and assures the compliance of each Lower Tier Participant with:
Section 106(g) of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000 (TVPA), as amended, 22 U.S.C. §
7104(g); and the terms of this section, which have been derived from U.S. OMB regulatory guidance,
“Award Term for Trafficking in Persons,” 2 CFR Part 175, per U.S. OMB’s direction.

B. Contractor further agrees that it and its employees that participate in this Contract/Task Order shall

not:

1.

Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the contract period, including all
extensions or while Contract/Task Order is in effect,

Procure a commercial sex act during the Contract or Task Order period, including all extensions,
or

Use forced labor in the performance of Contract or Task Order or any sub agreements
thereunder.

FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS

This flows down to all third-party participants regardless of tier or value of the sub agreement.

Transactions Prohibited:

A. The Contractor agrees to certify that, prior to entering into this Contract or any Lower Tier
Agreement with any private corporation, partnership, trust, joint-stock company, sole
proprietorship, or other business association, the Contractor will obtain from the prospective Lower
Tier Participant a certification that the Lower Tier Participant —

1.

Does not have any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and
administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a
timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax
liability; and

Was not convicted of the felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding
24 months.

Signature of Contractor’s Authorized Official

Name and title of Contractor’s Authorized Official

26



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

40.

41.

Date

B. Contractors that cannot certify to the provisions as listed in this Section 38 above will be deemed
not responsible due to the delay such non-certification would cause to the delivery of the Contract.

CONFORMANCE WITH ITS NATIONAL ARCHITECTURE

Contractor shall conform, to the extent applicable, to the National Intelligent Transportation Standards
architecture as required by SAFETEA-LU Section 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. Section 512 and as amended by
MAP-21 23 U.S.C. § 51?(d), note and follow the provisions of FTA Notice, "FTA National Architecture
Policy on Transit Projects," 66 Fed. Reg.1455 et seq., January 8, 2001, and any other implementing
directives FTA may issue at a later date, except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing.

NOTIFICATION OF LEGAL MATTERS

Each Third-Party Participant must include an equivalent provision in its subagreements at every tier, for
any agreement that is a “covered transaction” according to 2 C.F.R. §§ 180.220 and 1200.220.

A. The types of legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major dispute,
breach, default, litigation, or naming the Federal Government as a party to litigation or a legal
disagreement in any forum for any reason.

B. Matters that may affect the Federal Government include, but are not limited to, the Federal
Government’s interests in the Award, the accompanying Underlying Agreement, and any
Amendments thereto, or the Federal Government’s administration or enforcement of federal laws,
regulations, and requirements.

C. Additional Notice to U.S. DOT Inspector General. The Recipient must promptly notify the U.S. DOT
Inspector General in addition to the FTA Chief Counsel or Regional Counsel for the Region in which
the Recipient is located, if the Recipient has knowledge of potential fraud, waste, or abuse occurring
on a Project receiving assistance from FTA. The notification provision applies if a person has or may
have submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729, et seq., or has or may
have committed a criminal or civil violation of law pertaining to such matters as fraud, conflict of
interest, bid rigging, misappropriation or embezzlement, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct
involving federal assistance. This responsibility occurs whether the Project is subject to this
Agreement or another agreement between the Recipient and FTA, or an agreement involving a
principal, officer, employee, agent, or Third Party Participant of the Recipient. It also applies to
subcontractors at any tier. Knowledge, as used in this paragraph, includes, but is not limited to,
knowledge of a criminal or civil investigation by a Federal, state, or local law enforcement or other
investigative agency, a criminal indictment or civil complaint, or probable cause that could support a
criminal indictment, or any other credible information in the possession of the Recipient. In this
paragraph, “promptly” means to refer information without delay and without change. This
notification provision applies to all divisions of the Recipient, including divisions tasked with law
enforcement or investigatory functions.

D. Federal Interest in Recovery. The Federal Government retains the right to a proportionate share of
any proceeds recovered from any third party, based on the percentage of the federal share for the
Underlying Agreement. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the Recipient may return all

27



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

42.

43.

liguidated damages it receives to its Award Budget for its Underlying Agreement rather than return
the federal share of those liquidated damages to the Federal Government, provided that the
Recipient receives FTA’s prior written concurrence.

E. Enforcement. The Recipient must pursue its legal rights and remedies available under any third
party agreement or any federal, state, or local law or regulation.

Contractor agrees to notify the City of Everett immediately if it becomes involved in a current or
prospective legal matter that may affect the federal government, which includes, but is not limited to,
FTA’s interests in the award, the accompanying underlying agreement, and any Amendments thereto,
or the FTA’s administration or enforcement of federal laws, regulations, and requirements. The types of
legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major dispute, breach, default,
litigation, or where the FTA may be named as a party to litigation or a legal disagreement in any forum
for any reason.

Contractor will immediately notify the City of Everett if it has knowledge of potential fraud, waste, or
abuse occurring in relation to this Contract. The notification provision applies if a person has or may
have submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et seq., or has or may have
committed a criminal or civil violation of law pertaining to such matters as fraud, conflict of interest, bid
rigging, misappropriation or embezzlement, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving federal
assistance. Knowledge, as used in this paragraph, includes, but is not limited to, knowledge of a criminal
or civil investigation by a federal, state, or local law enforcement or other investigative agency, a
criminal indictment or civil complaint, or probable cause that could support a criminal indictment, or
any other credible information in the possession of the City of Everett.

The City of Everett reserves the right to seek all remedies available to it under law, including to procure
substitute services or products elsewhere and recover its damages, attorneys’ fees and costs from
Contractor.

SOLID WASTES

Required Clause in Third-Party Contracts. In addition to other applicable provisions of federal law,
regulations, requirements, and guidance, all third-party contracts made by the Recipient under the
Federal award must contain provisions covering the following:

A Recipient that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must
comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the highest
percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of
competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity
acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring solid waste management
services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative
procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

A. General. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that its Third-Party Participants will, comply with all
applicable environmental and resource use laws, regulations, and requirements, and follow

28



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

applicable guidance, now in effect or that may become effective in the future, including state and
local laws, ordinances, regulations, and requirements and follow applicable guidance.

B. National Environmental Policy Act. An Award of federal assistance requires the full compliance with
applicable environmental laws, regulations, and requirements. Accordingly, the Recipient agrees to,
and assures that its Third-Party Participants will:

1.

Comply and facilitate compliance with federal laws, regulations, and requirements, including,
but not limited to:

a. Federal transit laws, such as 49 U.S.C. § 5323(c)(2), and 23 U.S.C. § 139;

b. The National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321, et
seq., as limited by 42 U.S.C. § 5159, and CEQ’s implementing regulations 40 CFR Part 1500 —
1508;

c. Joint FHWA and FTA regulations, “Environmental Impact and Related Procedures,” 23 CFR
Part 771 and 49 CFR Part 622;

d. Executive Order No. 11514, as amended, “Protection and Enhancement of Environmental
Quality,” March 5, 1970, 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note (35 Fed. Reg. 4247); and

e. Other federal environmental protection laws, regulations, and requirements applicable to
the Recipient or the Award, the accompanying Underlying Agreement, and any
Amendments thereto.

Follow the federal guidance identified herein to the extent that the guidance is consistent with
applicable authorizing legislation:

a. Joint FHWA and FTA final guidance, “Interim Guidance on MAP-21 Section 1319,
Accelerated Decision making in Environmental Reviews,” January 14, 2013;

b. Joint FHWA and FTA final guidance, “SAFETEA-LU Environmental Review Process (Public
Law 109-59),” 71 Fed. Reg. 66576, November 15, 2006; and

c. Other federal environmental guidance applicable to the Recipient or the Award, the
accompanying Underlying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto.

C. Environmental Justice. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that its Third-Party Participants will,
promote environmental justice by following:

1.

3.

Executive Order No. 12898, “Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations,” February 11, 1994, 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note, (59 Fed.
Reg. 7629, 3 C.F.R. 1994 Comp., p. 859) as well as facilitating compliance with that Executive
Order;

U.S. DOT Order 5610.2(a), “Department of Transportation Updated Environmental Justice
Order,” 77 Fed. Reg. 27534, May 10, 2012; and

The most recent edition of FTA Circular 4703.1, “Environmental Justice Policy Guidance for
Federal Transit Administration Recipients,” August 15, 2012, to the extent consistent with
applicable federal laws, regulations, requirements, and guidance.

29



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

D. Other Environmental Federal Laws. The Recipient agrees to comply or facilitate compliance, and
assures that its Third Party Participants will comply or facilitate compliance, with all applicable
federal laws, regulations, and requirements, and will follow applicable guidance, including, but not
limited to, the Clean Air Act, Clean Water Act, Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968, Coastal Zone
Management Act of 1972, the Endangered Species Act of 1973, Magnuson Stevens Fishery
Conservation and Management Act, Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, Executive Order No. 11990 relating to
“Protection of Wetlands,” and Executive Order No. 11988, as amended, “Floodplain Management.”

E. Corridor Preservation. The Recipient agrees that:

1. It will not develop any right-of-way acquired under 49 U.S.C. § 5323(q) in anticipation of
implementing its Award until all required environmental reviews for each Project or related
activities have been completed; and

2. It will follow FTA Final Guidance on the Application of 49 U.S.C § 5323(q) to Corridor
Preservation for a Transit Project, October 27, 2014.

F. Use of Certain Public Lands. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures that its Third Party
Participants will comply, with U.S. DOT laws, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 303 (often referred to as
“section 4(f)”), and joint FHWA and FTA regulations, “Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and
Waterfowl Refuges, and Historic Sites,” 23 CFR Part 774, and referenced in 49 CFR Part 622.

G. Historic Preservation. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that its Third-Party Participants will:

1. Comply with U.S. DOT laws, including 49 U.S.C. § 303 (often referred to as “section 4(f)”), which
requires certain findings be made before an Award may be undertaken if it involves the use of
any land from a historic site that is on or eligible for inclusion on the National Register of
Historic Places.

2. Encourage compliance with the federal historic and archaeological preservation requirements
of section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, 54 U.S.C. § 306108.

3. Comply with the Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974, as amended, 54 U.S.C. §
312501, et seq.

4. Comply with U.S. Advisory Council on Historic Preservation regulations, “Protection of Historic
Properties,” 36 CFR Part 800.

5. Comply with federal requirements and follow federal guidance to avoid or mitigate adverse
effects on historic properties.

H. Indian Sacred Sites. The Recipient agrees to, and assures that its Third Party Participants will,
facilitate compliance with federal efforts to promote the preservation of places and objects of
religious importance to American Indians, Eskimos, Aleuts, and Native Hawaiians, and facilitate
compliance with the American Indian Religious Freedom Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1996, and Executive Order
No. 13007, “Indian Sacred Sites,” May 24, 1996, 42 U.S.C. § 3161 note (61 Fed. Reg. 26771).

I.  Mitigation of Adverse Environmental Effects.

30



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

44.

45.

1. The Recipient agrees to comply with all environmental mitigation measures that may be
identified as conditions that the Federal Government might 87 impose in its finding of no
significant impact or record of decision or commitments in the environmental documents that
apply to the Award, such as environmental assessments, environmental impact statements,
categorical exclusions, memoranda of agreement, documents required under 49 U.S.C. § 303,
and other environmental documents.

2. The Recipient agrees that:

a. Any mitigation measures agreed on will be incorporated by reference and made part of the
Underlying Agreement and any Amendments thereto;

b. Any deferred mitigation measures will be incorporated by reference and made part of the
Underlying Agreement and any Amendments thereto as soon as agreement with the
Federal Government is reached; and

J.  Any mitigation measures agreed on will not be modified or withdrawn without the written approval
of the Federal Government.

FEDERAL “$1 COIN” REQUIREMENTS

The City of Everett agrees to comply with section 104 of the Presidential $1 Coin Act of 2005, 31 U.S.C.
§ 5112(p), therefore its equipment and facilities will be fully capable of accepting and dispensing S1
coins when coins or currency are required to use that equipment or those facilities, and it will display
signs and notices of the $1 coin capability of its equipment and facilities on its premises, including
vending machines, where coins or currency are used.

CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION ORDER ON
REQUIREMENTS FOR PERSONS TO WEAR MASKS WHILE ON
CONVEYANCES AND AT TRANSPORTATION HUBS

A. Compliance with CDC Mask Order. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (“CDC”) Order of
January 29, 2021, titled Requirement for Persons to Wear Masks While on Conveyances and at
Transportation Hubs (“CDC Mask Order”), is within the meaning of “Federal Requirement” as that
term is defined in this Master Agreement. One of the objectives of the CDC Mask Order is
“maintaining a safe and operating transportation system.” The Recipient agrees that it will comply,
and will require all Third-Party Participants to comply, with the CDC Mask Order.

B. Enforcement for non-compliance. The Recipient agrees that FTA may take enforcement action for
non-compliance with the CDC Mask Order, including:

1. Enforcement actions authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5329(g);
2. Referring the Recipient to the CDC or other Federal authority for enforcement action;
3. Enforcement actions authorized by 2 CFR §§ 200.339 — 340; and

4. Any other enforcement action authorized by Federal law or regulation.

31



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

46.

ADA ACCESS

The Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5301(d), stating Federal policy that the elderly and persons
with disabilities have the same rights as other persons to use mass transportation services and facilities
and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to
implement that policy. Contractor shall also comply with all applicable requirements of Sec. 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act (1973), as amended, 29 USC 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
handicaps, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 USC 12101 et seq.,
which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities,
including any subsequent amendments hereto.

The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended (ADA), 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101 et seq.,
prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities in programs, activities, and
services, and imposes specific requirements on public and private public and private entities. Third party
contractors must comply with their responsibilities under Titles | thru V of the ADA in employment,
public services, public accommodations, telecommunications, and other provisions, many of which are
subject to regulations issued by other Federal agencies. The following clauses should be included for the
appropriate procurement action.

A. Rolling Stock Accessibility: Rolling stock must comply with the accessibility requirements of DOT
regulations, “Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),” 49 CFR Part 37, and
Joint ATBCB/DOT regulations, “Americans with Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for
Transportation Vehicles,” 36 CFR Part 1192 and 49 CFR Part 38. Vehicles acquired (with limited
exceptions) should be accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities, including individuals
using wheelchairs;

B. Purchased Transportation Services Accessibility. A third party contractor providing public
transportation services must operate its services in compliance with 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101 et seq.
and DOT regulations, “Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),” using facilities
and equipment that comply with 49 CFR Part 37; and Joint ATBCB/DOT regulations, “Americans with
Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles,” 36 CFR Part 1192 and 49
CFR Part 38. Private entities must comply with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 37 applicable to
public entities with which they contract to provide public transportation services. MART advises its
third party contractors operating public transportation services to review the requirements for
public entities in this context which include but are not limited to:

1. Complementary Paratransit Service. Requirements that public entities providing fixed-route
service provide complementary paratransit service to individuals with disabilities who cannot
use the fixed-route service.

2. Equal Opportunity. Requirements for compliance with service requirements intended to ensure
that individuals with disabilities are afforded equal opportunity to use transportation systems
and services

C. Design and Construction Accessibility. Facilities to be used in public transportation service must
comply with 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101 et seq. and DOT regulations, “Transportation Services for
Individuals with Disabilities (ADA),” 49 CFR Part 37; and Joint ATBCB/DOT regulations, “Americans
with Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles,” 36 CFR Part 1192 and
49 CFR Part 38. Notably, DOT incorporated by reference the ATBCB’s “Americans with Disabilities

32



Federal Transit Administration Clauses

Act Accessibility Guidelines” (ADAAG), revised July 2004, which include accessibility guidelines for
buildings and facilities, and are incorporated into Appendix A to 49 CFR Part 37. DOT also added
specific provisions to Appendix A modifying the ADAAG, with the result that buildings and facilities,
and are incorporated into Appendix A to 49 CFR Part 37. DOT also added specific provisions to
Appendix A modifying the ADAAG, with the result that buildings and facilities must comply with both
the ADAAG and amendments thereto in Appendix A to 49 CFR Part 37.

33



CERTIFICATE OF NONDEBARMENT / SUSPENSION

e To be completed by the Prime Contractor of this bid and any Subcontractors that will be
affiliated with the work in this bid.

e Return the completed form with the original bid package.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

The Lower Tier Participant (Applicant for a third party subcontract or subgrant under an FTA project),
hereinafter referred to as Vendor, certifies, by
submission of this document, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended,
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transaction by any federal department or agency.

Where the Vendor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such Vendor shall
attach an explanation to this submittal.

The Vendor, , certifies or affirms the truthfulness and
accuracy of the contents of the statements submitted on or with this certification and
understands that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Section 3801 et seq. are applicable thereto.

Signature of Authorized Official

Title of Authorized Official Date

THIS FORM SHALL BE COMPLETED BY THE PRIME CONTRACTOR AND ANY
SUBCONTRACTORS THAT WILL BE AFFILIATED WITH THE WORK IN THIS BID. RETURN ALL
COMPLETED FORMS WITH ORIGINAL BID PACKAGE.



CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING BY CONTRACTOR (FTA)

Pursuant to 40 CFR Part 20 (which is by this reference incorporated herein), the undersigned
certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

A.

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment,
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement,
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions.

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients
shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who
fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and
not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

The Contractor, , certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of
each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands
and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. A 3801, et seq., apply to this certification and
disclosure, if any.

Signature of Contractor Print Name
Title Address
Date City State Zip

NOTE: The penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. 1001.



DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES (FTA)

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 0348-0046
(See next page for instructions.)
1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of Federal Action: 3. Report Type:

D a.contract D a. bid/offer/application D a. initial filing

b.grant b. initial award b. material change
c. cooperative agreement c. post-award For Material Change Only:
d.loan year quarter

e.loan guarantee
f. loan insurance

date of last report

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:
Prime Subawardee
Tier , if known:

Congressional District, if known: 4¢

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

Congressional District, if known:

6. Federal Department/Agency:

7. Federal Program Name/Description:

CFDA Number, if applicable:

8. Federal Action Number, if known:

9. Award Amount, if known:

$

10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant
(if individual, last name, first name, MI):

b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if
different from No. 10a)
(last name, first name, Ml):

11 Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C. section
" 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material representation of fact
upon which reliance was placed by the tier above when this transaction was made
or entered into. This disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This
information will be available for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the
required disclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and

not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Signature:

Print Name:

Title:

Telephone No.: Date:

Federal Use Only:

Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)




INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation
or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The
filing of a form is required for each paymentor agreementto make paymentto any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting
to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of aMember of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and
material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional
information.

1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the
outcome of a covered Federal action.

2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.

3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a follow-up report caused by a material change to the
information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last
previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action.

4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known.
Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward
recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include
but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.

5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks "Subawardee," then enter the full name, address, city, State and

zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizational level

below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.

7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog

of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments.

8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request
for Proposal (RFP) number; Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or
loan award number; the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g.,
"RFP-DE-90-001."

9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal

amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of
1995 engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.

(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter
Last Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (MI).

11. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB Control
Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is|
estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection o
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Managementand Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington,
DC 205083.




EEVERETT

City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet

. . Award and Authorize 2024 Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Purchases from the Lowest-Priced, Best Available
Project title:  5oyrce through Competitively Bid, Cooperative Contracts

Council Bill #

Agenda dates requested:
January 31, 2024

Briefing
Proposed action
Consent X
Action
Ordinance
Public hearing

Yes X No

Budget amendment:
Yes X No

PowerPoint presentation:

Yes X No

Attachments:

Vehicle and Equipment
Replacement List

Department(s) involved:

Procurement & Motor
Vehicle Division

Contact person:
Theresa Bauccio-Teschlog

Phone number:
(425) 257-8901

Email:
tbauccio@everettwa.gov

Initialed by:
Sh

Department head
Administration

Council President

Award and Authorize 2024 Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Funds to

Project: b rchase Vehicles and Equipment

Partner/Supplier: Various as listed in the Vehicle and Equipment Replacement List
Location:
Preceding action: 2024 Vehicle and Equipment Replacement Budget Adoption

Fund: Various

Fiscal summary statement:
The General Government and Enterprise funds have budgeted funds remaining for vehicle and

equipment replacement in 2024, which include new vehicle and equipment purchases and
associated upfits.

e Amount budgeted:
o General Government fund — 126: $3,051,000
o Enterprise fund- $4,344,000

Project summary statement:

Due to volatile market conditions and supply chain challenges, manufacturers have imposed
unexpected and short-order windows with limited availability of desired vehicles and
equipment. Therefore, vehicle or equipment requests are time-sensitive and require immediate
order placement.

To prevent ordering delays, staff requests authorization to purchase vehicles from appropriate,
competitively bid contracts as needed using the remaining budget authority as shown in the
attached 2024 Vehicle and Equipment Replacement list.

Vehicles and equipment owned by the city are replaced through an annual review process. MVD
generates a 10-year replacement list through the fleet management system, assigning a score
based on mileage, age, and lifetime maintenance costs. Based on these scores, MVD provides
the 10-year replacement list to departments where vehicles and equipment are chosen to be
replaced. A list is finalized and presented to City Council for approval during the budget
adoption process.

Original equipment manufacturers base their fiscal years on the federal fiscal year instead of
the calendar year. This results in ordering windows opening later in the City’s fiscal year and
requires quick response to secure budgeted vehicles and equipment. Due to the changing
nature of city work and the unavailability of some vehicles and equipment, departments may
need to order different vehicles or equipment than initially anticipated. While the specific
model of vehicle or equipment may change, the City will purchase from the lowest-priced, best-
available source through competitively bid, cooperative contracts.

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):

Award and authorize 2024 vehicle and equipment replacement purchases from the lowest-
priced, best available source through competitively bid, cooperative contracts.



Category 2: Sensitive information

Department | Vehicle Number | Vehicle Type Being Replaced | Mileage/Hours | Projected Vehicle [ Budgeted Amount Notes | Why Being Replaced besides 15 max points in FASTER
General Fund Departments
Engineering -024 P0324 2007 Ford Taurus 84,447 Ford Escape $45,000
Engineering -024 10022 1997 Ford F-800 Bucket Truck 4342 hours Medium Duty Bucket Truck $360,000 overdue for replacement by age
Engineering -024 T0065 2009 Kustom 5705 Radar Trailer N/A Stalker SAM Radar Trailer 14,000 approved add to list in 2023 by Lori Cummings
Police - 031 V0210 2008 Ford Explorer 113,500 Ford Explorer or similar 47,000 already surplused in 2023
Police - 031 P0356 2014 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 137,714 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0348 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 130,742 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0362 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 130,612 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0354 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 129,255 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0387 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 137,475 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0357 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 124,439 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0389 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 130,993 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0361 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 124,648 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0395 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 130,234 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0358 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 128,218 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0379 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 110,038 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0378 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 119,060 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0376 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 103,485 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0388 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 97,559 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0360 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 100,720 Ford Police Interceptor Utility 80,000
Police - 031 P0264 2006 Ford Taurus 99,380 Chevrolet Colorado Pick-up Truck 45,000
Police - 031 P0266 2006 Ford Taurus 95,079 Chevrolet Colorado Pick-up Truck 45,000
Police - 031 P0239 2006 Ford Taurus 93,814 Chevrolet Colorado Pick-up Truck 45,000 already surplused in 2019
Facilties - 038 V0179 2007 Chevrolet Express Cargo Van 82,940 Ford E-Transit Cargo Van 70,000 Electric Van
Facilties - 038 V0223 2008 Dodge Sprinter Cargo Van 137,192 Ford E-Transit Cargo Van 70,000 Electric Van
Facilties - 038 V0220 2009 Ford E-250 Cargo Van 139,586 Ford E-Transit Cargo Van 70,000 Electric Van
Facilties - 038 Vo173 2006 Chevrolet Express Cargo Van 127,672 Ford E-Transit Cargo Van 70,000 Electric Van
Parks - 101 10032 1998 Ford F-450 Bucket Truck 9061 hours Hybrid Bucket Truck 200,000 overdue for replacement by age
Parks - 101 10036 2000 Ford F-550 Flatbed w/Sides Truck 65,112 Ford F-550 Flatbed w/tool and storage boxes 100,000
Facilties - 038 M0034 2000 Genie GS-1930 Manlift 262 hours 19 Foot Manlift 40,000
Streets - 120 V0212 2008 GMC Canyon Pick-up Truck 108,669 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 Pick-up Truck $50,000
Streets - 120 V0214 2008 Ford F-250 Pick-up Truck 88,513 |Ram 2500 Crew Cab Pick-up Truck 60,000
Streets - 120 V0192 2008 Chevrolet Silverado 1500 Pick-up Truck 53,306 John Deere 50P mini-trackhoe/backhoe 150,000
Streets - 120 MO0057 2005 Vermeer SC252 Stump Grinder 1285 hours Vermeer Stump Grinder 45,000
Streets - 120 HO0056 2015 John Deere 544K Wheel Loader 6671 hours John Deeere 624P Front Loader $325,000

Budgeted Total: $3,051,000
Non-General and Enterprise Fund Departments

H0044 2008 New Holland Tractor w/mower decks 4343 hours John Deere Tractor w/Arm Mower and 2 Mower Decks $300,000
H0041.1 __|2016 Tiger Bengal Mower Arm N/A w/above replacement N/A
H0052 2013 Freightliner/Elgin BC106 Mech. Sweeper 7877 hours Peterbilt Schwarze A7 air-regen street sweeper 450,000 ordered early in 2023 to avoid cost increase
HO055 2016 Peterbilt 220 Air-Regen Sweeper 7450 hours Peterbilt Schwarze A7 air-regen street sweeper 450,000 ordered early in 2023 to avoid cost increase
H0057 2017 Peterbilt 220 Air-Regen Sweeper 6414 hours Peterbilt Schwarze A7 air-regen street sweeper 450,000 ordered early in 2023 to avoid cost increase
10074 2004 Ford F-450 Service Truck 38,953 Takeuchi mini-excavator with attachments 200,000 used to be the rodder truck, until the rodder was put on a trailer
10095 2009 Navistar 7600 SFA Dump Truck 78,934 Peterbilt 567 Dump Truck $300,000 same as 0183
M0051 2004 SECA Trailer-mounted Rodder/Jetter Unit 9 hours Trailer for mini-excavator $30,000 to move J0074's replacement
10107 2011 Ford F-450 Service Truck 81,310 Ford F-550 Service Truck 150,000
10113 2012 Ford F-550 2-3 Yard Dump Truck 89,871 Ford F-550 2-3 Yard Dump Truck 130,000 no liftgate
10115 2012 International 4400 Dump Truck 69,258 Peterbilt 548 Dump Truck 200,000 same as 10204
10116 2012 Ford F-550 Service Truck 181,913 Ford F-600 Service Truck w/ Crane 150,000
M0029 2000 Atlas XAS-96 Air Compressor On A Trailer 689 hours Air Compressor On A Trailer 40,000 like replacement
M0059 2006 Genie/Terex TML-4000N Light Trailer 1128 hours John Deere Mini-Excavator 110,000
M0075 2013 Tiger Prowler Remote Controlled Mower 133 hours Remote Controlled Tracked Mower 100,000 current mower isn't very good, need better-designed unit
50141 2016 John Deere 1575 Terraincut Mower 1639 hours John Deere 1585 Terraincut Mower 60,000
T0040 2003 Trailmax 5-5-UT Trailer N/A 18t Single Axle Tilt Utility Trailer 15,000
V0138 2003 Ford F-350 Flatbed w/ Crane 134,082 Ford F-450 Flatbed w/ Gooseneck 125,000
V0172 2006 Chevrolet Express 3500 Cargo Van 69,977 Ford Transit Cargo Van 70,000
V0186 2008 Ford Escape Hybrid 123,111 Ford Escape 40,000 Hybrid not available to govt. customers on contract
V0204 2008 Dodge Sprinter 2500 Cargo Van 104,009 Ford Transit Cargo Van 70,000 current van is a maintenance issue
V0222 2010 Chevrolet Colorado Pick-up Truck 135,854 Chevrolet Colorado Crew Cab Pick-up Truck 60,000
Utilities - 401 V0227 2009 Ford E-250 Cargo Van 63,519 Ford Transit Cargo Van 70,000
Utilities - 401 V0255 2015 Ford F-250 Pick-up Truck 184,106 Ford F-150 Pick-up Truck 65,000 replace w/ extended cab, 6.5' bed, tow mirrors, center console seating
Utilities - 401 H0025 2000 John Deere 310SE Backhoe 4372 hours 2 Ford F-150 Pick-up Trucks 150,000
Utilities - 401 V0203 2007 Dodge Sprinter 3500 Cargo Van 50999 miles Ford Transit Cargo Van 70,000 current van is a maintenance issue
Golf - 440 MO0006 1994 Toro 9110 Aerator N/A Toro 3150 Greensmaster Mower $50,000
Golf - 440 39136 1990 John Deere Tractor 9752 hours John Deere 310 Loader/Backhoe 175,000
Golf - 440 50114 2008 Toro 3050 Mower 4594 hours Steiner 450 Tractor w/ Implements 75,000 already surplused, rolled over at golf course
Golf - 440 50123 2008 John Deere Gator 2203 hours John Deere TX Turf Gator 12,000
Golf - 440 50085 2002 Toro 3050 Greensmaster Mower 4542 hours Toro 3150 Greensmaster Mower $50,000
Golf - 440 M0030 2000 John Deere TC125 Trailer-Mounted Sweeper N/A Toro GM1200 Rough Mower Deck 540,000
Golf - 440 50092 2002 ExMark XP 60" Mower 3428 hours Steiner Tractor w/ Implements $75,000
Golf - 440 50093 2002 John Deere 2020 ProGator. 5923 hours John Deere TX Turf Gator $12,000

Budgeted Total: $4,344,000

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED: $7,395,000

[Cooperative Contract Supplier Contract Name

COE 2018-065/Snohomish Co. #062-165R Bickford Ford Ford Fleet Vehicles

COE 2019-008/WA DES #01117 OSW Equij Dump Bodies and Snow Plows

COE 2023-167/Sourcewell 080818-HPI Henderson Products | Municipal snow and ice truck

COE 2022-029/WA DES #03920 Dobbs Peterbilt Cab & Chassis Trucks

COE 2024-030/Sourcewell 031721-VRM Vermeer Tree maintenance equipment

COE 2024-025/Sourcewell 110421-VRM Vermeer Public utility equipment

COE 2022-107/Sourcewell #093021-SWZ Schwarze [Street Sweepers |
COE 2024-013/Sourcewell #011723-1DC John Deere [Heavy Construction |
COE 2021-128/Sourcewell 121918-TKI Pape Machinery [Trailers |

Category 2: For official use only / disclosure permissible by law.



Category 2: Sensitive information

COE 2018-099/WA DES 00816

Various

Trailers

COE 2018-117/WA DES #05916

Bud Clary
Ford/Chevrolet; Dwayne
Lane Dodge Ram
Chrysler

Motor Vehicles

COE 2023-029/Sourcewell 091521-NAF/WA DES 13022

National Auto

Cabs, Trucks, Vans, SUVs, Cab Chassis, & Other Vehicles

COE 2015-117/WA DES #05218

John Deere/Western
Equipment Distributors
(Toro)/Horizon
Distributors (ExMark)

Lawn and Grounds Equipment

COE 2024-023/Sourcewell 110421-TER/TIM/ALT

Terex, Versalift, Altec

COE 2020-020/WA DES 00218

Various

Aerial work-platforms and digger derricks, advanced mixers
Police Radar, Lidar Speed Enforcement & Speed Advisory Systems

COE 2024-026/Sourcewell 070821-TGR/AGI

Tiger, Alamo

Road right-of-way maintenance equipment

Category 2: For official use only / disclosure permissible by law.



EEVERETT

Project title:

Council Bill #

Agenda dates requested:
01/31/2024

Briefing
Proposed action
Consent X
Action
Ordinance
Public hearing

Yes X No

Budget amendment:
Yes X No

PowerPoint presentation:

Yes X No

Attachments:
PSA

Department(s) involved:
Public Works

Contact person:
Souheil Nasr

Phone number:
425-257-7210

Email:
snasr@everettwa.gov

Initialed by:
RLS

Department head
Administration

Council President

City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet

2024-2028 On-Call Stormwater Plan Review Support

Project: 2024-2028 On-Call Stormwater Plan Review Support
Partner/Supplier : PACE Engineers, Inc.
Location: Everett, WA

. . 2019-2023 On-Call Stormwater Plan Review Support (expired) Approved
Preceding action: | " il 10/2/2019.

Fund: 401/Utilities

Fiscal summary statement:

This project is funded by the Utilities annual Operating Budget, and there is no outside funding.
The Professional Services Agreement includes $250,000 for 2024-2028.

Project summary statement:

PACE Engineers, Inc. (Consultant) will provide on-call support to supplement Surface Water
Management staff in reviewing stormwater plans for private development submittals. This will be
a 5-year contract initiated in 2024 through December 31, 2028, with a total contract amount of
$250,000. The services include reviewing stormwater elements of Land Use and Public Works
permit applications. The Consultant may represent Surface Water Management in
pre-application meetings with developers to discuss stormwater standards and design elements.
Additionally, support may be requested for unusual/highly technical types of development that
required the assistance of wetland scientists; biologists; and professionally licensed civil,
structural, and/or geotechnical engineers. Small project design support may also be requested
for tasks such as modeling, critical areas analysis, design, etc.

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):

Authorize the Mayor to sign the Professional Services Agreement with PACE Engineers, Inc.
(5250,000 total) for 2024-2028 On-Call Stormwater Plan Review Support.


https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/9841?fileID=62059

]
L
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT EVERETT

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is effective as of the date of the
Mayor’s signature below and is between the City of Everett, a Washington municipal corporation
(the “City”), and the Service Provider identified in the Basic Provisions below (“Service Provider”).
This Agreement is for the purpose of the Service Provider providing services to the City as set
forth in the Agreement. This Agreement includes and incorporates the Basic Provisions, the
attached General Provisions, the attached scope of work (Exhibit A), and the attached method of
compensation (Exhibit B).

BASIC PROVISIONS

PACE Engineers, Inc.

3501 Colby Ave, #101
Service Provider
Everett, WA 98201

johnf@paceengrs.com

Cindy Cullen

City of Everett — Public Works Department, Surface Water Management

City Project 3200 Cedar St
Manager

Everett, WA 98201

ccullen@everettwa.gov

Brief Summary of

Scope of Work 5-year on-call for stormwater plan review and program support tasks

Completion Date | December 31, 2028

Maximum
Compensation $250,000
Amount




BASIC PROVISIONS

Assured Partners

Service Provider
Insurance Contact | 800.597.2612
Information

allison.barga@assuredpartners.com

Does Service Provider have 25 or more employees?
Answer: Yes

If Service Provider has less than 25 employees, did any Service Provider
Personnel who will work under this Professional Services Agreement retire
under a DRS retirement system?

State Retirement
Systems (must
answer both
questions)

Answer: N/A - Service Provider has 25 or more employees

“DRS retirement system” refers to any of the following Public Employers’
Retirement System (PERS), School Employees’ Retirement System (SERS),
Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS), and Law Enforcement Officers and
Fire Fighters plan (LEOFF).

“Service Provider Personnel” includes Service Provider employees and
owners (such as shareholders, partners or members). If Service Provider is
a sole proprietor, then “Service Provider Personnel” refers to the sole
proprietor.

END OF BASIC PROVISIONS




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Service Provider have executed this Agreement,
which includes and incorporates the above Basic Provisions, the attached General Provisions,
the attached scope of work (Exhibit A), and the attached method of compensation (Exhibit B).

CITY OF EVERETT PACE ENGINEERS, INC.
WASHINGTON

Signature:

Cassie Franklin, Mayor
Name of Signer: Ken Nilsen

Signer’s Email Address: Kenn@paceengrs.com
Title of Signer: President

Date

ATTEST

Office of the City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
EVERETT JULY 28, 2023

B STANDARD DOCUMENT
[




4.

ATTACHMENT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
(GENERAL PROVISIONS v.071423.1)

Engagement of Service Provider. The City hereby agrees to engage Service Provider, and Service

Provider hereby agrees, to perform the work in a competent and professional manner and provide

the services described in the Scope of Work attached as Exhibit A. The Scope of Work so identified

is hereafter referred to as “Work”. Without a written directive of an authorized representative of
the City, Service Provider shall not perform any services that are in addition to, or beyond the
scope of, the Work. If Service Provider’s proposal or other document generated by Service

Provider is incorporated or attached as an exhibit or part of any exhibit to this Agreement or in

any amendment or task or work order pursuant to this Agreement, then such proposal or

document is part of this Agreement solely to the extent that it describes the Work, the Work
schedule, and the amounts or rates to be paid for such Work, and Service Provider expressly
agrees that no terms or conditions from such proposal or document are incorporated or included
into this Agreement. In the event of difference or conflict between parts of this Agreement,

Service Provider shall be bound by whichever is more stringent on Service Provider. If, and to the

extent, the Work includes the design of a public work or improvement, in whole or in part, Service

Provider’s design shall be reasonably accurate, adequate and suitable for its intended purpose.

Intellectual Property Rights. Reports, drawings, plans, specifications and any other intangible

property created in furtherance of the Work are property of the City for all purposes, whether the

project for which they are made is executed or not, and may be used by the City for any purpose.

Unless otherwise expressly agreed in writing, all intellectual property rights in such documents or

intangible property created pursuant to this Agreement, or for the City, belong to the City. Service

Provider retains any intellectual property rights in documents and intangible property created by

Service Provider prior to engagement, or not created by Service Provider for its performance of

this Agreement.

Time of Beginning and Completion of Performance. This Agreement shall commence as of the

date of mutual execution of this Agreement and the Work shall be completed by Completion Date

stated in the Basic Provisions.

Compensation.

A. The City shall pay Service Provider only for completed Work and for services actually
rendered which are described herein. Such payment shall be full compensation for Work
performed or services rendered, including, but not limited to, all labor, materials, supplies,
equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the Work.

B. Service Provider shall be paid such amounts and in such manner as described in Exhibit B.

C. Service Provider may receive payment as reimbursement for Eligible Expenses actually
incurred. “Eligible Expenses” means those expenses as set forth in an exhibit to this
Agreement or such expenses as are approved for reimbursement by the City in writing prior
to the expense being incurred. An expense shall not be reimbursed if: (1) the expense is not
identified as an Eligible Expense; (2) the expense exceeds the per item or cumulative limits
for such expense if it is identified as an Eligible Expense; or (3) the expense was not approved
in writing by an authorized City representative prior to Service Provider incurring the
expense. If, and to the extent, overnight lodging in western Washington is authorized,
Service Provider is strongly encouraged to lodge within the corporate limits of City. When
authorized, Service Provider will be reimbursed 100% of lodging expense, if lodged within
the corporate limits of the City, but Service Provider will be reimbursed 50% of lodging

General Provisions - 1



expense when lodged outside the corporate limits of the City. If authorized, the City may (at
its sole option) obtain or arrange air travel for Service Provider.

D. Total compensation, including all services and expenses, shall not exceed the Maximum
Compensation Amount in the Basic Provisions.

E. If Service Provider fails or refuses to correct its work when so directed by the City, the City
may withhold from any payment otherwise due an amount that the City in good faith
believes is equal to the cost to the City of correcting, re-procuring, or remedying any damage
caused by Service Provider’s conduct.

Method of Payment.

A. To obtain payment, Service Provider shall (a) file its request for payment, accompanied by
evidence satisfactory to the City justifying the request for payment; (b) submit a report of
Work accomplished and hours of all tasks completed; (c) to the extent reimbursement of
Eligible Expenses is sought, submit itemization of such expenses and, if requested by the
City, copies of receipts and invoices; and (d) comply with all applicable provisions of this
Agreement. Service Provider shall be paid no more often than once every thirty days.

B. Allrequests for payment should be sent to the City Project Manager Address in the Basic
Provisions.

Submission of Reports and Other Documents. Service Provider shall submit all reports and other
documents as and when specified in the Scope of Work. This information shall be subject to
review by the City, and if found to be unacceptable, Service Provider shall correct and deliver to
the City any deficient Work at Service Provider’s expense with all practical dispatch. Service
Provider shall abide by the City’s determinations concerning acceptability of Work.
Termination of Contract. City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time by
sending written notice of termination to Service Provider (“Notice”). The Notice shall specify a
termination date (“Termination Date”) at least fourteen (14) days after the date the Notice is
issued. The Notice shall be effective (“Notice Date”) upon the earlier of either actual receipt by
Service Provider (whether by email, mail, delivery or other method reasonably calculated to be
received by Service Provider in a reasonably prompt manner) or three calendar days after issuance
of the Notice. Upon the Notice Date, Service Provider shall immediately commence to end the
Work in a reasonable and orderly manner. Unless terminated for Service Provider’s material
breach, Service Provider shall be paid or reimbursed for: (a) all hours worked and Eligible Expenses
incurred up to the Notice Date, less all payments previously made; and (b) those hours worked
and Eligible Expenses incurred after the Notice Date, but prior to the Termination Date, that were
reasonably necessary to terminate the Work in an orderly manner. Notices under this Section
shall be sent by the United States Mail to Service Provider’s address provided herein, postage
prepaid, or by delivery. In addition, Notices may also be sent by any other method reasonably
believed to provide Service Provider actual notice in a timely manner, such as email. The City does
not by this Section waive, release or forego any legal remedy for any violation, breach or non-
performance of any of the provision of this Agreement. At its sole option, and without limitation
of or prejudice to any other available remedy or recourse, the City may deduct from the final
payment due Service Provider (a) any damages, expenses or costs arising out of any such
violations, breaches, or non-performance and (b) any other backcharges or credits.

Changes. The City may, from time to time, unilaterally change the scope of the services of Service

Provider to be performed hereunder. Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the

scope of work (and resulting increase or decrease in compensation), shall: (a) be made only in

writing and signed by an authorized City representative, (b) be explicitly identified as an
amendment to this Agreement and (c) become a part of this Agreement.

General Provisions - 2



10.

11.

Subletting/Assignment of Contracts. Service Provider shall not sublet or assign any of the Work

without the express, prior written consent of the City.

Indemnification. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, Service Provider hereby agrees to

defend and indemnify and save harmless the City from any and all Claims arising out of, in

connection with, or incident to any negligent or intentional acts, errors, omissions, or conduct by

Service Provider (or its employees, agents, representatives or subcontractors/subconsultants)

relating to this Agreement, whether such Claims sound in contract, tort, or any other legal theory.

Service Provider is obligated to defend and indemnify and save harmless the City pursuant to this

Section whether a Claim is asserted directly against the City, or whether it is asserted indirectly

against the City, e.g., a Claim is asserted against someone else who then seeks contribution or

indemnity from the City. Service Provider’s duty to defend and indemnify and save harmless
pursuant to this Section is not in any way limited to, or by the extent of, insurance obtained by,
obtainable by, or required of Service Provider. Service Provider’s obligations under this Section
shall not apply to Claims caused by the sole negligence of the City. If (1) RCW 4.24.115 applies to

a particular Claim, and (2) such Claim is caused by or results from the concurrent negligence of (a)

Service Provider, its employees, subcontractors/subconsultants or agents and (b) the City, then

Service Provider’s liability under this Section shall be only to the extent of Service Provider’s

negligence. Solely and expressly for the purpose of its duties to indemnify and defend and save

harmless the City, Service Provider specifically waives any immunity it may have under the State

Industrial Insurance Law, Title 51 RCW. Service Provider recognizes that this waiver of immunity

under Title 51 RCW was specifically entered into pursuant to the provisions of RCW 4.24.115 and

was the subject of mutual negotiation. As used in this Section: (1) “City” includes the City, the

City’s officers, employees, agents, and representatives and (2) “Claims” include, but is not limited

to, any and all losses, penalties, fines, claims, demands, expenses (including, but not limited to,

attorney’s fees and litigation expenses), suits, judgments, or damages, irrespective of the type of
relief sought or demanded, such as money or injunctive relief, and irrespective of whether the
damage alleged is bodily injury, damage to property, economic loss, general damages, special
damages, or punitive damages or infringement or misappropriation of any patent, copyright,
trade secret, or other proprietary right. If, and to the extent, Service Provider employs or engages
subconsultants or subcontractors, then Service Provider shall ensure that each such
subconsultant and subcontractor (and subsequent tiers of subconsultants and subcontractors)
shall expressly agree to defend and indemnify and save harmless the City to the extent and on the
same terms and conditions as Service Provider pursuant to this Section. The provisions of this

Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Insurance.

A. Service Provider shall comply with the following conditions and procure and keep in force
during the term of this Agreement, at Service Provider’s own cost and expense, the policies
of insurance as set forth in this Section with companies authorized to do business in the State
of Washington, which are rated at least “A-" or better and with a numerical rating of no less
than seven (7), by A.M. Best Company and which are acceptable to the City.

1. Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required by Washington law and Employer’s
Liability Insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If the City
authorizes sublet work, Service Provider shall require each subcontractor to provide
Workers’ Compensation Insurance for its employees, unless Service Provider covers
such employees.

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance on an occurrence basis in an amount not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and at least $2,000,000 in the annual

General Provisions - 3



aggregate, including but not limited to: premises/operations (including off-site
operations), blanket contractual liability and broad form property damage.

3. Business Automobile Liability Insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, extending to any automobile. A statement certifying that no vehicle
will be used in accomplishing this Agreement may be substituted for this insurance
requirement.

4, Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance in an amount not less than $2,000,000
per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the annual aggregate. Such coverage may be
written on a claims made basis.

The above CGL and auto liability policies shall be primary as to the City and shall contain a
provision that the policy shall not be canceled or materially changed without 30 days prior
written notice to the City. No cancellation provision in any insurance policy shall be construed
in derogation of the continuous duty of Service Provider to furnish the required insurance
during the term of this Agreement.

Upon written request by the City, the insurer or its agent will furnish, prior to or during any
Work being performed, a copy of any policy cited above, certified to be a true and complete
copy of the original.

The Description of Operations on the Certificate of Insurance must substantially read as
follows: "The above commercial general and auto liability policies are primary as to the City
of Everett; have the City of Everett, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers as
additional insureds; and contain a provision that the policy shall not be canceled or
materially changed without 30 days prior written notice to the City of Everett."

Prior to Service Provider performing any Work, Service Provider shall provide the City or the
City’s designee with a Certificate of Insurance acceptable to the City Attorney evidencing the
required insurance. Service Provider shall provide the City or the City’s designee with either
(1) a true copy of an endorsement naming the City of Everett, its officers, employees, agents
and volunteers as Additional Insureds on the Commercial General Liability Insurance policy
and the Business Automobile Liability Insurance policy with respect to the operations
performed and services provided under this Agreement and that such insurance shall apply
as primary insurance on behalf of such Additional Insureds or (2) a true copy of the blanket
additional insured clause from the policies. Receipt by the City or the City’s designee of any
certificate showing less coverage than required is not a waiver of Service Provider’s
obligations to fulfill the requirements.

If the policy listed above, Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance, is on a claims made
policy form, the retroactive date on the policy shall be the effective date of this Agreement
or prior. The retroactive date of any subsequent renewal of such policy shall be the same as
the original policy provided. The extended reporting or discovery period on a claims made
policy form shall not be less than 36 months following expiration of the policy.

Service Provider certifies that it is aware of the provisions of Title 51 of the Revised Code of
Washington that requires every employer to be insured against liability of Workers’
Compensation, or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Title.
Service Provider shall comply with the provisions of Title 51 of the Revised Code of
Washington before commencing the performance of the Work. Service Provider shall provide
the City with evidence of Workers’ Compensation Insurance (or evidence of qualified self-
insurance) before any Work is commenced.

In case of the breach of any provision of this Section, the City may, at its option and with no
obligation to do so, provide and maintain at the expense of Service Provider, such types of
insurance in the name of Service Provider, and with such insurers, as the City may deem

General Provisions - 4



proper, and may deduct the cost of providing and maintaining such insurance from any sums
which may be found or become due to Service Provider under this Agreement or may demand
Service Provider to promptly reimburse the City for such cost.

12. Risk of Loss. Service Provider shall be solely responsible for the safety of its employees, agents
and subcontractors in the performance of the work hereunder and shall take all protections
reasonably necessary for that purpose. All work shall be done at Service Provider’s own risk, and
Service Provider shall be solely responsible for any loss of or damage to Service Provider’s
materials, tools, or other articles used or held for use in connection with the work.

13. Independent Contractor.

A

This Agreement neither constitutes nor creates an employer-employee relationship. Service
Provider must provide services under this Agreement as an independent contractor. Service
Provider must comply with all federal and state laws and regulations applicable to
independent contractors including, but not limited to, the requirements listed in this Section.
Service Provider agrees to indemnify and defend the City from and against any claims, valid
or otherwise, made against the City because of these obligations.

In addition to the other requirements of this Section, if Service Provider is a sole proprietor,
Service Provider agrees that Service Provider is not an employee or worker of the City under
Chapter 51 of the Revised Code of Washington, Industrial Insurance for the service
performed in accordance with this Agreement, by certifying to the following:

(2) Service Provider is free from control or direction over the performance of the
service; and
(2) The service performed is outside the usual course of business for the City, or will

not be performed at any place of business of the City, or Service Provider is
responsible for the costs of the principal place of business from which the service
is performed; and

(3) Service Provider is customarily engaged in an independently established business
of the same nature as the service performed, or has a principal place of business
for the service performed that is eligible for a business deduction for federal
income tax purposes; and

(4) On the effective date of this Agreement, Service Provider is responsible for filing
a schedule of expenses, for the next applicable filing period, with the internal
revenue service for the type of service performed; and

(5) By the effective date of this Agreement or within a reasonable time thereafter,
Service Provider has established an account with the department of revenue and
other state agencies, where required, for the service performed for the payment
of all state taxes normally paid by employers and businesses and has registered
for and received a unified business identifier number from the state of
Washington; and

(6) By the effective date of this Agreement, Service Provider is maintaining a separate
set of records that reflect all items of income and expenses of the services
performed.

Any and all employees of Service Provider, while engaged in the performance of any Work,
shall be considered employees of only Service Provider and not employees of the City.
Service Provider shall be solely liable for any and all claims that may or might arise under the
Worker's Compensation Act on behalf of such employees or Service Provider, while so
engaged and for any and all claims made by a third party as a consequence of any negligent
act or omission on the part of Service Provider's employees, while so engaged on any of the
Work.

General Provisions - 5



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

D. Service Provider shall comply with all applicable provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act
and other legislation affecting its employees and the rules and regulations issued thereunder
insofar as applicable to its employees and shall at all times save the City free, clear and
harmless from all actions, claims, demands and expenses arising out of such act, and rules
and regulations that are or may be promulgated in connection therewith.

E. Service Provider assumes full responsibility for the payment of all payroll taxes, use, sales,
income, or other form of taxes (such as state and, city business and occupation taxes), fees,
licenses, excises or payments required by any city, federal or state legislation which are now
or may during the term of the Agreement be enacted as to all persons employed by Service
Provider and as to all duties, activities and requirements by Service Provider in performance
of the Work and Service Provider shall assume exclusive liability therefor, and meet all
requirements thereunder pursuant to any rules or regulations that are now or may be
promulgated in connection therewith.

Employment/Conflict of Interest. Service Provider warrants that it has not employed or retained

any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Service Provider, to

solicit or secure this Agreement and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person,
other than a bona fide employee working solely for Service Provider, any fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from
the award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the City shall
have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the

Agreement price or consideration or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission,

percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee. Further, it is recognized that Service Provider

may or will be performing professional services during the term of this Agreement for other
parties; however, such performance of other services shall not conflict with or interfere with

Service Provider's ability to perform the Work. Service Provider agrees to resolve any such

conflicts of interest in favor of the City.

Audits and Inspections. At any time during normal business hours and as often as the City may

deem necessary, Service Provider shall make available to the City for the City’s examination all of

Service Provider’s records and documents with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement

and, furthermore, Service Provider will permit the City to audit, examine and make copies,

excerpts or transcripts from such records, and to make audits of all contracts, invoices, materials,
payrolls, records of personnel, conditions of employment and other data relating to all matters
covered by this Agreement.

City of Everett Business License. Service Provider agrees to obtain a City of Everett business

license prior to performing any work pursuant to this Agreement.

State of Washington Requirements. Service Provider agrees to register and obtain any State of

Washington business licenses, Department of Revenue account and/or unified business identifier

number as required by RCW 50.04.140 and 51.08.195 prior to performing any work pursuant to

this Agreement.

Compliance with Federal, State and Local Laws. Service Provider shall comply with and obey all

federal, state and local laws, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the operation of its

business and to its performance of work hereunder.

Compliance with the Washington State Public Records Act. Service Provider acknowledges that

the City is subject to the Public Records Act, chapter 42.56 RCW (the “Act”). All records owned,

used or retained by the City are public records subject to disclosure unless exempt under the Act,
whether or not such records are in the possession or control of the City or Service Provider.

Service Provider shall cooperate with the City so that the City may comply with all of its obligations

under the Act. Within ten (10) days after receipt of notice from the City, Service Provider shall

General Provisions - 6



20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31

deliver to the City copies of all records relating to this Agreement or relating to the Work that the
City determines qualify as the City’s public records under the Act. If the City receives a public
records request relating to this Agreement or relating to the Work, the City shall seek to provide
notice to Service Provider at least ten (10) days before the City releases records pursuant to such
public records request, but in no event will the City have any liability to Service Provider for any
failure of the City to provide such notice. In addition to its other indemnification and defense
obligations under this Agreement, Service Provider shall indemnify and defend the City from and
against any and all losses, penalties, fines, claims, demands, expenses (including, but not limited
to, attorney’s fees and litigation expenses), suits, judgments, or damage arising from or relating
to any failure of Service Provider to comply with this Section.

Compliance with Grant/Loan Terms and Conditions. Service Provider shall comply with any and
all terms, conditions, terms and requirements of any federal, state or other agency grant or loan
that wholly or partially funds Service Provider’s work hereunder. If the grant or loan requires that
the agency be a third party beneficiary to this Agreement, then the agency is a third party
beneficiary to this Agreement.

Equal Employment Opportunity. Service Provider shall not discriminate against any employee,
applicant for employment, or other person on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age,
disability, marital state, or national origin or other circumstance prohibited by applicable
federal, state, or local law or ordinance. Service Provider shall comply with and shall not violate
any applicable provisions of Chapter 49.60 RCW, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and all
applicable federal, state, or local law or ordinance regarding non-discrimination.

Waiver. Any waiver by Service Provider or the City or the breach of any provision of this
Agreement by the other party will not operate, or be construed, as a waiver of any subsequent
breach by either party or prevent either party from thereafter enforcing any such provisions.
Complete Agreement. This Agreement contains the complete and integrated understanding and
agreement between the parties and supersedes any understanding, agreement or negotiation
whether oral or written not set forth herein.

Modification of Agreement. This Agreement may only be modified as provided in Section 8, or
by a writing explicitly identified as a modification or amendment of this Agreement that is signed
by authorized representatives of the City and Service Provider.

Severability. If any part of this Agreement is found to be in conflict with applicable laws, such
part shall be inoperative, null and void, insofar as it is in conflict with said laws, and the remainder
of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Notices.

A. Notices to the City shall be sent to the City Project Manager address in the Basic Provisions.
B. Notices to Service Provider shall be sent to its address in the Basic Provisions.

Venue. Venue for any lawsuit arising out of this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of
Snohomish County, Washington.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of Washington, without giving effect to principles of conflict
of laws, govern all matters arising out of or relating to this Agreement.

City Marks. Service Provider will not use any trade name, trademark, service mark, or logo of the
City (or any name, mark, or logo confusingly similar thereto) in any advertising, promotions, or
otherwise, without the City's express prior written consent.

No Personal Liability. No officer, agent or employee of the City shall be personally responsible
for any liability arising under this Agreement, whether expressed or implied, nor for any
statement or representation made or in any connection with this Agreement.

Federal Debarment. Service Provider shall immediately notify the City of any suspension or
debarment or other action that excludes Service Provider or any Service Provider subcontractor from

General Provisions - 7



32.

33.

participation in Federal contracting. Service Provider shall verify all subcontractors that are intended
and/or used by Service Provider for performance of Work are in good standing and are not debarred,
suspended or otherwise ineligible by the Federal Government. Debarment shall be verified at
https://www.epls.gov/epls/search.do. Service Provider shall keep proof of such verification within
Service Provider records.

Signature/Counterparts. This Agreement and any amendment thereto may be signed in
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which, taken together, shall be
deemed one and the same document. AdobeSign signatures are fully binding. Any ink, electronic,
faxed, scanned, photocopied, or similarly reproduced signature on this Agreement or any
amendment hereto will be deemed an original signature and will be fully enforceable as an original
signature.

Standard Document. This General Provisions document is a standard City form document. No
changes by Service Provider are authorized to the General Provisions. Notwithstanding anything

to the contrary in this Agreement, in the event that Service Provider makes unauthorized

changes to the General Provisions, such changes are deemed to have never been made and

the contract between the City and Service Provider is deemed to be the unchanged standard

City form General Provisions in version stated below, regardless of whether the City signs this
Agreement in a form that may contain the unauthorized changes.

END OF GENERAL PROVISIONS
(v.071423.1)

B STANDARD DOCUMENT
B APPROVED AS TO FORM
OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY
EVERETT juLy 28, 2023

General Provisions - 8



EXHIBIT A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
(SCOPE OF WORK -- ATTACHED)

Exhibit A (Scope of Work)



Exhibit A
2024-2028 On-Call Stormwater Plan Review Support

Scope of Work

The Scope of Work for the 2024-2028 On-Call Stormwater Plan Review Support services may include,
but is not limited to, the following tasks.

Task 1: Project Management and Contract Administration

The Consultant shall organize, manage, and coordinate the disciplines required to accomplish the
contract and shall perform multiple work orders concurrently. The Consultant shall coordinate its work
with efforts performed by City staff and other consultants or contractors. The Consultant shall provide
project management and contract administration services to facilitate efficient progress on each work
order, including:

e Project team management and coordination, including managing sub-consultants.

¢ Meeting organization, facilitation, and documentation.

* Manage, monitor, and prepare progress reports, schedules, scope, and scope changes of all
work performed under this contract.

e Regular check-ins with the City representative to coordinate plan review support and provide
updates on a timely basis.

Task 2: Review of Development Applications

Perform plan review for development applications in the City of Everett separate storm area including,
but not limited to, preliminary subdivisions, SEPA, shoreline applications, and Public Works Permit
applications. The Consultant will focus primarily on stormwater elements, while other City staff will be
responsible for review of non-stormwater elements such as transportation, water, and sewer. Public
Works permit application reviews will be for Minimum Requirement #1-9 projects. All other reviews and
meetings will include a range of projects (e.g., MR #2 only, MR #1-5, and MR #1-9).

Each development project that is sent to the Consultant for review will be tracked separately, but a
separate scope and fee estimate will not be prepared prior to performing the work unless requested by
the City. Each month, a single invoice will be submitted for payment which includes a summary of costs
incurred for each project reviewed and overall project monthly charges. The first page of the invoice will
include a table that, at minimum, lists total budget, current charges, cumulative charges, and remaining
budget for each task, expense, and the total contract. The first page will also provide a summary report
of work done under the billing period.

The Consultant shall provide a variety of development review services, which may include, but not be
limited to the following:

e Review construction plans and supporting documents submitted to the City of Everett in
conjunction with development applications for compliance with the City of Everett standards,
codes, and specific requirements for development applications. Examples of the City of Everett



standards and codes include the Everett Municipal Code, City of Everett Design and
Construction Standards & Specifications, Standard Drawings, current Ecology Stormwater
Management Manual for Western Washington, and ordinances.

Provide geotechnical and hydrogeologic review of development plans and reports related to
stormwater project components.

Perform site visits, as needed, to confirm site conditions and adjacent infrastructure related to
development applications.

Attend scheduled meetings and represent the Public Works Department in preapplication
meetings with developers to discuss stormwater standards and design elements as needed.
Written comments and redlines or final approval and permit conditions shall be provided to the
City as follows. These review periods will include coordination with the City representative for a
final check and acceptance of consultant comments or approval recommendation. Delivery
method and format will be specified by the City.

Preliminary Comments Final Comments or
Review Type Due for City Review ? Approval Due®

Preapplication Meetings 3 days prior to final due 2 weeks

date
Land Use Application 3 days prior to final due 2 weeks
Reviews date
Public Works Permit 1°t Review: 3 days prior 1°t Review: 2 weeks
Application — Simple to final due date

Projects (e.g., small, single-

family developments) Re-Review: 2 days prior Re-Review: 1 week

to final due date

Public Works Permit 1%t Review: 1 week prior | 1%t Review: 4 weeks
Application — Complex to final due date

Projects (e.g., larger

developments or complex Re-Review: 4 days prior Re-Review: 2 weeks
sites such as those with to final due date

wetlands) ¢

a) The City representative may request comment revisions or follow-up discussions with Consultant. This
will not extend the final due date unless specified by the City representative.

b) Project priorities may change, and review timelines may be shortened to meet City needs. The City
representative and Consultant will regularly communicate to establish exact due dates and
expectations.

c) Complex projects may warrant additional check-ins between the Consultant and City representative.
The City representative will indicate which projects are complex when routing to the Consultant or after
the Consultant apprises the City representative of complex elements that are discovered during review.

Respond to comments and inquiries about plan review from City staff, developer's engineers,
and others as necessary or as directed by City staff.

Meet to discuss review comments with the City representative, development proponents as
necessary, or others as directed by City staff.

Provide feedback to City staff relative to adequacy, appropriateness, and thoroughness of City
standard specifications and details.

Perform other incidental engineering services in connection with plan checking.

Meet with City staff periodically to evaluate process and performance of the Consultant.



Task 3: General Engineering Services (task order based)

The Consultant will provide technical and professional support for each task order based on the agreed-
upon work plan, scope and schedule negotiated prior to the authorization of each task order. The
Consultant shall provide a variety of general engineering services, which may include, but not be limited
to the following:

* Prepare standardized forms and checklists for performing development review to be in
compliance with City of Everett standards and codes.

¢ Prepare planning level opinion of probable project costs for capital projects in the City of
Everett.

e Complete preliminary and final design for small Public Works surface water projects. Examples
include pipeline upgrades, pump station improvements, runoff treatment and flow control
facilities, green stormwater infrastructure, emergency erosion stabilization repairs, drainage
ditch restoration, culvert upgrades, etc.

¢ Hydrologic and hydraulic modeling for assessment of flooding issues and capacity analysis
including technical memos for documentation.

¢ Provide technical review of complex stormwater modeling, geotechnical or hydrogeologic
assessments, or other project elements prepared by professionals for development or internal
projects. Technical reviews will be performed by professionals with knowledge and experience
appropriate to peer review for the material being reviewed.

¢ Land Survey Engineering including topographic survey and base mapping, as-built surveys,
easement and property boundary support, and GIS mapping of utilities infrastructure.

e Landscape Architecture including design and preparation of landscape plans for stormwater
facilities, and stream and wetland restoration.

e Arborist services including tree assessment reports, tree management plans, and tree
maintenance recommendation.

¢ Geotechnical Engineering including soil tests, borings, excavating test pits, slope stability
analysis, and reports.

e Environmental Science services including studies of sensitive areas and preparation of
documents, reports, and studies required by the permitting agencies.



EXHIBIT B
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING METHODS OF COMPENSATION, EACH OF WHICH IS
SUBJECT TO THE MAXIMUM COMPENSATION AMOUNT

HOURLY RATE. The City shall pay Service Provider a sum equal to the amount of hours
actually worked multiplied by the rate identified below for staff performing the Work.

Name Title Rate
(see attached)

If there are more staff than rows in the table above, then those staff names, titles, and rates shall
be provided in the Scope of Work.

|:| PROGRESS PAYMENTS. The City shall pay Service Provider the following amounts upon the
completion of the following tasks.

Task Amount Paid on
Task Completion

If there are more tasks than rows in the table above, then those tasks and payment amounts shall
be provided in the Scope of Work.

D LUMP SUM. The City shall pay Service Provider S upon the completion of the
Work.

D METHOD CONTAINED IN SCOPE OF WORK. The City shall pay Service Provider as set forth in
the Scope of Work.

D METHOD CONTAINED IN ATTACHED PAGE(S). The City shall pay Service Provider as set forth
in the spreadsheets or other documents attached to this Exhibit B.

Exhibit B (Method of Compensation)




CITY OF EVERETT Exhibit B

A PACE 2024 STANDARD
HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE Water | Land | Infrastructure | Facilities
Effective January 1, 2024
DESCRIPTION HOURLY RATE
1. Office Tech |, Expediter | $ 65.00
2. Office Tech Il, Expediter Il, Survey Field Tech $ 80.00
3. Intern, Survey Tech |, Jr. CAD Tech, Jr. Inspector, Office Tech lll $100.00
4. Designer, Jr. Planner, Survey Tech Il, CAD Tech, Inspector, Sr. Office Tech,
Jr. Ecologist/Scientist $120.00
5. Jr. Engineering Staff, Designer |, Planner, GIS Tech, Survey Tech lll, CAD Tech |, Inspector |,
Project Administrator, Ecologist/Scientist $136.00
6. Engineering Staff |, Designer Il, Planner I, Survey Tech IV, GIS Analyst I, CAD Tech Il, Inspector I,
Sr. Project Administrator, Ecologist/Scientist | $151.00
7. Engineering Staff I, Designer lll, Planner Il, GIS Analyst Il, CAD Tech lll, Inspector lll, Survey Tech V,
Ecologist/Scientist Il, Landscape Architect | $ 166.00
8. Project Designer, Planner lll, Sr. Survey Tech, GIS Analyst lll, Engineering Staff lll, Sr. CAD Tech,
Sr. Inspector, Ecologist/Scientist lll, Landscape Architect Il $181.00
9. Engineer |V, Project Designer I, Sr. Planner, Project Surveyor, Sr. GIS Analyst, CAD Manager,
Project CAD Tech, Sr. Project Inspector, Engineering Staff [V, One-Person Crew, BIM Manager,
Ecologist/Scientist IV, Landscape Architect Il $194.00
10. Project Engineer, Project Designer Il, Project Planner, Sr. Project Surveyor, Sr. Project GIS Analyst,
Structural Engineer, UAS Pilot, Ecologist/Scientist V, Landscape Architect IV $209.00
11.  Sr. Project Engineer, Sr. Structural Engineer, Sr. Project Designer, IT Manager, Sr. Project Planner,
Survey Project Manager, Tech Services Manager, Sr. Ecologist/Scientist, Sr. Landscape Architect $222.00
12. Project Manager, Principal Surveyor, Planning Project Manager, Principal Ecologist/Scientist $238.00
13.  Sr. Project Manager Sr. Principal Surveyor, Two-Person Crew,
Sr. Principal Ecologist/Scientist $252.00
14. Principal Engineer, Principal Planner, Sr. Two-Person Crew $272.00
15.  Sr. Principal Engineer, Sr. Principal Planner $288.00
REIMBURSABLES
A. Subconsultants, Professional and Technical Cost +5%
B.  Project Administration $60.00/Invoice
C. Maps, reports, materials, permit fees, express delivery and messenger,
pass-through bills, and similar items necessary for work in progress Cost
D. Out-of-Town travel and cost of commercial transportation Cost
(Meal per diem per federal per diem rules.)
(Air travel, if needed, will be authorized and arranged by the City.)
E. Transportation within 30 Mile Radius * No Charge
Transportation beyond 30 Mile Radius — Automobile At Approved IRS Rate
* On job inspection mileage will be billed At Approved IRS Rate
F. Printing Costs
Large Format Blueprints and Reproduction - Bond $ 0.50/sq ft
Large Format Blueprints and Reproduction — Mylar $1.50/sq ft
Color Copies - In-house (82x 11) $ 0.25/page
G. Expert Witness Rate x 1.5
Notes: ' All payment is due within 30 days from date of invoice. A monthly service charge of 1% will be added on all accounts

older than 30 days.

2 PACE shall be entitled to annual increase in billing rates shown on each anniversary of the contract execution date.
This increase shall be 3% or the rate of inflation as determined the Seattle area Consumer Price Index (CPI)

published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, whichever is higher.

Rev. 12/12/2023



i=E EVERETT city Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet

Project title: Water Main Replacement “W” Project

Council Bill #

Agenda dates requested:
1/31/24

Briefing
Proposed action
Consent X
Action
Ordinance
Public hearing
Yes x No

Budget amendment:
Yes x No

PowerPoint presentation:

Yes x No

Attachments:
Change Order No. 1

Department(s) involved:
Public Works, Admin

Contact person:
Tom Hood

Phone number:
(425) 257-8809

Email:
thood@everettwa.gov

Initialed by:
RLS

Department head
Administration

Council President

Consideration: Authorize Change Order No. 1
Project: Water Main Replacement “W”

Partner/Supplier: Quilceda Excavation, Inc.

Location: Wilmington Avenue from 52" Street to Evergreen Way; Hoyt Avenue
0Cation:  from 41% Street to 44" Street

Preceding action: Award of Construction Contract 6/1/22

Fund: 336-Water & Sewer System Improvements Fund

Fiscal summary statement:
Original contract Amount: $1,843,150.92

Project summary statement:

The project replaces and upsizes approximately 3,900 feet of aging cast iron water mains
that are prone to breaking and hydraulically deficient for fire suppression. Site
restoration includes pavement patching, and replacement of curb, gutter, and sidewalks.

This Change Order No. 1 adds working days to the contract with no increase in monetary
compensation.

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):

Authorize Change Order No.1 for Mayor’s signature.


https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/13827?fileID=81195

A=

WASHINGTON

Change Order No. 1
EVERETT change Order Effective Date: 11/28/2023
CITY OF EVERETT
Change Order

Project Title Water Main Replacement “W"
Department Public Works
Work Order No. UP-3766
Contractor: Quilceda Excavation, Inc.
Contract Award
Date: 6/1/2023
City Staff Contact: Don Snyder
Change Order No. 1
Change Order
Effective Date 11/28/2023
CONTRACT SUM
Original Total of This Change Contract Sum
Contract Sum | Previous Order After this
Change Orders Change Order
Amount | $1,843,150.92 | $0 $0 $1,843,150.92
* $182,471.94 $0 $0 $182,471.94
WSST
Total $2,024,622.86 |$ $ $$2,024,622.86
CONTRACT TIME
Original Contract Time Working Days [X] / Calendar
Days [ ]

Date of Notice to Proceed 11/21/22
Cumulative adjustment to time by prior Change Orders 0
Adjustment to time by this Change Order 58
New Contract Time (including this Change Order) 133

Page 1 of 5




Change Order No. 1
Change Order Effective Date: 11/28/2023

Contractor and City agree as follows:

1.
2,

The scope of Work shall be changed to the extent described in Exhibit A.
The amount of this Change Order for the changes described in Exhibit A,
represents complete compensation for the changes described in Exhibit
A, including all direct and indirect costs and impacts. The Contract Sum
shall be adjusted as described in this Change Order.

Everett Municipal Code 3.80.050 sets forth the threshold amounts below
which the Mayor or his designee is authorized to direct Contractor to
perform additional work. In calculating such threshold amounts,
Washington State sales tax, as applicable to the Work, has been
considered.

The Contract Time of the Contract shall be adjusted to the extent
described in this Change Order.

Contractor waives and releases any and all claims arising out of, or
related to, this Change Order, the work described in Exhibit A, and all
work and actual or constructive changes that occurred or began prior to
the date of this Change Order, including, but not limited to, claims for
equitable adjustment of time and compensation, delay, impact,
overhead, or inefficiencies. This provision does not apply to requests for
equitable adjustment of time or price for which the Contractor timely and
properly provided notice of a differing site condition, protest, dispute,
claim or Contract Claim as required by the Contract Documents. If the
Contract Documents establish a time period for notice of a differing site
condition, protest, dispute, claim, or Contract Claim that ends after the
date of this Change Order, but relates to work performed prior to the
date of this Change Order, then this provision does not apply if the
Contractor timely and properly submits such notice.

Page 2 of 5



This Change Order only changes the contract between Contractor and
City to the extent explicitly provided herein.

Signature(s) on this Change Order may be by pdf, email, fax or other
electronic means, in which case such signature(s) will have the same
effect as an original ink signature. This Change Order may be signed in
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of
which, taken together, shall be deemed one and the same document.



Change Order No.

1

Change Order Effective Date: 11/28/2023

Officer

CITY
Attest:
Standard Document
Approved as to Form
Office of the City Attorney
o City Clerk (5.13.22)
Mayor Date:
Date:
Recommended By:
Construction Project Engineering Department
Manager (if Manager (if Manager (if Director
applicable) applicable) applicable)
m ) | P | / A ) » "‘1 » )
M %LXZ n ]f/[b‘«l{ TGl 41. gl
Date: _ __Date: Date; Date: ©/-c¢.202
12/11/2023 )4 7074 a2 ‘
L _ —
CONTRACTOR
By Date:




Change Order No. 1
Change Order Effective Date: 11/28/2023

Exhibit A—Description of Changed Work

Project: Water Main Replacement “W:
Change Order No. 1

Change Effective Date: November 28, 2023
This Change Order No. 1 grants an increase in Contract Time with no
increase to the contract sum.

Contract Time

Adjustment to time by this Change Order of (568) Working Days.

Delays caused by pipe manufacturing (McWane Ductile) due to additional
fabrication time, trucking shortages, weather delays, ongoing supply chain
shortages, and material acquisition issues resulting from the carryover of
Covid 19 pandemic. November 21, 2022, to February 14, 2023.



EEVERETT

City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet

Award the contract for the Port Gardner Storage Facility — Demolition Project to Lincoln Construction,

Project title:

Council Bill #

Agenda dates requested:
1/31/24

Briefing
Proposed action
Consent X
Action
Ordinance
Public hearing

Yes X No

Budget amendment:
Yes X No

PowerPoint presentation:

Yes X No

Attachments:
Bid Summary

Department(s) involved:
Public Works

Contact person:
Souheil Nasr

Phone number:
425-257-7210

Email:
snasr@everettwa.gov

Initialed by:
RS

Department head
Administration

Council President

Inc. in the amount of $3,041,841.87.

Consideration: Award of Contract
Project: Port Gardner Storage Facility — Demolition Project
Partner/Supplier: Lincoln Construction, Inc.
Location: West Marine View Drive
Preceding action: Call for Bids —11/8/23
Fund: Fund 336 — Water and Sewer System Improvements Fund

Fiscal summary statement:

Project funding is provided by Fund 336 — Water and Sewer System Improvements Fund.
The approved budget for the project is $39,600,000.00.

Project summary statement:

The former Kimberley-Clark Wastewater Treatment Plant is being repurposed to serve
as the City’s future Port Gardner Storage Facility (PGSF). The PGSF project is being
implemented in two projects, demolition and storage facility construction. The
demolition project generally consists of bulk removal of existing infrastructure that will
not be repurposed as part of the ultimate PGSF site. The Engineer’s estimate for the
PGSF Demolition Project was $5,440,588.67.

Bids were opened on December 19, 2023, and four (4) bid proposals were received for
the proposed demolition project. Lincoln Construction, Inc. was the responsive and
responsible bidder at a price of $3,041,841.87. Public Works staff recommend that
Lincoln Construction, Inc. be awarded the contract for the Port Gardner Storage Facility
— Demolition Project in the amount of $3,041,841.87.

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):

Award the contract for the Port Gardner Storage Facility — Demolition Project to Lincoln
Construction, Inc. in the amount of $3,041,841.87.


https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/16180?fileID=90963

[reag] E V E R E T 3200 Cedar Street,
I == Everett WA 98201

PUBLIC WORKS (425) 257-8800

Project: 2023 Port Gardner Storage Facility - Demolition Package, City of Everett, WA #UP-3525
Project Engineer: Zack Brown, Project Engineer
Date BIDS Received/Opened: 12/19/2023

Prepared By: 4*~ iﬁ\ Léﬁ cugent //04/7/4(/ Date: /?[’/Z? L3

Check/Approved By: Z l’] ﬁﬁoLU)J 2AcH BRow A Date: l;z/a 7/(; 3




E EVERETT

PUBLIC WORKS

BID TABULATION

3200 Cedar Street,
Everett WA 98201

2023 Port Gardner Storage Facility - Demolition Package

W.O.# UP-3525
Date: 12/19/2023

Prepared By: Eugene Houtby

For: Zack Brown, Project Engineer

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

Lincoln Construction Inc

Interwest Construction Company

Faber Construction Corporation

Pellco Construction Inc

ITEM UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL
#  ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT PRICE AMOUNT
1 MOBILIZATION AND Ls 1.00 $202,597.00 $202,597.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $160,000.00 $160,000.00 $196,831.00 $196,831.00 $226,500.00 $226,500.00

DEMOBILIZATION
2 DEMOLITION WORK AND Ls 1.00 $2,654,334.00 $2,654,334.00 $1,553,037.00 $1,553,037.00 $1,919,000.00 $1,919,000.00 $3,026,008.00 $3,026,008.00 $3,215,000.00 $3,215,000.00
MISCELLANEOUS IMPROVEMENTS
3 AREASS 35/55 DISBONDED SF 6500 $120.06 $780,367.06 $24.25 $157,625.00 $15.00 $97,500.00 $38.00 $247,000.00 $27.50 $178,750.00
TOPPING SLAB REPAIR AND
4 PIPELINE CLEANING AND LS 1.00 $61,274.00 $61,274.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $132,225.00 $132,225.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $60,950.00 $60,950.00
INSPECTIONS
5 TEMPORARY SITE POWER AND LS 1.00 $448,206.00 $448,206.00 $300,000.00 $300,000.00 $295,000.00 $295,000.00 $153,344.00 $153,344.00 $296,400.00 $296,400.00
LIGHTING
6 CONTAMINATED SOILREMOVAL, TN 100 $339.06 $33,906.00 $200.00 $20,000.00 $280.00 $28,000.00 $243.00 $24,300.00 $344.00 $34,400.00
DISPOSAL AND REPLACEMENT
7 HAZARDOUS WASTE MATERIALS Ls 1.00 $175,702.00 $175,702.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $11,500.00 $11,500.00 $383,024.00 $383,024.00 $126,000.00 $126,000.00
REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL
8  TEMPORARY EROSION AND Ls 1.00 $79,225.00 $79,225.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $91,750.00 $91,750.00 $65,542.00 $65,542.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00
SEDIMENT CONTROL
9 TRENCH SAFETY SYSTEM Ls 1.00 $7,592.00 $7,592.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $2,889.00 $2,889.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
10 TEMPORARY FENCING LF 537 $13.57 $7,287.09 $45.00 $24,165.00 $67.00 $35,979.00 $22.00 $11,814.00 $27.00 $14,499.00
11 FORCE ACCOUNT (SECTION0072  FA 500000 $1.00 $500,000.00 $1.00 $500,000.00 $1.00 $500,000.00 $1.00 $500,000.00 $1.00 $500,000.00
00)
$4,950,490.15 $2,767,827.00 $3,276,454.00 $4,628,752.00 $4,697,499.00
WA Sales Tax @9.9% - $490,098.52 $274,014.87 $324,368.95 $458,246.45 $465,052.40
Contract Totals: $5,440,588.67 $3,041,841.87 | $3,600,822,95 | $5,086,998.45 ~ $5,162,551.40

Page 1 of 1



EEVERETT

City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet

Project title:  Everett Link Extension Project Administration Agreement

Council Bill #

Agenda dates requested:

Briefing
Proposed action
Consent
Action: 1/31/24
Ordinance
Public hearing
Yes X No

Budget amendment:
Yes X No

PowerPoint presentation:
Yes X No

Attachments:

Department(s) involved:
Planning, Public Works,
Economic Development

Contact person:
Yorik Stevens-Wajda, AICP
Planning Director

Phone number:
425-257-8725

Email:
ystevens@everettwa.gov

Initialed by:

Department head

Administration

Council President

Project: Everett Link Extension
Partner/Supplier: Sound Transit
Location: Everett Link Extension/Operations Maintenance Facility route/site
Preceding action: Everett Link Extension Partnering Agreement authorization: 5/10/23

Fund: General Fund

Fiscal summary statement:

Sound Transit’s budget for the Everett Link Extension includes funds to support local jurisdiction
participation in the planning and design process. This Project Administration Agreement will
authorize task orders for city work on the project and Sound Transit reimbursement of that work.

Project summary statement:

The Everett Link Extension will extend the Link light rail line 16 miles north from Lynnwood
Station to Everett Station/Downtown Everett. Sound Transit, consultants, and local jurisdiction
and agency partners are currently evaluating a set of station, alignment, and
operations/maintenance facility alternatives with the results of the analysis to be published in a
Draft Environmental Impact Statement in winter 2025-26.

Station, alignment, and operations/maintenance facility design work is underway and will
continue until around 2030 when construction will begin, working north until opening day
between 2037 and 2041 depending on financing considerations. The city’s permitting reviews will
overlap both design and construction phases.

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Everett Link Extension Project Administration Agreement.


https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/15510?fileID=87428
mailto:ystevens@everettwa.gov
https://www.soundtransit.org/system-expansion/everett-link-extension

PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE CENTRAL PUGET SOUND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY
AND THE CITY OF EVERETT FOR THE
EVERETT LINK EXTENSION AND
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE FACILITY NORTH PROJECT

GA 0043-23

THIS PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is between the CENTRAL
PUGET SOUND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY, a regional transit authority organized
under 81.112 RCW (“Sound Transit”), and the City of Everett, a Washington municipal
corporation (the “City”) (collectively, the “Parties” and each individually a “Party”)

RECITALS

A.  The Everett Link Extension (EVLE) and Operations and Maintenance Facility (OMF)
North Project (“Project”) is an approximately 16-mile Link light rail expansion from
Lynnwood City Center to Everett Station. The Project is part of the Sound Transit 3
(ST3) System Plan of regional transit system investments, approved for funding by
voters in the region in 2016.

B. The Cities of Everett and Lynnwood, Snohomish County, Community Transit and
Sound Transit executed a Multi-Jurisdictional Partnering Agreement for the Project
(GA 0176-20 on August 15, 2023 (the "Partnering Agreement"), to document and
confirm a mutual understanding of general terms and conditions to advance the
implementation of the Project.

C. This Agreement addresses the commitment in Section 23 of the Partnering Agreement
for the Parties to work cooperatively to negotiate in good faith a funding agreement to
provide reimbursement to the City for the costs of certain services and products
related to the Project.

D.  Applicable terms and conditions of the Partnering Agreement will also apply to this
Agreement as described herein.

AGREEMENT
1. General

1.1.Purpose. Sound Transit’s Project includes facilities to be constructed within the City’s
jurisdiction. The City and Sound Transit will work together to prepare, review and
approve agreements between one another, and Sound Transit will prepare

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 1



construction plans and secure property rights, permits, and approvals from the City and
other entities for the construction of Sound Transit’s facilities. The intent of this
Agreement is to establish a Task Order process for Sound Transit to reimburse the
City for certain costs not covered by the City’s land use, permitting, or other fee
schedules. It is anticipated that a separate agreement or amendments to this
agreement may be needed and developed by the Parties for reimbursement of certain
Project-related construction services and assistance.

1.2. Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Agreement
as set forth in full herein.

2. Designated Representatives

The City and Sound Transit have designated formal points of contact and coordination for this
Agreement as identified in Exhibit A. Each designated representative is responsible for
coordinating the input and work of its agency, consultants, and staff as it relates to the
objectives of this Agreement. The Parties may change designated representatives by written
notice to the other Party during the term of this Agreement. Task orders may designate other
individuals and points of contact for each task order.

3. Essential Public Facilities

The Parties agree that the Project is a regional transit authority that has the status of an
essential public facility and that the requirements of RCW 36.70A.200 are applicable under
RCW 36.70A. The City may not utilize development regulations to render impracticable Sound
Transit’s decisions on design, siting or location of the Project; however, the City may impose
reasonable permit conditions on the Project.

4. Environmental Review

Sound Transit is the lead agency for compliance with the State Environmental Policy Act
(SEPA). In coordination with the Partner Agencies and other agencies with jurisdiction, Sound
Transit will complete the substantive and procedural environmental review for the Project in
accordance with SEPA. The Partner Agencies, including all of their departments and divisions,
will participate actively in the environmental review process to ensure that the scope of review,
reasonable alternatives, environmental impacts and appropriate mitigation measures are
identified and agreed to during the environmental review process. The goal is for Sound Transit
and the Partner Agencies to work together to ensure there are no surprises later in the Project
permitting process regarding environmental impacts or mitigation measures.

The Federal Transit Administration is the lead agency for compliance with the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The Partner Agencies commit to participate in the
environmental review process as a Cooperating Agency under NEPA and as a Consulted
Agency under SEPA. The Partner Agencies will contribute to the scope and analysis of
GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 2



environmental review for the Project. The environmental review will cover the Partner Agencies’
issuance of all permits and approvals for the Project as well as agreed upon environmental
mitigation for Project impacts. The Partner Agencies will use and rely on the Project's
environmental documents and agreed upon mitigation measures to satisfy its SEPA
responsibilities, consistent with WAC 197-11-600.

5. Task Orders for City Services

5.1. Principles for Determining Eligible Reimbursable Costs. Sound Transit agrees to pay
the City for the costs associated with particular tasks that:

a. Are required because of implementation of the Project in proximity to City
facilities and are not otherwise the City’s responsibility to undertake; or

b.  Are directly related to the Project, are essential to meeting Project objectives
and schedule, and support Project design, permitting, and construction
activities, such as documentation of durable and specific Project
commitments and approval services, documented decisions and other types
of agreements furthering implementation of the Project; or

C. Respond to requests made by Sound Transit to provide Project-related
technical information such as data, reports, or studies or to provide
engineering or design services for City owned utilities or other public works
affected by the Project; or

d. Sound Transit asks the City to undertake and has negotiated a Task Order as
described in Section 2.3, or other written agreement, for payment to the City.

5.2 In general,Sound Transit will not pay the City for costs associated with the
following:

a. Coordination between Sound Transit and the City normally provided
between government agencies.

b.  City services provided in the ordinary course of business and on the City's
usual time and schedule for which the City does not ordinarily charge fees.

c.  City services or costs associated with betterments or other improvements that
the Parties agree are not part of the Project scope.

d. City services or costs associated with the Project prior to execution of this
Agreement and associated Task Order.

e. City staff time for work on the Model Code Partnership.

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 3



5.3 Task Order Development. Sound Transit will request that the City perform specific
work under this Agreement through written Task Orders. This Agreement applies

to Project work and eligible costs beginning after execution of this Agreement and
associated Task Order. Any prior Project-related work or costs incurred by the City
are the responsibility of the City. Task Orders will be prepared by Sound Transit,
reviewed by the City, and executed by the Parties for each work effort to be
covered by this Agreement. Task Orders will be in a format similar to that shown in
Exhibit B. Each Task Order will include a scope of work, a schedule of work, and a
detailed cost estimate that establishes a maximum funding level for the Task
Order. Each Task Order will be executed by the authorized designees of Sound
Transit and the City and will incorporate by reference the terms and conditions of
this Agreement.

5.4 Task Order Management. For each Task Order, the City will provide quarterly
progress reports to Sound Transit indicating the amount spent and estimated cost to
complete each scope and budget element included in the Task Order. If actual costs
are anticipated to exceed the amount of the Task Order, the Designated
Representatives (or designees) will prepare a mutually agreeable cost estimate to

complete the work and develop an appropriate course of action, which may include
amending the Task Order or executing a new Task Order.

5.5 Eligible Costs.
5.5.1 The following costs will be eligible for reimbursement:

i. Employees: (1) the applicable employees’ direct salaries; and (2)
associated direct and indirect costs as adopted in a City fee
schedule, provided that the fee schedule is reasonable and
consistent with subsection (b) of this section; charged on an hourly
basis at the rates in effect at the time the charges are incurred.

ii. Consultants. Direct costs incurred by the City to retain consultants to
work on the Project for otherwise reimbursable activities as set forth
in this Agreement.

5.5.2 Ineligible Costs. This Agreement does not cover City's normal capital and
operating expenses such as buildings, office equipment, maintenance,
security, utilities, or vehicles.

5.6 Performance. If the City does not perform the services described in the Task Orders,
and if the failure to perform is solely attributable to the City's actions or inactions,
appropriate corrective action will be discussed and agreed upon by the Designated
Representatives. Should the corrective action not be agreed upon or resolve the

problem within one (1) week, the Dispute Resolution Process pursuant to Section 6,
GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 4



below. may be invoked and Sound Transit may request specific resolutions including a
reduction of reimbursable costs owed by Sound Transit to the City.

6. Invoicing

6.1

6.2

6.3

The City will submit quarterly invoices and supporting documentation for Task Order
payments. The invoices must include a signed invoice template, which Sound Transit
will provide, a progress report including a description of services provided by the City,
Sound Transit purchase order number, and supporting documentation detailing the
work completed, associated eligible costs (such as rates, paid invoices of other eligible
direct costs, etc.), and an estimated cost to complete each scope and budget element
included in the Task Order.

The City will submit its invoices with the required documentation via email to
AccountsPayable@SoundTransit.org, copying the agreement designees and project
controller. Invoices will be paid within thirty (30) days of Sound Transit's receipt of the
invoice and acceptable and complete supporting documentation pursuant to Section
6.3, below.

If Sound Transit determines that an invoice lacks sufficient documentation to support
payment, Sound Transit will notify the City’s Designated Representative of its
determination within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice and will request that the
City provide additional documentation. Sound Transit may withhold payment of the
disputed portion of the invoice until supporting documentation is provided. However,
such approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

7. Dispute Resolution

7.1.

7.2.

The Parties agree that no Party shall take or join any action in any judicial or
administrative forum to challenge actions of another Party associated with this
Agreement or the Project, except as set forth herein. Neither Party will be required to
complete the dispute resolution process if a Party may lose or forego a right, remedy,
or cause of action that may be time barred before the dispute resolution process can
be completed.

Any disputes or questions of interpretation of this Agreement that may arise between
the Parties shall be governed under the dispute resolution provisions in this Section.
The Parties agree that cooperation and communication are essential to resolving
issues efficiently. Each party’s Designated Representative is identified in Exhibit A of
this Agreement agree to exercise their best efforts to resolve any disputes that may
arise through this dispute resolution process.

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 5


mailto:AccountsPayable@SoundTransit.org

7.3. The Parties agree to use their best efforts to prevent and resolve potential sources of
conflict at the lowest level.

7.4.The Parties agree to use their best efforts to resolve disputes arising out of or related
to this Agreement using good faith negotiations by engaging in the following dispute
escalation process should any such disputes arise:

a. Level One - Sound Transit’s North Corridor Development Director or the
Deputy Project Director and the City’s [insert title] shall meet to discuss and
attempt to resolve the dispute in a timely manner. If they cannot resolve the
dispute within fourteen (14) days after referral of that dispute to Level One,
any Party may refer the dispute to Level Two.

b. Level Two - Sound Transit’s Deputy Executive Director of Capital Project
Development and the City’s [insert title], shall meet to discuss and attempt to
resolve the dispute, in a timely manner.

8. Suspension and Termination

8.1 If the City has not received payment from Sound Transit as provided in Section 3.2,
the City may suspend performance of all or any part of the associated work after giving
Sound Transit thirty (30) days' notice of the City's intent to do so. Such suspension will
remain in effect until payment is made in full, at which time the suspension will be
lifted.

8.2 Either Party may terminate this Agreement for cause in the event that the other Party
fails to fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement in a timely manner or
breaches any material provision of this Agreement and the Dispute Resolution Process
has failed to reach resolution within the timelines described therein. The Party wishing
to terminate this Agreement for cause will provide the other Party with notice of its
intent to terminate and will give the other Party an opportunity to correct the failure to
perform or breach within thirty (30) days of the notice or within such longer period as
may be necessary in the event that correction cannot reasonably be accomplished
within thirty (30) days. If the failure or breach is not corrected or cured, this Agreement
may be terminated by the aggrieved Party by giving ninety (90) days' notice to the other
Party.

8.3 This Agreement will also terminate upon written mutual consent of the Parties.

8.4 Except as provided in this Section, a termination by either Party will not extinguish or
release either Party from liability for costs or obligations existing as of the date of
termination. Any costs incurred prior to proper notification of termination will be borne
by the Parties in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 6



9.

Indemnity

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

Each Party (an “Indemnifying Party”) agrees to hold harmless, indemnify, and defend
the other Party’s elected officials, officers, agents, and employees (the “Indemnified
Party”), from and against any and all claims, losses or liability, for injuries, sickness or
death of persons, including employees of the Indemnifying Party, or damages, arising
out of any willful misconduct or negligent act, error, or omission of the indemnifying
Party, its officers, agents, or employees, in connection with the services required by
this Agreement, provided, however, that: (A) the Indemnifying Party's obligations to
indemnify, defend and hold harmless will not extend to injuries, sickness, death, or
damage caused by or resulting from the sole willful misconduct or sole negligence of
the Indemnified Party; and (b) the Indemnifying Party's obligations to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless for injuries, sickness, death, or damage caused by or
resulting from the concurrent negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnifying
Party and the Indemnified Party, or of the Indemnifying Party and a third party other
than an elected official, officer, agent, or employee of the Indemnifying Party, will apply
only to the extent of the negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnifying Party’s
elected officials, officers, agents, or employees. The Indemnifying Party specifically

assumes potential liability for any claim, demand, and/or cause of action brought by, or
on behalf of, any of its employees or agents against the Indemnified Party. FOR THIS
PURPOSE, EACH INDEMNIFYING PARTY, BY MUTUAL NEGOTIATION, HEREBY
WAIVES, WITH RESPECT TO THE INDEMNIFIED PARTY ONLY, ANY IMMUNITY
THAT WOULD OTHERWISE BE AVAILABLE TO IT AGAINST SUCH CLAIMS
UNDER THE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE PROVISIONS OF TITLE 51 RCW OR ANY
APPLICABLE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, DISABILITY, OR EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
ACT OF ANY OTHER JURISDICTION THAT WOULD BE APPLICABLE IN CASE OF
SUCH A CLAIM.

Each Party agrees to bear full responsibility for any and all tax liabilities owed that may
arise in relation to this Agreement, and each Party will fully indemnify and hold the
other Party, its officers, agents and employees harmless from any tax liability owed by
the other Party arising from or related to the transactions set forth herein, including,
but not limited to, any taxes, penalties, fines, and/or interest assessed by any tax
authority against the indemnifying Party and further including all attorneys' fees and
costs incurred in response to any claims or assessments by any tax authority against
the Indemnifying Party, its officers, agents, and employees.

The obligations in this Section 5 will survive termination or completion of this
Agreement as to any claim, loss, or liability arising from events occurring prior to such
termination or completion.

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 7



10. Audits

10.1. Each Party will maintain accounts and records following Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles, including contract and financial records that sufficiently and
properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended for work performed
under this Agreement so as to ensure proper accounting for all monies paid to the City
by Sound Transit. These records will be maintained for a period of six (6) years after
termination or expiration of this Agreement unless permission to destroy the records is
granted by the Office of the Archivist pursuant to chapter 40.14 RCW and agreed upon
by the Parties.

10.2. The City will make all Project records available for Sound Transit inspection upon
Sound Transit’s reasonable request for same. Audits may be performed by Sound
Transit or its independent public accountants to ensure compliance with and
enforcement of this Agreement. Should the audit determine that funds from Sound
Transit have been used for expenses that were ineligible, the City will reimburse
Sound Transit for such amounts.

11. General Provisions

11.1. Neither Party will be relieved of its obligations to comply promptly with any
provision of this Agreement by reason of any failure by the other Party to enforce
prompt compliance therewith, and such failure to enforce will not constitute a waiver of
rights or acquiescence in the other Party's conduct.

11.2. If either Party brings any claim or lawsuit arising from this Agreement, each Party
will pay all its legal costs and attorneys' fees and expenses incurred in defending or
bringing such claim or lawsuit, including all appeals, in addition to any other recovery
or award provided by law; however, nothing in this paragraph will be construed to limit
the Parties' rights to indemnification.

11.3.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has executed this Agreement by having its authorized
representative affix his/her name in the appropriate space below:

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 8



City of Everett
By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Approved as to form:

By:

Name, Legal Counsel

CENTRAL PUGET SOUND REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY, a regional transit authority:
By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Authorized by Motion No: XXXX-XX

Approved as to form:

By:

Name, Legal Counsel

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 9



Exhibits
A. Sound Transit and City Designated Representatives

B. Task Order Format

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 10



EXHIBIT A
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

Pursuant to Section 6 of this agreement, each party designates the following persons as their
representatives (“Designated Representatives”) who shall be responsible for coordination of
communications between the parties and shall act as the point of contact for each party. The
Designated Representatives shall coordinate on Project activities and shall communicate regularly
to discuss the status of the tasks to be performed, identify upcoming Project decisions and any
information or input necessary to inform those decisions, discuss any substantial changes to the
Project, and resolve any issues or disputes related to the Project, consistent with this Agreement.
The Designated Representatives are:

SOUND TRANSIT: CITY OF EVERETT:
Martha Russell, Project Manager for [Insert staff name and title]
High Capacity Transit

Each Designated Representative is also responsible for coordinating the input and work of its
agency, consultants, and staff as it relates to the objectives of this Agreement. Sound Transit
reserves the right to change Designated Representative by providing notice to the other party
during the term of this Agreement. The City may submit a request to change its Designated
Representative to Sound Transit for written approval during the term of this agreement.

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA



Task Order Format

Task Order #X pursuant to the
PROJECT ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF EVERETT AND SOUND TRANSIT
FOR THE EVERETT LINK EXTENSION AND
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE FACILITY NORTH PROJECT
[Insert Subject of Task Order)

This Task Order is issued under the Project Administration Agreement between the City and
Sound Transit executed on (GA ) "Project Administration
Agreement." This Task Order establishes the scope, schedule, and budget for the services
("Services") provided by the City for the Everett Link Extension and OMF North project. The City
agrees to perform the Services in the manner set forth in this Task Order. The terms and conditions
of the Project Administration Agreement are incorporated by reference into this Task Order.

The effective date of this Task Order is 20 ,

The end date of this Task Order is 20 , or as otherwise agreed to in
writing by the Designated Representatives of the Parties.

Task Order Description. General Description of the work to be performed. May also include
definitions if helpful/appropriate.

e The Scope of Work is included as Exhibit 1.
e The Schedule is included as Exhibit 2.
e The Rate Schedule is included as Exhibit 3.

Each of the Parties has executed this Task Order by having its authorized representative affix
his/her name in the appropriate space below:

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA



For the City:

Signature

Printed Name

Title

Date

Name, City Counsel

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA

10

For Sound Transit:

Signature

Printed Name

Title

Date

Name, Legal Counsel

A-2



Task Order Exhibit 1: Scope of Work.

The scope should be fully developed and provide a detailed description of work to be provided
under each Task Order.

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 11 A-3



Task Order Exhibit 1: Estimated Schedule.

The schedule should match the tasks included in the Project Scope.

Task

Start Month

End Month

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA

12

A-4




Task Order Exhibit 3. Cost Estimate

Spreadsheet to be inserted. Use tasks and schedule to develop cost estimate based on labor
rate and expenses.

GA 0043-23 Everett-ST PAA 13 A-5



E E V E R E T T City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet

Project title:  Transit Consolidation Briefing.

Council Bill # interoffice use Project: Exploration of Consolidation of Everett Transit and Community Transit

Partner/Supplier: Community Transit

Agenda dates requested: Location:
1/31/24 Preceding action:
Briefing X Fund: NA
Proposed action
Consent
Action .
. Fiscal summary statement: NA
Ordinance
Public hearing
Yes X No Project summary statement:
Budget amendment: City staff, along with Community Transit staff, will provide a briefing an update on the discussions
Yes x No and work around a Transit Consolidation Study.
PowerPoint presentation: Recommendation (exact action requested of Council):
x Yes No

Receive update and briefing on status of exploration of transit consolidation.

Attachments:

Department(s) involved:
Transit, Administration

Contact person:
Tom Hingson

Phone number:

Email:
thingson@everettwa.gov

Initialed by:

Department head
Administration

Council President



Together

: R
T 'ﬁg
; d.,
o { e

N
% :
W @
k \ jLa o ‘ :
: ﬁ e R th:E
LEE N ;

"
‘ j/
\ -
; /;um/ry Transit 18706

\

d

A
\

More Transit
Together - Transit
Consolidation Study

o . <
communitytransit_~



More Transit

Together

Background ———

In 2018, Everett Transit completed its first long range plan.

In 2019, Everett's City Council initiated the evaluation of transit services
provided by Everett Transit. The City's Rethink Transit study considered
three options for future provision of transit service in Everett: status
quo (no change), growth, and growth through consolidation.

In 2022, at the direction of the Everett City Council, staff and a joint
policy committee made up of elected officials from Everett and the
Community Transit Board of Directors began to study the third option,
growth through consolidation.



More Transit

Together

What is the transit consolidation study? e

Joint study between the City of Everett, Everett Transit, and
Community Transit funded by a state Transit Coordination Grant.

Studies what a consolidated transit system could look like if Everett
Transit and Community Transit joined forces.

Considers the potential benefits and other key considerations for

fixed-route bus service, paratransit, and beyond, preparing for the
extension of Link light rail to Everett.

Planned for community input in 2025. The City of Everett has not yet
decided whether to seek city voters’ approval of a consolidation.



More Transit

Together

What's been studied? O

* Draft of consolidated transit system
» Board governance

* Fleets and facilities

* Fares

* Branding
* Paratransit service



Based on Rethink Everett Transit,

What do we want a consolidated
transit system to accomplish?

o )

More Service More Destinations More Possibilities
Make transit be more frequent, have Provide service to more places and Provide service for people who rely on
shorter wait times, require fewer shorter walks to stops transit more, connect to more job
transfers, run later at night, and be centers and destinations, and connect

faster and more direct to more regional service



What is the P mo®o X
roadmap for Xy ril

° [ J o ()
th |S StUdy? Launch Document Updated Financial \
Review Projections A

Ridership Updated Engagement Draft
Projections Consolidated Phase 1 Consolidated
Transit Plan Transit Plan
- We are here

kA =

Engagement Proposed
Phase 2 Consolidated

Transit Plan



Service in Everett today

Everett Transit service

10 total bus routes

3 routes with all-day service every 30
minutes or better

3 routes with service until 9 p.m. or
later

Community Transit service

Swift Blue Line to Everett Station

Swift Green Line to Seaway Transit
Center

Stops at key transit centers for routes
traveling through Everett

SYSTEM

June 2023

Routes

o SOUTH to Mariner PR
NORTH to Mall Station

MAP

SOUTH to Seaway TC

NORTH to Everett Station

7, SOUTH to Everett Station

" NORTH to College Station 'EAST to Everett Station

SOUTH to Everctt Station
NORTH to Waterfront

SOUTH to Mall Staticen

0 SOUTH to Paine Feld

NORTH to Everett Staticn

WEST to Seirway TC
WEST to Mukilteo

SOUTH to Everett Station

2p,
NORTHW Collegastston 3 "= § 5} 2u

SOUTH to Mali Station

° NORTH to College Station @ NORTH to College Station

Map key
() Paking @ Fuinto Park Street

available

EVERETT TRANSIT

interest




What could the Consolidated
Transit System look like?

Nearly 2x the amount 15 total bus routes in

of bus service

Buses that come
more often all day

Better transit access

at night

Better regional
connections

Everett (+5 routes)

14 routes with all-day
service every 30 minutes or
better (+11 routes)

15 routes with service until
9 p.m. or later (+12 routes)

More access to
surrounding communities
and direct services to light
rail

/]

Quil Cedal (1' |
\L/MARYSWLL_E
KEY V

*CT routes (2024
network)

*ET routes (modified
from current network)

Eyerett

Colleg

EVERETT
O/Everett
Station

| Ferry
MUKILTEO Seaway TC

Eastmont

averett Mall

| ‘ C{S l;!_vel'fett

Freeway Stn

m

Park P&R
MILLCREE|

Alderwood
Mall
LYNNWOOD

nnweod-FC
YT |

Community
)

N\

LAKEISTEVENS

SNOHOMISH



Innovative service
opportunities

= Expand the reach of fixed-route transit
= Examples: CT Zip Alderwood Shuttle

= Two innovative service zones recommended
in Everett:

O Evereft

— Downtown Everett | gg;,“e'ggn"v UINKEISTEVENS}
~ Eastmont/Silver Lake ||l,!

EVERETT O;
Everett
Station

QMukiIteo
| Ferry

MUKILTEO | Sea¥eyTC

.........

ok
PAE,

SNOHOMISH

Mariner P&R
McCollum

Park P&R



More Transit

Together

Next steps ——

* Initial status updates:
* Everett City Council (Jan. 31)
« Community Transit Board of Directors (Feb. 1)
* Joint ATU unions (Feb. 2)

» Updates with stakeholders (Feb. 2 - June, 2024)
* Broad community engagement (2025)



There would
be two
opportunities
to give input
in 2025

Engagement
Phase 2

2

)
Engagement
Phase 1



12

How the community can get involved in 2025

Pop-up Events in the Community

= B Project Website

Social Pinpoint Map to View
and Comment on Changes

Community Workshop

= Online Community Survey

00000




More Transit

Together

What's the decision-making process for a ———
potential consolidation?

Everett City Council would decide whether to propose
consolidation. No decisions have been made about whether
to seek those approvals.
If the council decides to propose consolidation:
Council would call for an election within the city.
Community Transit's Board of Directors would need to
approve a proposed consolidation.
City voters would then make the final decision by casting
their votes on a ballot measure.

13



More Transit

Together

Thank You!



From: Angela Ely

To: DL-Council; Ashleigh Scott; Jennifer Gregerson

Cc: David Hall; Ramsey Ramerman

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Regarding Agenda Item (9) - Transit Consolidation Briefing
Date: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 4:31:13 PM

Attachments: Fact Sheet.pdf

Category 2: Sensitive information

Hello,

Please submit the email and attachment as written comment for the record at our Council meeting
this evening.

Thank youl!
Angie

Category 2: For official use only / disclosure permissible by law.

From: Sabina Araya <sabinasum@hotmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2024 1:22 PM

To: Donald Schwab <DSchwab@everettwa.gov>; Ben Zarlingo <BZarlingo@everettwa.gov>;
Elizabeth Vogeli <EVogeli@everettwa.gov>; Judy Tuohy <JTuohy@everettwa.gov>; Paula Rhyne
<PRhyne@everettwa.gov>; Mary Fosse <MFosse@everettwa.gov>; Scott Bader
<SBader@everettwa.gov>

Cc: Cassie Franklin <CFranklin@everettwa.gov>; Angela Ely <AEly@everettwa.gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Regarding Agenda Item (9) - Transit Consolidation Briefing

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Council Members,

As you move forward in your consideration of a consolidation plan between Everett Transit
and Community Transit, I urge you to include a provision in the future agreement that ensures
the service growth plans presented to the public in the process are sustainable and will be
provided in the timeline presented to the voters.

| say this because public trust in initiatives that ask for added revenue depends on the fulfillment of
those promises of service growth. Recently, Community Transit’s decision to implement a vaccine
mandate significantly derailed their own service maintenance and service growth plans and had a
deep negative impact on their workforce (see attachment).

I spent more than 17 years in the public transportation sector, and two and half of those were
with Community Transit, as their Manager of Service Planning (overseeing the 2024 network
restructuring plans) and later as Long Range Planning Manager (producing the 2021 Transit
Development Plan and starting their Journey 2050 long range planning project). I left the


mailto:AEly@everettwa.gov
mailto:Council@everettwa.gov
mailto:AScott@everettwa.gov
mailto:JGregerson@everettwa.gov
mailto:DHall@everettwa.gov
mailto:RRamerman@everettwa.gov

Community Transit’s Vaccine Mandate: January 1, 2022 - March 6, 2023
Impact on Workforce, Existing Service, and Service Growth Plans

Vaccine Mandate v. Covid Cases

Before Mandate, 2021

Highest month, Sept.: 23 cases
2021 total: 80 cases

After Mandate, 2022

First month, Jan.: 69 cases
2022 total: 292 cases

MANDATED - All Employees

Drivers
Mechanics
Administrative staff

EXEMPT - All Contractors

First Transit, operating
CT commuter service
Sound Transit service

TransDev, operating
CT DART paratransit service

Sno. County Sherriff's officers,
providing transit police services

10% of the workforce (~80) were
fired or left close to January 2022.
Of those, almost 40 were drivers.
1 driver = 1,000 service hours

Mandates in Snohomish County

Everett Transit, Skagit Transit, Island

Transit (serving Everett Station), local
municipalities, along with Snohomish

County government did not impose a
vaccine mandate.

Impact on Service

Pre-pandemic service
hours, 2019: 480,000

Service hours in

Title VI Oct. 2021: 426,000

Public

Process? gervice cuts:
No March 2022: - 34,000
No Sept.2022: - 8,000
Yes March 2023: - 21,000

Total cuts: 63,000 hours
(15% of service)

Service hours in
March 2023: 363,000

The vaccine mandate derailed
promised growth plans

CT set March 2023 as the new baseline

for service, at 363,000 hours.

This is lower than the 2017 baseline,
when the Prop 1 sales tax increase

kicked in, and service was promised to
grow to 510,000 service hours by 2022.

The 2021 adopted TDP had planned
520,000 service hours by 2024.

Dropped Trips

(scheduled but canceled the day of service)

2021: 2,128
Jan-Nov avg:

2022: 12,248

Jan-Nov avg: 29.2 trips/day
Dec avg: 81.5 trips/day

3.2 trips /day
Dec avg: 33.6 trips/day

In the News

In a Dec. 26 2021 article, CT CEO

Ric llgenfritz told the Everett Herald
that “service shouldn’t be affected”
by the mandate.

Cuts said to be temporary, Feb.
24.2022. Service might be restored in
the summer or fall. Schedule books
no longer printed.

Driver shortage is at fault for cuts,
Nov. 28, 2022.

CT boasted of a 32% service increase
by 2026 to 480,000 service hours,
Feb 12, 2023.

Public Comments to the
CT Board of Directors

June 2, 2022 min 7:59
July 7, 2022 min 2:21
August 4, 2022 min 8:54

Sept. 1, 2022 min 6:16
October 6, 2022 min 5:12

Nov. 3, 2022 min 10:23
Dec. 1, 2022 min 16:20
Jan. 5, 2023 min 2:28
Jan. 19, 2023 min 1:59

Public Comments to the
Snohomish Co. Council

Feb. 21, 2023 min 5:04
March 8, 2023 min 4:32

Late Feb. 2023, through a draft resolution, Snohomish County Council
nudged CT CEO Ric Ilgenfritz to drop the vaccine mandate. He announced
the mandate lift at the March 2, 2023 Board of Directors meeting, to be

effective March 6, 2023.



https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=wRE2nvJykfU&t=1178s

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EGy2Rov8CWA

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=GJVXEHgrMno

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=h5aa5YzPVHQ&t=402s

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MVCtjvDo15U&t=322s

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Dwn6jOACYI0&t=619s

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0OU4EduXJUc

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1Oan1CQNzQI

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ng-bpQElvkc

https://snohomish.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=8416

https://snohomish.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=8428

https://www.heraldnet.com/news/community-transit-vaccine-holdouts-face-a-ticking-clock/ 

https://www.heraldnet.com/news/short-staffed-community-transit-to-cut-164-spring-bus-trips/

https://www.heraldnet.com/news/short-staffed-community-transit-to-cut-164-spring-bus-trips/

https://www.heraldnet.com/news/driver-shortage-prompts-community-transits-trip-cut-proposal/

https://www.heraldnet.com/news/community-transit-overhaul-accounts-for-light-rail-timeline-limbo/




agency early 2022.

I am in the unique and unenviable position to have seen how detrimental this measure was to
the public, to the workforce, and how difficult it is to restore service levels.

In 2022 and early 2023, I advocated for the mandate to be rescinded, for drivers and
mechanics to be hired back, and for service to be restored. My motivation was meeting Shelly
Schweigert in May 2022. She had been a Community Transit driver for over 30 years,
awarded as a 2 million-miles safe driver, and while dealing with the passing of her father late
2021, was among the many employees that were fired as a result of the mandate.

As many of our drivers, she was loved by her customers, many of whom know her by name.
She wanted her job back and wanted to serve her community again. Unfortunately, it took
more than a year for the mandate to be lifted, and while Shelly returned to work shortly after it
was, most drivers didn’t. The restoration of service, along with service growth plans, depends
on hiring and training drivers.

The decision to implement a vaccine mandate when no other transit agency in the county and
north hadn’t, was one of the most detrimental measures in agency history. I hope that there are
some lessons learned in that regard, and that Community Transit will succeed in resuming
their service growth plans.

If the consolidation had already taken place, Everett would have experienced the same loss of
workforce, service cuts and cancelled daily trips. Instead, Everett Transit already restored
service in 2023 to pre-pandemic levels, and their workforce was not impacted by a mandate.

This is why I believe it is so important to ensure that what the public is promised when they
vote for a measure that increases their taxes is not reset along the way if it can be avoided. A

provision in a potential consolidation agreement would ensure that the level of service
promised for current Everett Transit customers and residents is fulfilled.

Thank you,

Sabina

Sabina Araya Il sabinasum@hotmail.com Il 425-327-5924


mailto:sabinasum@hotmail.com

Community Transit’s Vaccine Mandate: January 1, 2022 - March 6, 2023
Impact on Workforce, Existing Service, and Service Growth Plans

Vaccine Mandate v. Covid Cases

Before Mandate, 2021

Highest month, Sept.: 23 cases
2021 total: 80 cases

After Mandate, 2022

First month, Jan.: 69 cases
2022 total: 292 cases

MANDATED - All Employees

Drivers
Mechanics
Administrative staff

EXEMPT - All Contractors

First Transit, operating
CT commuter service
Sound Transit service

TransDev, operating
CT DART paratransit service

Sno. County Sherriff's officers,
providing transit police services

10% of the workforce (~80) were
fired or left close to January 2022.
Of those, almost 40 were drivers.
1 driver = 1,000 service hours

Mandates in Snohomish County

Everett Transit, Skagit Transit, Island

Transit (serving Everett Station), local
municipalities, along with Snohomish

County government did not impose a
vaccine mandate.

Impact on Service

Pre-pandemic service
hours, 2019: 480,000

Service hours in

Title VI Oct. 2021: 426,000

Public

Process? gervice cuts:
No March 2022: - 34,000
No Sept.2022: - 8,000
Yes March 2023: - 21,000

Total cuts: 63,000 hours
(15% of service)

Service hours in
March 2023: 363,000

The vaccine mandate derailed
promised growth plans

CT set March 2023 as the new baseline

for service, at 363,000 hours.

This is lower than the 2017 baseline,
when the Prop 1 sales tax increase

kicked in, and service was promised to
grow to 510,000 service hours by 2022.

The 2021 adopted TDP had planned
520,000 service hours by 2024.

Dropped Trips

(scheduled but canceled the day of service)

2021: 2,128
Jan-Nov avg:

2022: 12,248

Jan-Nov avg: 29.2 trips/day
Dec avg: 81.5 trips/day

3.2 trips /day
Dec avg: 33.6 trips/day

In the News

In a Dec. 26 2021 article, CT CEO

Ric llgenfritz told the Everett Herald
that “service shouldn’t be affected”
by the mandate.

Cuts said to be temporary, Feb.
24.2022. Service might be restored in
the summer or fall. Schedule books
no longer printed.

Driver shortage is at fault for cuts,
Nov. 28, 2022.

CT boasted of a 32% service increase
by 2026 to 480,000 service hours,
Feb 12, 2023.

Public Comments to the
CT Board of Directors

June 2, 2022 min 7:59
July 7, 2022 min 2:21
August 4, 2022 min 8:54

Sept. 1, 2022 min 6:16
October 6, 2022 min 5:12

Nov. 3, 2022 min 10:23
Dec. 1, 2022 min 16:20
Jan. 5, 2023 min 2:28
Jan. 19, 2023 min 1:59

Public Comments to the
Snohomish Co. Council

Feb. 21, 2023 min 5:04
March 8, 2023 min 4:32

Late Feb. 2023, through a draft resolution, Snohomish County Council
nudged CT CEO Ric Ilgenfritz to drop the vaccine mandate. He announced
the mandate lift at the March 2, 2023 Board of Directors meeting, to be

effective March 6, 2023.


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=wRE2nvJykfU&t=1178s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=EGy2Rov8CWA
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=GJVXEHgrMno
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=h5aa5YzPVHQ&t=402s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MVCtjvDo15U&t=322s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Dwn6jOACYI0&t=619s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0OU4EduXJUc
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1Oan1CQNzQI
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ng-bpQElvkc
https://snohomish.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=8416
https://snohomish.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=8428
https://www.heraldnet.com/news/community-transit-vaccine-holdouts-face-a-ticking-clock/ 
https://www.heraldnet.com/news/short-staffed-community-transit-to-cut-164-spring-bus-trips/
https://www.heraldnet.com/news/short-staffed-community-transit-to-cut-164-spring-bus-trips/
https://www.heraldnet.com/news/driver-shortage-prompts-community-transits-trip-cut-proposal/
https://www.heraldnet.com/news/community-transit-overhaul-accounts-for-light-rail-timeline-limbo/

= EVERETT CITY COUNCIL
EVERETT Public Comment Form

WASHINGTON

Thank you for being here today. Please fill out this form to speak at the council meeting.

State your name and city of residence when you begin speaking. Each person is asked to limit comments
to three minutes. This allows everyone a fair opportunity to speak. Return this form to the council
administrator before the meeting begins.

All comments must be relevant and delivered to the Council as a whole in a respectful manner. The
following comments are not allowed:

e Comments on any kind of campaigning, whether for or against ballot measures or candidates
running for office

e Comments advertising any product
e Comments focused on personal matters that are unrelated to City business

You can also submit a comment and attend meetings online at everettwa.gov/city council. Click on
“Council meeting public comment sign up form.” This must be done at least 30 minutes prior to the
meeting. Additional instructions are available on the web page.

City staff may wish to contact you for follow up, therefore, your contact information is appreciated.
DATE: 1 ) 61— ’ ?-L‘

NAME (required): (, L\ %,dwl(

CITY (required): F/\/M ZIP (required): 4 27

EMAIL (optional): — PHONE (optional): —

DISTRICT (circleone): 1 2 3 4 5 ¢ Notsure) Don'tlivein city

When would you like to deliver your comments: Is your topic on today’s agenda?

During the comment period that will follow the agenda item

AGENDA ITEM #:

~ During the general public comment. Please state the topic you would like to

speak on: M.b1 Ay\p'g-gx IJM\AJ

Public Comment forms are public records and are subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act

(RCW 42.56) and may be posted online with City archived records.



]
= EVERETT CITY COUNCIL

EVERETT Public Comment Form

WASHINGTON

Thank you for being here today. Please fill out this form to speak at the council meeting.

State your name and city of residence when you begin speaking. Each person is asked to limit comments
to three minutes. This allows everyone a fair opportunity to speak. Return this form to the council
administrator before the meeting begins.

All comments must be relevant and delivered to the Council as a whole in a respectful manner. The
following comments are not allowed:

e Comments on any kind of campaigning, whether for or against ballot measures or candidates
running for office

e Comments advertising any product

e Comments focused on personal matters that are unrelated to City business

You can also submit a comment and attend meetings online at everettwa.gov/city council. Click on
“Council meeting public comment sign up form.” This must be done at least 30 minutes prior to the
meeting. Additional instructions are available on the web page.

City staff may wish to contact you for follow up, therefore, your contact information is appreciated.

DATE: 3 / é)“"" Ulp?__%/

NAME (required): m;.{.‘ L' a.',,.gl LLZ!

A4

CITY (required): El}@f/\@% ZIP (required): *?’S’QOS

EMAIL (optional): [P@.3 wy/ ‘«_\am_&@mj PHONE (optional): 488 346 7/45
Torn

DISTRICT (circleone): 1 /2D 3 4 /5) Notsure  Don'tlive in city

When would you like to deliver your comments: Is your topic on today’s agenda?

During the comment period that will follow the agenda item
AGENDA ITEM #:

During the general public comment. Please state the topic you would like to

speakon: _CE Rt ruclie Posg Piuelonng) By, 1 M&ag(,bopp%(/

Public Comment forms are public records and are subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act
(RCW 42.56) and may be posted online with City archived records.




= EVERETT CITY COUNCIL e

EVERETT Public Comment Form

WASHINGTON

Thank you for being here today. Please fill out this form to speak at the council meeting.

State your name and city of residence when you begin speaking. Each person is asked to limit comments
to three minutes. This allows everyone a fair opportunity to speak. Return this form to the council
administrator before the meeting begins.

All comments must be relevant and delivered to the Council as a whole in a respectful manner. The
following comments are not allowed:

e Comments on any kind of campaigning, whether for or against ballot measures or candidates
running for office

e Comments advertising any product
e Comments focused on personal matters that are unrelated to City business

You can also submit a comment and attend meetings online at everettwa.gov/city council. Click on
“Council meeting public comment sign up form.” This must be done at least 30 minutes prior to the
meeting. Additional instructions are available on the web page.

City staff may wish to contact you for follow up, therefore, your contact information is appreciated.
DATE: /; 5l ) 2

NAME (requiredy: _ “spe At DL 2D

CITY (required): __+-X/ ov e ZIP (required): 07?2@ 2y

EMAIL (optional): D] — Sprrt-€. OwM]“éiSb%l\efE(/(optional): ol - 200 -S5" 1

DISTRICT (circleone): 1 2 @ 4 5 Not sure Don’t live in city

When would you like to deliver your comments: Is your topic on today’s agenda?

During the comment period that will follow the agenda item
AGENDA ITEM #:

S

/| During the general public comment. Please state the topic you would like to

speak on: M,@/f/ - 5 pun

Public Comment forms are public records and are subject to disclosure pursuant to the Public Records Act
(RCW 42.56) and may be posted online with City archived records.



Together

& ’

AR | "
\ &

- - i

R munity Transt

§ _

\
y .
== = A
\
\ \

\

e

More Transit
Together - Transit
Consolidation Study

\

&

..Illlmm

0 ) p
communltyt@,t/

Jan. 31, 2024



More Transit

Together
Background ——

In 2018, Everett Transit completed its first long range plan.

In 2019, Everett's City Council initiated the evaluation of transit services
provided by Everett Transit. The City's Rethink Transit study considered
three options for future provision of transit service in Everett: status
quo (no change), growth, and growth through consolidation.

In 2022, at the direction of the Everett City Council, staff and a joint
policy committee made up of elected officials from Everett and the
Community Transit Board of Directors began to study the third option,
growth through consolidation.



More Transit

Together

What is the transit consolidation study? ——

Joint study between the City of Everett, Everett Transit, and
Community Transit funded by a state Transit Coordination Grant.

Studies what a consolidated transit system could look like if Everett
Transit and Community Transit joined forces.

Considers the potential benefits and other key considerations for

fixed-route bus service, paratransit, and beyond, preparing for the
extension of Link light rail to Everett.

Planned for community input in 2025. The City of Everett has not yet
decided whether to seek city voters’ approval of a consolidation.



More Transit

Together

What's been studied? ==

* Draft of consolidated transit system
» Board governance

* Fleets and facilities

* Fares

 Branding

* Paratransit service




Based on Rethink Everett Transit,

What do we want a consolidated
transit system to accomplish?

o )

More Service More Destinations More Possibilities
Make transit be more frequent, have Provide service to more places and Provide service for people who rely on
shorter wait times, require fewer shorter walks to stops transit more, connect to more job
transfers, run later at night, and be centers and destinations, and connect

faster and more direct to more regional service



What is the P mo®o &S
roadmap for Xy ril

° o o ()
t h |S Stu dy? Launch Document Updated Financial \
Review Projections A

Ridership Updated Engagement Draft
Projections Consolidated Phase 1 Consolidated
Transit Plan Transit Plan
- We are here

kA B

Engagement Proposed
Phase 2 Consolidated

Transit Plan




. . SYSTEM MAP = T
Service in Everett today =

ommmn?ﬂ esﬂ.ﬂ'ﬂmhlﬂﬁhﬁl
MNORTH 1 Mall Station MORTH to Evercill Staticn

Everett Transit service O ot fﬁ:::;ﬁ;
O i Dioww coves s
10 total bus routes

(%) Patkng @ Fuint of Park Stroet
available inberest

« 3 routes with all-day service every 30
minutes or better

* 3 routes with service until 9 p.m. or 5= T
later
Community Transit service
H
« Swift Blue Line to Everett Station _
- Swift Green Line to Seaway Transit N
Center 2 :
« Stops at key transit centers for routes
traveling through Everett s

EVERETT TRANSIT




What could the Consolidated

Transit System look like?

Nearly 2% the amount 15 total bus routes in

of bus service

Buses that come
more often all day

Better transit access

at night

Better regional

connections

Everett (+5 routes)

14 routes with all-day
service every 30 minutes or

better (+11 routes)

15 routes with service until
9 p.m. or later (+12 routes)

More access to

surrounding communities
and direct services to light

rail

/

*CT routes (2024
network)

*ET routes (modified
from current network)

EVERETT I-

o/

Mukilteo

Quil Ceda| jl I
\_/MARYSWLL_E
KEY V

Eyerett
Commu’nity
|

O/I’-Ivérett
Station

; Ferry
MUKILTEO | SR

Park P&R

Ash Way P&R

Alderwood
Mall;
LYNNWOOD

MILLYCREEKS

verett Mall

j/_e\tett‘

Freeway Stn

i

nnwood-T-C
A

N\

LAKE'STEVENS

SNOHOMISH



Innovative service
opportunities

= Expand the reach of fixed-route transit
= Examples: CT Zip Alderwood Shuttle

= Two innovative service zones recommended
In Everett:
— Downtown Everett

— Eastmont/Silver Lake

O Everett
Communlty !
College

|lr

-ll'

EVFBETT ‘—'O',Everett

Statlon

Q Mukilteo
! Ferry

MUKILTEO | Sea¥iay T

ok
PAE\

SNOHOMISH

Mariner P&R T
McCollum

Park P&R



More Transit

Together
Next steps ——

* Initial status updates:
* Everett City Council (Jan. 31)
 Community Transit Board of Directors (Feb. 1)
* Joint ATU unions (Feb. 2)

» Updates with stakeholders (Feb. 2 - June, 2024)
* Broad community engagement (2025)

10



There would
be two
opportunities
to give input
in 2025

kA

Engagement
Phase 2

2

()
Engagement
Phase 1



How the community can get involved in 2025

Pop-up Events in the Community

Project Website

Social Pinpoint Map to View
and Comment on Changes

Community Workshop

wl

Online Community Survey

@@@@@




More Transit

Together

What's the decision-making process for a ———
potential consolidation?

Everett City Council would decide whether to propose
consolidation. No decisions have been made about whether
to seek those approvals.
If the council decides to propose consolidation:
Council would call for an election within the city.
Community Transit's Board of Directors would need to
approve a proposed consolidation.
City voters would then make the final decision by casting
their votes on a ballot measure.

13



More Transit

Together

Thank You!



	01312024Plus
	2023-093 Everett Station HVAC Design_CS
	2023-093 Everett Station HVAC Design_SD
	ATTACHMENT
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	(GENERAL PROVISIONS v.071423.P1)
	EXHIBIT A
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	(ATTACHED)
	EXHIBIT B
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	(ATTACHED)
	EXHIBIT C
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	HultzBHU Engineers SOQ - RFQ No. 2023-093.pdf
	Attachments.pdf
	FTA Clauses - 2023 Janaury Final.pdf
	1.  SIMPLIFIED ACQUISITION THRESHOLD
	2. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS
	3. BONDING REQUIREMENTS - NOT APPLICABLE
	4.  BUS TESTING - NOT APPLICABLE
	5.  BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS
	6.  BUILD AMERICA, BUY AMERICA ACT
	7. CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS – NOT APPLICABLE
	8.  CHARTER SERVICE – NOT APPLICABLE
	9.  CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (Over 150K)
	10.  CIVIL RIGHTS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
	11.  DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)
	12. VETERAN’S EMPLOYMENT
	13. TERMINATION OF DBE SUBCONTRACTOR
	14. PREVAILING WAGE AND ANTI-KICKBACK – NOT APPLICABLE
	15. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS (40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 – 3708)
	16. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS FOR AWARDS NOT INVOLVING CONSTRUCTION
	17. ENERGY CONSERVATION
	18. FLY AMERICA
	19. GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION
	20. DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES (31 U.S.C. § 1352)
	21. NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY
	22. PATENT RIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA
	23. PRE-AWARD AND POST-DELIVERY AUDITS OF ROLLING STOCK PURCHASES – NOT APPLICABLE
	24. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS
	25. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS
	26. RECOVERED MATERIALS - RECYCLED PRODUCTS
	27. SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES
	28. SCHOOL BUS OPERATIONS – NOT APPLICABLE
	29. SEISMIC SAFETY
	30. SUBSTANCE ABUSE REQUIREMENTS – NOT APPLICABLE
	31. TERMINATION
	32.  VIOLATION AND BREACH OF CONTRACT
	33.  PROTEST AND APPEALS
	34. FEDERAL CHANGES
	35. INCORPORATION OF FTA TERMS
	36. TERMS OF THESE PROVISIONS AND COMPLIANCE
	37. CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY TO EXTEND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS TO LOWER TIER PARTICIPANTS
	38. TRAFFICKING OF PERSONS
	39. FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS
	41. NOTIFICATION OF LEGAL MATTERS
	42. SOLID WASTES
	43. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
	44. FEDERAL “$1 COIN” REQUIREMENTS
	45. CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION ORDER ON REQUIREMENTS FOR PERSONS TO WEAR MASKS WHILE ON CONVEYANCES AND AT TRANSPORTATION HUBS
	46. ADA ACCESS



	2023-093 Library SPD EVT ST HVAC Request for Qualifications.pdf
	City of Everett
	REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS
	RFQ No.2023-093
	EVERETT MAIN LIBRARY HVAC and CONTROLS REPLACEMENT
	SOUTH PRECINCT CONTROLS REPLACEMENT and MAINTENANCE
	EVERETT STATION CONTROLS REPLACEMENT and MAINTENANCE
	INTRODUCTION & SUBMITTAL LOCATION
	oBJECTIVE
	Number of Copies Required
	Section One
	1.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR ALL THREE proposed projects
	1.2 CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT
	1.3 PROJECT 1 – MAIN LIBRARY
	1.4 PROJECT 2 – South Precinct
	1.5 PROJECT 3 - EVERETT STATION
	A. Proposed Project Objective
	B. Project Description
	C. Project Schedule
	D. MACC
	2.1 RFQ COORDINATOR
	2.2 Addenda
	2.3 STATEMENT Response Date and Location
	2.4 Non-endorsement
	2.5 PUBLIC DISCLOSURE
	1. Property of the City of Everett
	2. Proposals are Public Records
	3. Public Records Exemption
	4. Proposals Not Marked as Confidential
	5. Process for Disclosing Information
	6. Indemnification by Proposer
	7. Consent to Procedure

	2.6 No Obligation to Buy
	2.7 Cost of Preparing statements
	2.8 CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT OF FUNDS
	2.9 PROTESTS
	3.1 SUBMITTAL INFORMATION
	3.2 SUBMITTAL FORMAT
	3.3 EVALUATION
	City of Everett
	REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS #2023-093
	EVERETT MAIN LIBRARY HVAC and CONTROLS REPLACEMENT
	SOUTH PRECINCT CONTROLS REPLACEMENT and MAINTENANCE
	EVERETT STATION CONTROLS REPLACEMENT and MAINTENANCE
	FTA Clauses - 2023 Janaury Final.pdf
	1.  SIMPLIFIED ACQUISITION THRESHOLD
	2. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS
	3. BONDING REQUIREMENTS - NOT APPLICABLE
	4.  BUS TESTING - NOT APPLICABLE
	5.  BUY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS
	6.  BUILD AMERICA, BUY AMERICA ACT
	7. CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS – NOT APPLICABLE
	8.  CHARTER SERVICE – NOT APPLICABLE
	9.  CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (Over 150K)
	10.  CIVIL RIGHTS AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY
	11.  DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)
	12. VETERAN’S EMPLOYMENT
	13. TERMINATION OF DBE SUBCONTRACTOR
	14. PREVAILING WAGE AND ANTI-KICKBACK – NOT APPLICABLE
	15. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS (40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 – 3708)
	16. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS FOR AWARDS NOT INVOLVING CONSTRUCTION
	17. ENERGY CONSERVATION
	18. FLY AMERICA
	19. GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION
	20. DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES (31 U.S.C. § 1352)
	21. NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY
	22. PATENT RIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA
	23. PRE-AWARD AND POST-DELIVERY AUDITS OF ROLLING STOCK PURCHASES – NOT APPLICABLE
	24. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS
	25. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS
	26. RECOVERED MATERIALS - RECYCLED PRODUCTS
	27. SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES
	28. SCHOOL BUS OPERATIONS – NOT APPLICABLE
	29. SEISMIC SAFETY
	30. SUBSTANCE ABUSE REQUIREMENTS – NOT APPLICABLE
	31. TERMINATION
	32.  VIOLATION AND BREACH OF CONTRACT
	33.  PROTEST AND APPEALS
	34. FEDERAL CHANGES
	35. INCORPORATION OF FTA TERMS
	36. TERMS OF THESE PROVISIONS AND COMPLIANCE
	37. CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY TO EXTEND FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS TO LOWER TIER PARTICIPANTS
	38. TRAFFICKING OF PERSONS
	39. FEDERAL TAX LIABILITY AND RECENT FELONY CONVICTIONS
	41. NOTIFICATION OF LEGAL MATTERS
	42. SOLID WASTES
	43. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
	44. FEDERAL “$1 COIN” REQUIREMENTS
	45. CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION ORDER ON REQUIREMENTS FOR PERSONS TO WEAR MASKS WHILE ON CONVEYANCES AND AT TRANSPORTATION HUBS
	46. ADA ACCESS



	2024 Award and Authorize Vehicles_CS
	2024 Award and Authorize Vehicles_SD
	Sheet1

	Pace Engineers-2024-2028 On Call Stormwater Plan Review-SN-CS
	Pace Engineers-2024-2028 On Call Stormwater Plan Review-SN-SD
	2023 PSA Long Form - SW Plan Review On-Call
	ATTACHMENT
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	(GENERAL PROVISIONS v.071423.1)
	EXHIBIT A
	Exhibit A
	Task 1: Project Management and Contract Administration
	Task 2: Review of Development Applications
	Task 3: General Engineering Services (task order based)

	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
	(SCOPE OF WORK -- ATTACHED)
	EXHIBIT B
	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

	Rates_Everett_2024

	Quilceda Excavation-Watermain W-CO#1-DS-CS
	Quilceda Excavation-Watermain W-CO#1-SD
	Lincoln Construction-Port Gardner Storage Facility-Bid Award-ZB-CS
	Lincoln Construction-Port Gardner Storage Facility-Bid Award-ZB-SD
	Everett Link Extension Project Administration Agreement_cs
	Everett Link Extension Project Administration Agreement_SD1
	1. General
	2. Designated Representatives
	The City and Sound Transit have designated formal points of contact and coordination for this Agreement as identified in Exhibit A. Each designated representative is responsible for coordinating the input and work of its agency, consultants, and staff...
	3. Essential Public Facilities
	The Parties agree that the Project is a regional transit authority that has the status of an essential public facility and that the requirements of RCW 36.70A.200 are applicable under RCW 36.70A. The City may not utilize development regulations to ren...
	4. Environmental Review
	Sound Transit is the lead agency for compliance with the State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA). In coordination with the Partner Agencies and other agencies with jurisdiction, Sound Transit will complete the substantive and procedural environmental re...
	The Federal Transit Administration is the lead agency for compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The Partner Agencies commit to participate in the environmental review process as a Cooperating Agency under NEPA and as a Consulte...
	5. Task Orders for City Services
	5.1. Principles for Determining Eligible Reimbursable Costs. Sound Transit agrees to pay the City for the costs associated with particular tasks that:
	11. General Provisions
	Exhibits
	Pursuant to Section 6 of this agreement, each party designates the following persons as their representatives (“Designated Representatives”) who shall be responsible for coordination of communications between the parties and shall act as the point of ...
	Each Designated Representative is also responsible for coordinating the input and work of its agency, consultants, and staff as it relates to the objectives of this Agreement.  Sound Transit reserves the right to change Designated Representative by pr...
	Task Order Exhibit 3. Cost Estimate




	FW_ [EXTERNAL] Regarding Agenda Item (9) - Transit Consolidation Briefing
	Fact Sheet
	1.31.24 In Person
	Everett City Council Consolidation Study PPT FINAL v2
	More Transit Together - Transit Consolidation Study
	�
	Joint study between the City of Everett, Everett Transit, and Community Transit funded by a state Transit Coordination Grant.��Studies what a consolidated transit system could look like if Everett Transit and Community Transit joined forces.��Considers the potential benefits and other key considerations for fixed-route bus service, paratransit, and beyond, preparing for the extension of Link light rail to Everett.��Planned for community input in 2025. The City of Everett has not yet decided whether to seek city voters’ approval of a consolidation.�
	Slide Number 4
	Based on Rethink Everett Transit,�What do we want a consolidated transit system to accomplish?
	What is the roadmap for this study?
	Service in Everett today
	What could the Consolidated Transit System look like?
	Innovative service opportunities
	Slide Number 10
	There would be two opportunities to give input in 2025
	How the community can get involved in 2025
	�
	Thank You!




